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MR, AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford, did former Vice-President
Nixon speak for the Republican Party yvesterday when he called
for bombing military targets in the port of Haiphong?

| REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I do not think he spoke for the
Republican Coordinating Committee, which is the group of
Republican leaders that was put together about a year ago for the
purpose of coordinatinc our policies on the domestic front and

on international politics.

This is a view that an individual can have. I think
it would be said to be his, not the party as a whole; at the
present time.

ANNOUNCER: Live, from CBs; Washington; FACE THE NATION;
a spontaneous and unrehearsed news interview with the
Republican leader of the House, Representative Gerali Ford
cf Michigan. Representative Ford will be questioned by CBS
Newis Corréspondent David Schoumacher; Robert Novak, Columnist
for the New York Herald Tribune Syndicate. CBS News
Correspondent Martin Agronsky will lead the questioning.

We shall resume the interview with Congressman Ford in
just a moment.

MR, AGROMSKY: Congressman Ford; if Mr. Nixon's call
for the bombing of military targets in the port of Haiphong
does not agree with the opinion of the Republican COOrdinafing

Committee, does it reflect yowr personzl opinion?



REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, Martin, at this particular
time, with the President committing 220,000 to 235,000 military
personnel to Vietnam, it seems to me that these delicate
military decisions should be made by the elected Commander
in Chief of the United states; Lyndon B. Johnson, based on the
recommendations of the Joint Chiefs of staff -~- the people
who are experienced; who are knowledgeable. I think these
technical decisions of a militarynature rest with the President
of the United States. And I think we should séand forthrightly
for a policy of strength against Communist aggression. But
the execution, the implementation on a day to day basis in &
military way is the responsibility of the President of the
United States.

MR, NOVAK: Well, Congressman Ford; the Republican
Congressional Committee News Letter, which is due out
tomorrow, gets rather deep;y into the day to day execution of
Vietnam poiicy; and it suggests that "The American serviceman
is fighting a war with one hand tied behind his back"; due
to the policies of the Administration. Isn’t this the view of
the House Republican leadership?

*EPRESENTATIVE FCRD:. I would say that this is not an
illustration of vhere we are telling the President that he
ought to do one particular thing or another militarily.

We are saying that the Administration is not using the

full potential of our military forces, our Army, Navy and Air Force.
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I have heard that quotation actually in the White House
itself, where discussions were held, where the indication was
given that particularly during the pause of the bombing, that
our military forces were in effect f'ighti.ng a war; a very
serious one, with one of their hands tied behind them.

I repeat again that the technical military decisions,
how we use ocur air power, our sea power, these are decisions
that must be made by the elected Commander in Chief; a man who
was elected in November 1964.

We as Republicans can call for a policy of strength, a
posture of determination. But these day to day executions;
implementations of peolicy, mws ¢t be made by the President with
the help and assistance of the Joint Chiefs of Staff.

MR. SCHOUMACHER: Congressman Ford, not €oo many months
ago Republicarfs were saying that Vietnam was going to be an
issue. Then they apparently decided to hedge their bet a
Jittle bit and we heard it was going to be Vietnam and
inflation; and yesterday Mr. Nixon said it is going to be
inflation, the only issue.

Is there much difference in the Party on just how to
talk about Vietnam?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave, I don’t think we ever said «-

° \
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at least the leadership never said, that Vietnam would be the (yajcr
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policy issue. -
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As a matter of fact, Senator Dirksen and myself have’
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repeatedly urged all Republicans to not make Vietnam a political
issue. The consequences are too great and the crisis is too
serious for us; from the point of view c©f the national interest,
to make this a political issue.

MR . SCHOUMACHER: But, Mr. Ford, don't you have to make it
a political issue? If you have to pick up votes; you have an
obligation to talk about it.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave; I don't think we should, I
don’t think we have an cbligation._to.

I might add as a postscipt some of the President’s
Democrats in the Senate are the ones who are making it a political
issue. Senator Wayne Morse is making it a very serious political
issue, and others in the Senate in the President’s own Democratic
Party, are the ones who are making all the charges, all the
allegations.

I suspect with these kind of charges made against the -
President by Senator Morse and others, the American people, not
the Republicans; will make Vietnam a political issue in 1966.

MR. AGRONSKY: Do you think the Democrats should not be
doing this?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No =-- I think; Marti.n; that they
have a right to speak I think they have an obligation; if their
conscience tells them to talk about it in the Senate.

But, on the other hand, I do look with some disgust and,

I th.'i.nk dismay at the kind of demonstrations that took place /
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yesterday in many of our major cities in this country. I
believe that these kind of attempts to discredit our policy, to
display a lack of unity among the American people, could have
the effect of érolonging the war; undermining the morale of

ow American f.roops, and in effect leading the enemy to a
miscalculation as to the power and the unity of the American
people.

MR, SCHOUMACHER: If the Republican Party, though; expects
to pick up votes on the basis of disenchantment with the
President®s policy in Vietnam -~ don’t you have a responsibility
to tell them this is what the Republicans think about Vietnam,
what should be done about Vietnam, so that when they do express
that disenchantment in the polling place, they know what they are
voting for?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yés; Dave; I think we have to point
out what.our position is. And the position today is that we
support a policy of a posture of determination against
Communist aggression and terror in Vietnam.

But I add very quickly that we are not in a position in
the Republican Party; in the legislative branch, to make
military decisions. BAnd these decisions have to be made by
the Commander in Chief.

MR, AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford, some critics of the
Republican Party hawe indicated that you are nct fulfilling

the role of the loyal opposition in promoting debate; that you



are leaving that task to the Democrats.

In Januvary of 1950, Senator Arthur Vandenberg; of your
Stage, the late Senator —-

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: From my home town.

MR. ACRONSKY: From your home town -- wrote in a letter to
a constituent that every féreigﬂ policy must be totally
debated, and the loyal opposition is under special obligation
to see this occurs.

Do you feel you are fulfilling the function of the loyal
opposition as Senator Vandenberg says?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes; I think we are; Martin; becdause
in effect ve are debating those Democrats in the House and the
Senate who want to withdraw, the Democrats who want to turn
tail and run.

As a matter of fact; we in the Republican Party today are
more effectively helping the Chief Executive, the Commander
in Chief, by telling him "We stand with you as long as you are
willing to face up to Communist terror and aggression'.

We, as Republicans; ave debating the weak-kneed Democrats
who want to turn tail and run and duck the responsibility of the
leadership of the free world on the part of the United States.

MR. AGRONSKY: Which ones want to turn tail and run?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, there are these who in effect

R
have said we ought to go back and abandon all of South aé@ d

Asia and come back to Pearl Harbor. This is what s



have said.

MR. AGRONSKY: I don't know of any who said that. What
responsible Democrats have said that?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD;: Well; hasn't Senator Wayne Morse
said that we ought to withdraw, we ought to end the war? What
he means under the theory of those such as Secretary Rusk; who
as I understand it believes in the dominoe theory - means
that in a relatively short periecd of time you are going to
end up defending Pearl Harbom; and that is not a very good
prospect.

MR. NOVAK: Mr. Ford; I did not gquite understand your
answeyr to my question.

Do you feel that «- do you personally feel that .e are
fighting the war in Vietnam with an arm behind our back; or
B that just political propaganda by the Congressional Campaign
cOmmitéee?

REPRESENTATIVE FCRD: When you look at all the military
power that the United States has; in the Air Force; in the Navy;
and in the Army; and when you relize that we are not fully
utilizing that military power; and when you understand that
we have 220;000; 235,000 American military personnel fighting a
war in Vietnam today; and probably 300,000 in a few months; andA
you see that they are not getting the full support of all of
this military power that we have; the argument can be made -=-

MR, NOVAK: But do you make it?



REPRESENTATIVE FORD: —= that the soldiers; sailors and
airmen out there are fighting with one hand tied behind them.

MR, NOVAK: But do you make the argument; Mr. Ford?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think there is a gveat deal of
credence to the argument. But just how you use this power on a
day to day basis; the pover that we are not using, I think is
the responsibility of the Commander in Chief; President Lyndon B.
Johnson.

MR. NOVAK: On that position of the power; you and the
other Republicén leaders; and Mr. Nixon last night; repeatedly
have advised against getting into a land war on the Asian
continent. Ncw; what does a land war consist of ==~ 200;000
troops, 300;000? Do you *hink we are in a land war now?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: When you get up to 235;000; 300;000
or 400;000; and there are plans and programs in the Pentagon
today to increase our commitment to those figures; I believe
we are getting to the point where we are fighting a rather
large-scale ground war in Southeast Asia.

I think it is well to point out that at the height of the
Korean War; where we had our greatest military commitment in
that conflict; there were only 325;000 U.S. military personnel
stationed in South Korea.

It seems to me that very shortly President Johnson will havé

commnitted almost that number.

MR. NOVAK: And you are opposed to that?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: And I think when we get to that
figqure without using more of our military power in the air
and on that sea; that we are getting ourselves int> a very bad
military situation.

MR . NOVAK: Are you oppcsed to that?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes, I would be.

MR, ACRONSKY: You are opposed to it. You would have a
ceiling; then; on the American commitment in Vietnam.

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: I would not have a ceiling as to ==

MR . AGRONSKY: What do you mean; then?

REPRESENTA®IVE FORD: I think you have got to have a
limitation on your commitment in ground forces unless and
until we have more fully utilized our air and sea power. And
we are not doing that today.

MR. AGRONSKRY: Don’'t you regard that as a significant
military criticism; that you said you were reluctant to make?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No, because what you really intended,
I think, was to indicate thast we believe that we should bonb
Haiphong, that we should do other specific military targeting.

MR. AGRQISKY: No. We are talking about something else now.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; if you are talking in the
broad sense <=

MR . AGRONSKY: We are talking about a ceiling on AmeV
commitment in Vietnam. Are you for it or not? .

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I believe there should be a
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ceiling on our ground forces; unless and until we have more
fully utilized cur military power in the air and on the sea.

MR, NOVAK: 1In other‘words; M. Ford; you are saying we should
use the air power more than we are using it; but you would not
say exactly how.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes; I think that is a fair analysis
of it.

MR. AGRONSKY: Don’t you regard that as a military
proposal, an interference with the President, who is the
Commandexr in Chief; and you said before we should not criticize.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No; I don’t think this is a military
recommendation in the sense of what the Joint Chiefs do on a
day to day basis, as far as the President is concerned.

MR. AGRONSKY: It seems about ssmilitary as you could
get; to put a ceiling on how many troops you wguld put in there
and say that we should not put any more in unless we do thus and
80 in a military way.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; let me say this. There are a
great many Americans; Martin; who are very unhappy with the way
in which the conflict is being run in Vietnam today. Many
Americans who support the pelicy of meeting the challenge of
Communist aggression are saying that unless we do more with the
power we have; we either ought €o do it or get out. And I
believe that the American people; and ail of the polls support

this, indicate that the President as Commander in Chief ought to

A/FA
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follow this course of action before éomii:‘cing another 100;000
U.S. milikary personnel to Vietnam.

MR . AGRONSKY: Do you agree with those people who feel we
ought to do this or get out?

- REPRESENTATYVE FORD: I would not go quite that far. I
would not be quite that categorical. But I can assure you this
is the attitude of a great many Americans in this country today.

MR . SCHOUMACHER: Mr. Ford; what about £lying saucers?
You have had some in Michigan in the past week. Do you really
believe in £lying saucers? You cdled for a Congressional
investigation.

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave; we have had several incidents
in Michigan in the last week; incidents that many reliable;
good citizens felt were suffi-ient ‘o justify some action by
our goveénmnt; and not the kind of flippant answer that vas
given by the Air Force where they passed it off as swamp gas.

In addition there are other incidents that have happened
from time to time, reportings by people who bas:‘i.cally; I think,
are fully sincere and who are honest.

It seems to me that this mystery that has been around the
country with all of these various sightings does require that
the Congress take a good look at it; bring up these witnesses
from the Air Force and the National Aeronautic- and Space
Agenc'y , have them interrogated by members of a House or Senate

Committee, let them put their records on the line, and let the
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people wiio have allegedly seen these unidentified flying objects
come andi testify.

I think the American people would be more assured that
there were or were not if such a public hearing was held.

MR. NOVAK: Congressman E'ord; how many seats do you think
the Republican Party can pick up in the South this year?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: In the South?

MR. NOVAK: In the South.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think we will pick up; oh; from
five to six. But I am more encouraged; Bob, by the possibilities
of picking up seats elsevhere in the United States. As a total
I would say our prospects a2t the moment appear good; to pick up
between 40 and 50.

MR. NOVAK: On the questionof the South, hew do you feel
about the segregationists in the Republican Party in the Scuth?
Fox example', Congressman Jim Martin in Alabama has just ammounced
for Governor. Would you go down and campaign for him; or fox
Senator Strom Thurmond in South Carolina, seeking re-election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Iet me say this. The segregationists
in the Republican Party are minimal compared to those that
have been in the rast in the Democratic Party in the South.

The record is crystal clear that the Democratic Party in the
past and I think at the present time in the South is totally

dominated by extreme segregationists. CORD
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Governor Wallace == now he is running his wife. 2T am ;;‘
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sure she shares; according to him; his views on matters involving
segregation.

It seems to me that the Republican Party in the South has
made a very good effort to broaden its base, to raise issues
other than segregation between the Democrats in the South and
the Republicans in the South.

MR. NOVAK: Would you campaign for an out-and-out
segregationist; like strom Thurmond or Jim Martin?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don’t think you can categorize
these people as outright segregationists. I Think this is an
unfair accusd&ion. And I believe ==

MR, SCHOUMACHER: Is it unfair to call Strom Thurmond a
segregatiocnist?

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: Let me talk about Jim Martin;
because he serves with me in the House <f Representative. I
know tlat Jim Martin and the other Republicans f£from the State
of Alabama worked very closely with me and others in the House
%o.develop a voting righits bill that even today, Dave; I think
it a better bill than the la' that we have on the statute books.
These men worked very effectively and honestly to come up with a
voting rights bill that would be applicable in every one of the
fifty states. And any man or any group of men; such as Jim
Martin and the others; who take this approach; in no way, no
way, are the kind of segregationists that you are implying.

MR, NOVAK: There are different kinds of segregationists?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; there are all kinds of
liberals, there are all kinds of radicals.

MR. NOVAK: So you would campaign for them.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: If they follow the basic principles
of the Republican Party, and if they ave willing to adhere to,
as we have; the philosophy ©of the Republican Party as I know i.t--'-—
I think the burden is on i:hem-m-':l: would campaign for a
Republican in Alabama or any other state of the Union.

MR. ACRONSKY: Would regard all of the Republican candidates
in the South as men for whom you could campaign no matter what
their position is on segregation?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; Martin; we hope to have a full
slate of candidates in all of the Southern states. I don’t know
them all; so I cannot categorically answyer that question. But
let me turn the coin over; if I may.

MR. AGRONSKY: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I go and campaign in some of our
large metropolitan areas for more or less liberal Republican
candidates, candidates who are more liberal than I. Shouild
I be criticized for doing that any more than I should be
critidzed for doing it in the South?

What I am trying to say is the Republican Party has to
elect more Republicans; and in some areas of the country liberal
Republicans will be elected; and in some areas of the country

conservative Republicans will be elected.
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MR. NOVAK: Do you equite the liberal Republicans with
the segregationisi:s; then?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don‘t understand the question.

MR, NOVAK: You are putting the liberal Republicans and
the segregationists in the same basket.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well;. as long as the liberal
Republican and the conservative Republican believe in the basic
principles of the Republican Party; I believe they are Republicans;
and I think we ought to dect Republicans -« period.

MR. AGRCHSKY: Will you hold on for a second, Congressman.
We will follow up in a minute. There aremany more things
we would like to ask you.

We will resume the questioning in a moment.

MR. AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford; yesterday the
Republican Party in South Carolina held a convention. It was
lily wh:i.'i:e;v not a single Negre was there, Do you approve of
that, sir?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think the best answer to i:hai:;
Martin, is that last fall I was inv:.ted to speak to & Republican
luncheon in Natchez, Mississippi, and unfartunately that 1uncheon
in effect excluded any Negro participation. I had to cancel out,
and I think my decision was right.

S RORD
I have appeared at luncheons and dinners on behalf ‘of £hé)\
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Republican Party in many Southern states where there w
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segregated Republican audiences.

I certainly believe tlat the Republican Party ought to include
in the Sou’ch; as well as in the North; individuals from all
segments of our society, whites as well as Negroes; as Tong
as they believe in the philosophy of the Republican Party.

And where there is a deliberate exclusion of one segment of
our .eociei:y; then I think the Republican Party ought to take a
haxd look at whether they should participate.

MR. AGRONSKY: What'’s wrong in South Carolina?

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: From what I know about i.t; I do not
know whether they specifically excluded them. But if they did;
if they precluded Negroes from pari:icipation; Negroes who
wanted to mrticipate , then I think they made a mistake.

MR. SCHOUMACHER: Mr. Ford; the other day you said that you .
did not play to be minority leader forever; that you hope to
become majority leader or step down. Have you ‘sei: a date for
your retirem'ani:; or do you plan to become majority leader pretty
soon?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I:think the prospects, Dave, are
getting better and better for the Republicans to make significant
gains in the House of Representatives. At the moment I do not
think the prospects are such that we can lock forward to a majority
in the House. But public opinion today is rapidly swinging away
from the Johnson-Humphrey Administration , and there is greater

and greater Republican support throughout the couniry. aAnd if
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the Administration’s credibility erodes in the next fewv months
as it hus in the last few mnnths; there is a distinct possibility
the Republicans will gain control in the Housa.
I happen to think we are laying a good g:-:oundwork; we
are getting good candidates; we are better organized;‘we are more
unified; and the Democrats are losing credibility; they are
disorganized; and I think the American people are getting
sympathetic to the kind of a program and the candidates we are
cEfering.
MR, SCHOUMACEHER: VYou said once there you were going to pick
up 30 votes; and then it became 40 votea; and now it is almost
50 vﬁtes, What is happening? We don’t see any evidence of it.
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; let me tell you the evidence is
pretty clegr if you just look at the various opinion polls
throughout the country. The President and the Democratic
Administration has lost 3 to 3.5 percent nationwide. The
Republicans have gained a cozfjﬂresponding amount of public support.
And as this pendulum swings away from the Johnson-Humphrey
Administration to the Repﬁblicans; it automatically means
that we are going to pick up more and more seats in the House
and in the Senate.
MR . SCHOUMACHER: Is it Vietnam that is making it swing?
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I have not analyzed just what the
issue is; except that on the domestic scene the Administration's

failure to do anything about the increase in {he cost of living,
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the Administration’s failure to recognize the dangers of
inflation and the distinckt probability and possibility.
if the inflation gets worse we are going to have a recession
is the one thing that on the domestic scene very much worries
the American people.

MR, AGRONSRY: Centlemen, I am very sorry; but our time

is up. Thank you, Congressman Ford, for being here to FACE

THE NATION.
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MR . AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford, did former Vice-President
Nixon speak for the Republican Party yesterday when he called
for bormbing military targets in the port of Haiphong?

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: I do not think he spoke for the
Republican Coordinating Committee, which is the group of
Republican leaders that was put tocgether about & year ago for the
purpose of coordinating our policies on the domestic front and
on international politics.

This is a view that an individual can have. I think
it would be said to be his, not the party as a whole; at the
present time.

ANNOUNCER: Live, from CBs;‘Washington; FACE THE NATiON;

a spontancous and unrechearsed news interview with the
Republican leader of the House, Representative Geraldi Ford

of Michigan. Representative Ford will be quesiioned by CBS
News Correspondent David Schoumacher; Robert Wovak, COlumnist‘
for the Wew York Herald Tribune Syndicate. CBS News
Correspondent Martin Agronsky will lead the guestioning.

We shall resume the interview with Congressman Ford in
just a moment.

MR, AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford; if Mr. Nixon‘s call
for the bombing of military targets in the port of Haiphong
does not agree with the opinion of the Republican Cooréiﬁatingv

Committee, does it reflect your personal opinion?

X o



REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, Martin, at this particular
time, with the President committing 220,000 to 235,000 military
personnel to Vietnam, it seems to me that these delicate
military decisions should be made by the elected Commander
in Chief of the United States; Lyndon B. Johnson, based on the
recommendations of the Joint Chiefs of staff -=- the people
who are experienced; who are knocwledgeable. I think these
technical decisions of a militarynature rest with the President
of the United States. And I think we should s®and forthrightly
for a policy of strength against Communist aggression. But
the execution, the implementation on a day to day'basis in &
military way is the responsibility of the President of the
United States.

MR . NOVAK: Well, Congressman Ford; the Republican
Congressional Commitiee News Letter, which is due out
tomorrow, géts rather deeply into the day to day execution of
Vietnam policy; and it suggests that "The American serviceman
is fighting a war with one hand tied behind his back”; due
to the policies of the Administration. Isn®t this the view of
the House Republican leadership?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I would say that this is not an
illustration of where we are telling the President that he
ought to do one particular thing or another militarily.

We are saying that the Administration is not using the

full potential of our military forces, our Army, Navy and Air Force.



I have heard that quotation actually in the White House
itself, where discussions were held, where the indication was
given that particularly during the pause of the bombing, that
our military forxces were in effect fighting a war; a very
serious one, with one of their hands tied behind them.

I repeat again that the technical military decisions,
how we use our air power, our sea power, these are decisions
that must be made by the elected Commander in Chief; a man who
waé elected in November 1964.

We as Republicans can call for a policy of strength, a
posture of determination. But these day to day executions;
implementations of policy, mws ¢t be made by the President with
the help and assistance of the Joint Chiefs of Staff.

MR . SCHOUMACHER: Congressian Ford, not too many months
ago Republicans were saying that Vietnam was going to be an
igsue. Then they apparently decided to hedge their bet a
little bit and we heard it was going to be Vietnam and
inflation; and vesterday Mr. Nixon said it is going to be
inflation, the only issue.

Is there much difference in the Party on just how to
talk about Vietnam?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave; I don’t think we ever said «-
at least the leadership never said; that Vietnam would be the major‘
policy issue.

As a matter of fact, Senator Dirksen and myself hawi




repeatedly urged all Republicans to not make Vietnam a political
issue. The consequences are too great and the crisis is too
serious for us, from the point of view of the national interest,
to make this a political issue.

MR . SCHOUMACHER: But, Mr. Ford; don’t you have to make it
a political issue? If you have to pick up votes; you have an
cbligation to talk about it.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave; I don’t think we should. I
don’t think we have an ocbligation_to.

I might add as a postscipt some o0f the President’s
Democrats in the Senate are the ones who are making it a political
issue. Senator Wayne Morse is making it a véry serious political
issue, and others in the Senate in the President’s own Democratic
Party, are the ones who are making all the charges, all the
allegations.

I suspect with these kind of charges made against the -
President by Senator Morse and others, the American people, not
the Repﬂblicans; will make Vietnam a political issue in 1966.

MR. AGRONSKY: Do you think the Democrats should not be
doing this?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No =~ I think; Martin; that they
have a right to speak I think they have an obligation, if their
conscience tells them to talk about it in the Senate.

But; on the other hand, I do look with some disgust and,

I think, dismay at the kind of demonstrations that took“place



yesterday in many of our major cities in this country. I
believe that these kind of attempts to discredit our policy; to
display a lack of unity among the American people, could have
the effect of érolonging the war; undermining the morale of

ow American troops, and in effect leading the enemy to a
miscalculation as to the power and the unity of the American
people.

MR, SCHOUMACHER: If the Republican Party, though; expects
to pick up votes on the basis of disenchantment with the
President®’s policy in Vietnam -~ don’t you have a responsibility
to tell them this is what the Republicans think about Vietnam,
what should be done about Vietnam, so that when they do express
that disenchantment in the polling place; they knoaw what they are
voting for?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yés; Dave; I think we have to point
out what our position is. And the position today is that we
support a policy of a posture of determination against
Communist aggression and terror in Vietnam.

But I add wvery quickly that we are not in a position in
the Republican Paity; in the legislative branch, to make
military decisions. And these decisions have to be made by
the Commander in Chief.

MR . AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford, some critics of the
Republican Party have indicated that you are not fulfilling

the role of the loyal opposition in promoting debate; that you



are leaving that task to the Democrats.

In Januvary of 1950, Senator Arthur Vandenberg; of your
State, the late Senator ==

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: From my home town.

MR. AGRONSKY: From your home town -~ wrote in a letter to
a constituent that every foreig_:; policy must be totally
debated, and the loyal opposition is under special obligation
to see this occurs.

Do you feel you are fulfilling the function of the loyal |
opposition as Senator Vandenberg says?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes; I think we are; Maxrtin , because
in effect we are debating those Democrats in the House and the
Senate who want to withdraw; the Democrats who want to turn
tail and run.

As a matter of faci:; we in the Republican Party today are
more efféctively helping the Chief Executive, the Commander
in Chief, by telling him "We stand with you as long as you are
willing to face up to Communist terror and aggression".

We, as Republicans; are debating the weak-kneed Democrats
who want to turn tail and run and duck the responsibility of the
leadership of the free world on the part of the United States.

MR, AGRONSKY: Which ones want to turn tail and run?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, there are those who in effect

have said we ought to go back and abandon all of Sout

Asia and come back to Pearl Harbor. This is what s



have said.

MR. ACRONSKY: I don't know of any who said that. What
responsible Democrats have said that?

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; hasn’t Senator Wayne Morse
said that we ought to withdraw, we ought to end the war? What
he means under the theory of those such as Secretary Rusk; who
as I understand it believes in the dominoe theory == means
that in a relatively short period of time you are going to
end up defending Pearl Harbor; and that is not a very good
prospect .

MR. NOVAK: Mr. Ford; I did not quite understand your
answer to my question.

Do you feel that =« do you personally feel that se are
fighting the war in Vietnam with an arm behind our back; or
B that just political propaganda by the Congressional Campaign
Committee?

REPRESENTATIVE FCRD: When you look at all the military
power that the United States has; in the Air Force; in the Navy;
and in the Army; and when you relize that we are not fully
utilizing that military power; and when you understand that
we have 220;000; 235,000 American military personnel fighting a
war in Vietnam today; and probably 300,000 in a few months; andl
you see that they are not getting the full support of all of
this military power that we have; the argument can be made‘-u

MR . NOVAK: But do you make it?



REPRESENTATIVE FORD: == that the soldiers; sailors and
airmen out there are fighting with one hand tied behind them.

MR, NOVAK: But do you make the argument; Mr. Ford?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think there is a great deal of
credence to the argument. But just how you use this power on a
day to day basis; the pover that we are not using, I think is
the responsibility of the Commander in Chief; President Lyndon B.
Johnson.

MR, NOVAK: On that position of the power; you and the
other Repﬁblic;n 1eaders; and Mr. Nixon last night; repeatedly
have advised against getting into a land war on the Asian
continent. Ncw; what does a land war consist of -~ 200;000
troops, 300;000? Do you “hink we are in a land war now?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: When you get up to 235;000; 300;000
or 400,000; and there are plans and programs in the Pentagon
today to increase our commitment to those figures; I believe
we are getting to the point where we are fighting a rather
large~scale ground war in Southeast Asia.

I think it is well to point out that at the height of the
Korean War;'where we had our greatest military commitment in
that conflict; there were only 325;000 U.S. military personnel
stationed in South Korea.

It seems to me that very shortly Presidént Johnson will have
committed almost that number.

MR. NOVAK: And you are opposed to that?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: And I think when we get to that
figure without using more of our military power in the air
and on that sea; that we are getting ourselves int> a very bad
military situation.

MR, NOVAK: Are you opposed to that?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes; I would be.

MR . AGRONSKY: You are opposed to it. ¥You would have a
ceiling , i:hen; on the Zmerican commitment in Vietnam.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I would not have a ceiling as to ==

MR. AGRONSKY: What do you mean; then?

REPRESENTA¥IVE FORD: I think you have got to have a
limitation on your commitment in ground forces unless and
until we have more fully utilized our air and sea power. And
we are not doing that today.

MR. AGRONSKY: Don‘'t you regard that as a significant
military criticism; that you said you were reluctant to make?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: ©No, because vhat you really intended,
I think, was to indicate that we believe that we should bonb
Haiphong, that we should do other specific military targeting.

MR . AGRQISKY: No. We are talking about something else now.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, if you are talking in the
broad sense «=

MR. AGRONSKY: We are talking about a ceiling on American

commitment in Vietnam. Are you for it or not? mo\\

%\

Q - \
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I believe there should be:a manpgyer
>, A
o
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ceiling on our ground fqrces; unless and until we have more
fully utilized our military power in the air and on the sea.

MR, NOVAK: 1In other‘words; ME . Ford; you are saying we should
use the air power more than we are using it; but you would not
say exXactly how.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes; I think that is a fair analysis
of it.

MR. AGRONSKY: Don't you regard that as a military
proposal, an interference with the President, who is the
Commander in Chief; and you said before we should not criticize.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No; I don’t think this is a military
recommnendation in the sense of what the Joint Chiefs do on a
day to day basis, as far as the President is concerned.

MR. AGRONSKY: It seems about ssmilitary as you could
get, to put a ceiling on how many troops you would put in there
and say that we should not put any more in unless we do thus and
s0o in a military way.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; let me say this. There are a
great many Americans; Martin; who are wvery unhappy with the‘way
in which the conflict is being run in Vietnam today. Many
Americans who support the policy of meeting the challenge of
Communist aggression are saying that unless we do more with the
power we have; we either ought to do it or get out. And I
believe that the American people; and all of the polls support

this, indicate that the President as Commander in Chief ought €o



follaw this course of action before éomitting another 100,000
U.S. miligary personnel to Vietnam.

MR . AGRONSKY: Do you agree with those people who feel we
ought to do this or get out?

REPRESENTATIVE FFORD: I would not go quite that far. 1I
would not be gqguite that categorical. But I can assure you this
is the attitude of a great many Americans in this country today.

MR . SCHOUMACHER: Mr. Ford; what about £flying saucers?
You have had some in Michigan in the past week. Do you really
believe in flying saucers? Vou cdled for a Congressional
investigation.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Dave , we have had several incidents
in Michigan in the last week; incidents that many reliable;
good citizens felt were suffi-ient (o justify some action by
our governmeni:; and not the kind of flippant answer that was
given by the air Force where they passed it off as swamp gas.

In addition there are other incidents that have happened
from time to time, reportings by people who baaicallj(; i think,
are fully sincere and who ave honest.

It seems to me that this mystery that has been around the
country with all of these various sightings does require that
the Congress take a good look at it; bring up these witnesses
from the Air Force and the National Aeronautic- and Space

Agency, have them interrogated by members of a House

Committee, let them put their records on the line,
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people wiio have allegedly seen these unidentified flying objects
come and. testify.

I think the American people would be more assured that
there were or were not if such a public hearing was held.

MR. NOVAK: Congressman Ford; how many seats do you think
the Republican Party can pick up in the South this year?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: In the South?

MR. NOVAK: In the South.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think we will pick up; oh; from
five to six. But I am more encouraged; Bob, by the possibilities
of picking up seats elsewhere in the United States. As a total
I would say our prospects at the momant appear good; to pick up
between 40 and 50,

MR. NOVAK: On the questionof the South, how do you feel
about the seérega'tionists in the Republican Party in the Scuth?
For example, Congressman Jim Martin in Alabama has just ammounced
for Governor. Would you go down and campaign for him; or for
Senator Strom Thurmond in South Carolina, seeking re-election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Iet me say this. The segregationists
in the Republican Party are minimal compared to those that
have been in the xast in the Democcratic Party in the South.

The record is crystal clear that the Democratic Party in the
past and I think at the present time in the South is totally
dominated by extxeme segregaticnists.

Governor Wallace <~ now he is running his wife. I am

) \ 7»_-!//’_.
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sure she shares; according €o him; his views on matters involving
segregation.

It seems to me that the Republican Party in the South has
made a very good effort to broaden its base, to raise issues
other than segregation between the Democrats in the South and
the Republicans in the South.

MR. NOVAK: Would you campaign for an out-and-out
segregationist; like styram Thurmond or Jim Martin?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: X don’t think you can categorize
these people as outright segregationists. I think this is an
unfair accusdion. And I believe ==

MR . SCHOUMACHER: Is it unfair to call Strom Thurmond a
segregationist?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Let me talk abouthim Martin;
because he serves with me in the House of Representative. I
know that Jim Martin and the other Republicans from the State
of Alabama worked ﬁery closely with me and others in the House
to develep a voting rights bill that even today, Dave; I think
it a better bill than the law that we have on the statute books.
These men worked very effectively and honestly to come up with a
voting rights bill that would be applicable in every one of the
fifty states. 2nd any man or any group of men; such as Jim
Martin and the oﬁhers; who take this approach; in no way, no

ORI\
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way, are the kind of segregationists that you are imp
onists%®
0 . |

MR, NOVAK: There are different kinds of segrega




REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; there are all kinds of
liberals, there are all kinds of radicals.

MR. NOVAK: So you would campaign f£for them.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: If they follow the basic principles
of the Republican Party, and if they are willing to adhere to,
as we have; the philesophy of the Republican Party as I know ii:.~i~
I think the burden is on them.~-~32 would campaign for a
Republican in Alabama or any other state of the Union.

MR, AGRONSKY: Would regard all of the Republican candidates
in the South as men for whom you could campaign no matter what
their position is on segregation?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well; Mari:in; we hope to have a full
slate of candidates in all of the Southern states. I don’t know
them all; so I cannot categorically answer that guestion. But
let me turn the coin over; if I may.

MR. AGRONSRY: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I go and campaign in some of our
large metropolitan areas for more or less liberal Republican
candidates, candidates who are more liberal than I. Should
I be criticized for doing that any more than I should be
critidzed for doing it in the South?

What I am trying to say is the Republican Party has to
elect more Republi.cans; and in some areas of the country liberal
Republicans will be eleci:ed; and in some areas of the country

conservative Republicans will be elected.
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m@ NOVAK: Do you equite the liberal Republicans with
the segregai:ionist:s; then?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: 1 don't understand the question.

MR, NOVAK: VYou are putting the liberal Republicans and
the segregationists in the same basket.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well , as long as the liberal
Republican and the conservative Republican believe in the basic
principles of the Republican Party; I believe they are Republicans;
and I think we ought to dect Republicans -~ period.

MR. AGRCNSKY: Will you hold on for a second, Congressman.
We will follow up in a minukte. There aremany more things
we would like to ask you.

We will resume the questioning in a moment.

MR. AGRONSKY: Congressman Ford; yesterday the
Republican Party in South Carolina held a conwention. It was
lily whii:e; not a single Negro was there. Do you approve of
that, sir?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think the best amswer to i:hai:;
Martin , is that last £all I was invited to speak to a Republican
luncheon in Natchez , Mississippi.; and unfartunately that luncheon
in effect excluded any Negro participation. I had to cancel out;
and I think my decision was right.

I have appeared at luncheons and dinners on behalf of the

Republican Party in many Southern states where there werg ﬂ_‘/
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My segregated Republican audiences.

I certa:m ly believe that the Republ:.can Party ought to include
in the South, as well as in the North, individuals from all
segments of our soc:.ei:y, whites as well as Negroes, as Tong
as they believe in the philosophy of the Republican Party.

And where there is a delibevate exclusion of one segment of
our socie'i:y; then I think the Republican Party ought to take a
hard look at whether they should participate.

MR . AGRONSKY: What’s wrong in South Carolina?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: From what I know about :i.i:; I do not
know whether they specifically excluded them. Bukt if they di.d;
if they precluded Negrces from pari:icipati.on; Negroes who
wanted to myticipate , then I think they made & mistake.

MR ., SCHOUMACHER: Mr. Ford , the other day you said that you
did not play to be minority leader forever; that you hope to
become majority leader or step down. Have you set a date for
youz ret:i.rement; or do you plan to become majority leader pretty
soon?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I:think the prospecis, Dave, are
getting betiter and better for the Republicans to make significant
gains in the House ¢f Representatives. At the moment I do not
think the prospects are such that we can look forward to a majority
in the House. But public opinion today is rapidly swinging away

from the Johnson-Humphrey Admm.si:ration, and there is grga/ﬁét” (/

_r,
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and greater Republican support throughout the country.
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the Administration’s credibility erodes in the next few months
as it has in the last few months; there is a distinct possibility
the Republicans will gain control in the House.
I happen to think we are laying a good groundwork; we
are getting good candidates; we are better organized; we are more
unified , and the Democrats are losing credibility; they are
disorganized; and I think the American people are getiting
sympathetic to the kind of a program and the candidates we are
cfering.
MR, SCHOUMACHER: VYou said once there you were going to pick
up 30 voﬁes; and then it became 40 votes; and now it is almost
50 vrées. What is happening? We don’t see any evidence of it.
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: ‘Well; let me tell you the evidence is
pretty clear if you just look at the various opinion polls
throughout the country. The President and the Democratic
Administration has lost 3 to 3.5 percent nationwide. The
Republicans have gained a caf;esponding amount of public support.
And as this pendulum swings away from the Johnson-Humphrey
Administration to the Repﬁblicans; it automatically means
that we are going o pick up moxe and more seats in the House
and in the Senate.
MR . SCHOUMACHER: Is it Vielnam that is making it swing?
REPRESENTATIVE FCRD: I have not analyzed just what the
issue is; except that on the domestic scene the Administration‘s'

failure to do anything about the increase in {he cost of living,
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the Administration’s failure to recognize the dangers of
inflation and the distinct probability and possibility
if the inflation gets worse we are going to have a recession

is the one thing that on the domestic scene very much worries

the American people.

: B
MR. AGRONSKY: Centlemen, I am very sorry, but our time

is up. Thank you, Congressman Ford, for being here to FACE

THE NATION.
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Brubeker: This election year, Republicans, poinkdng %o rising consumer prices and hesvy
spending for the var in Vietnam, believe inflation will be a key isswe, the minority

is trying te cut back Administretion programs emd 1f it fails it plams te complain to
the people about what it considers reckless Administration fiseal policies. luch of the
attention is foeued on the House, where this week the GOP almest succesded in killing
appropristions for the Administrations Teasher Corp and Rent Supplement Frograms. This
weeoks guest on From the People is the House of Representative Re ublican leader, Gersld
Ford of Mishipgan.

. Congressmen Ford, how do you assess Repub ican chences te ocut baek seme of these
Administration programs?

FORD: Vell we are alvays hepeful but this pask week we were disappointed
beoatise the Administration from the Fresident on down did so much and made such a big
ef 'ort to twist arms and brow-best Comocrats thet we got very, very little help from
Demoerstie mewmbers of the House im trying to xkwk eliminate = pwgram that over a
period of years would cost alvest 500 million deliars. The so called rent subsidy
program. ¥e are golng to keep trying because as Republisens we feel the best way to

back on non military spending amd if we canm eut back non

House feels that one way te tackle the problem of the
to have ancther wertime tax inereases I don't ses any
| if the Congress, with the help of the Presiieat,
would meke eertain reductions the kind of reductions thet would relieve the pressure
in the ares of inflation. But unfortunately the President tekss the other tack, he
wants to spend as much ss he proposed and in order to do that the Fresidsmt spparentdy
frels that thers should be additienal taxes to finance these expenditures,

“hanbers: Do you belisve these suggestions the President mede the other dey of a 6=7%
tax inerease is merely an ineentive for business men te velunterily slov domm the eecnomy?
Do you think it's & threat to the business comrunity? . /a0 N\




FORD: It eertainly hes that prospect. But it seems that we ought to tiy the
effort and maks a big effort te reduce expenditures first. I think the White House is
taking the cart before the horse and it would seem to me thet these threats of additionmal

taxes that come from President Jehnson could have a very unfortumate resction beceuse
vhat it does 1s to unsettle our ecenomy generally, it tend:s to upset the plans of
industry and gommunities te underteke projeets and programs that ere simed at building s
solid se-nomy for the future. I think it is unfertunste alse that the President is

¢alling upon comwunities, business end individuals te cut back on spending and the White
Houge, under his leadership, is eppanding our nen military expend itures to the extend of

ebout 3 billion 200 million dollers in the next fiseal ymar, This double standard
confused me eand I think the White Eouse ought to be condemned for it.

Chemberst Do you think then that the veluntary cocling down of the econcmy es it's
oallad at the te House mekes sense.

FORDy I certainly do not.

Eleazert Nr, Ford, is it the intention of the Republicans in the House to eppose spending

on other great society programs during the year as it did this past week on Rent
Subsidies and the Tescher Corps?

FORDs I think we will general’y teke that approach Frank. We were certaihly
a little dissppointed thi: past week when we didn't get much eooperation from the
Demoorats in the House, very limited effort by the Domoerate te eut back non military
spending but this shouldn't prevent Republicans from msking attacks when the oprortunity
presents itsslf to hold the line or defer or todfeat proposals for some of the great
sooiety programs in the menths ehead,

Eleazer: Vell how then do you amswer the Demoeratie charge that Republisans in the House
are trying to lead the cost of the war onto the people least able te affeord it, the poor?

FORDs é’m‘t think thet s a legitimate charge by the Demoorates, because if we
spend all that szmmhuwm&umu-umﬁnuqmly
want us to spend for non military progrems and projects, we are going to !ave wgrse and
worse inflation and certainly inflation hurts the poor more thanm anything slse., 4nd it
hurts the poor in big cities so our snaswer to them is, if you really want to help the
people least sble to pay, we better meke a maximum effort te cut back on mon military
expenss, we'd better do something sbout inflation right eway.

Bleszer® The President pointed out this past week that he himself 'ad made sharp
reductirng in the budget and pointed out that he had proposed ebout almost a billien
dollars in euts in various programs which x the Congress spparently intends te put back.
One of those cuts was in the aid to ilmpacted school areas. Vhy was it this weok that
the Republiceans in the House did not suprort a move to support that out?

FORD: Well I'm sure you remember Frank that on the floor of the House it was
a Republican, Frank Bow, the senlor Republican on the Committee of Ap: ropriations, who
offered an amendment to suppert Fresident Johnson's budget to hold the line en the impact
school aid program.

Eleazer! Very few ormr-mnMawuiﬁ ¥r. Bow on that.




FORDE I supperted that and I think the majority of supvort in this area came
from our side of the nisle. The enly one who spoke agsinst the program wes a Democret,
acousing the President of unfairly redusing the expenditures in this areas So I think
Republicans in this partieular instamce wers consistent as I ho e we'll be econsistent
in the months sheads

Brubster® Congre sman Ford, ars we in inflation right now?

FORD: There is no doutt sbout it. Tendays or two weeks ago the bureau of
labor statistios announced thet the wholesale prise indest went wp 7% in the month of
Fobrusry and if you anslyse thet inecrease it indiestes that the wholssale price index
will go up over 67 in a 12 month periods In the last four m nths i1t's gone wp almost 5%
as I recall and this is unfortumate because over & peried of 6 or 7 years the wholesdlle
price indsx had been relstively steble and then this past week the buresu of labor
statistles snnounced that the consumer price inde® went up «8i for the largest inerease
ginee 1961 in the menth of February end of course last year under the JohusoneHumphrey
adminkstration the gost of living went up 2% and under thelr own forecest for the year of
1866 the cost of living will geo up at least 5% and undoubte ly more, 5o we are in ine
Tlation, vartime inflation right now and unless the Administration does something
affirmatively and efiectively more thmn they heve done the people least able to get through
the problems %= of inflation will be hit the werst amd I think the President has & major
respongibility right now to do something ebout inflation. He has 't done much so far,

Brubsker: Well if the President has a responsibility and if he doesn’t take this
responsibility as you ses it and if Repurlicems fear they won't be able to cut back some
of these programs, why don't you intkeducs them some tax reduction legi:lation?

FORDs I don't think we should introduce tax reduction legislation ...
Brubeker? Increase, eXcuse Meeess

PORDs The Republicams would prefer and I think rightly so, to reduwse non
military e xpengs. We can gongentrate our efforts in this area eand we could mchiewve
results in this erea 1f we got some cooperation and I underline some from the White House.
So far we have gotten little. Let's try the reduction of non military expenditures first
and do it right now. As a metter of fuet, the Fresidemt himself with the money thet
Congre s apiropristed last yesr if he didn't want to spend it wouldn't have te spend it.

He oan refuse to spend funds thet Congress has apprepristed If he really believes that some
of these programs cen be held dack, oould be defersed. A1l I see is centinuous spsnding
in non military srea by the administration, by the Presidemt, by the Fhite Fouse and I

think it is unforgivable reslly that we aren't getting any ecooperation from them in holiing
the line in this area.

Chewberss ire. Ford, the Pregsident has talked avout eivil rights at various times, but
he's been rather slow in getiing his messege up heres Do you think he sort of put eivil
rights in the back of the bus?

; FORD: Well it locks %o me John as tho th
the White House and the Depteof J.stice in putting together
what we understood was to be the administration progrem
1t's appropriste to note that sk least a month age 25 Repub
sentatives put together a proposed eivil rights bill and
House hasn't done anything about it, the Demoeratie ,
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has dome nothing sbout i%, I can't understand what the delay is. I think one of the
problems is, however, that after Congress passed the voting rights bill in 1566

snd afber we had passed the eivil rightse ot of 1964 there is considerable soncern
thet the Depts of Justice has relatively sat on its hands, that there has not been
the kind of administration of those two major laws that the Dept. of Jubtice should
have done mores lYaybe they have a little yullty conseience, I don't kmow sbout the
lack of initietive on the basis of the toels they already have.

Brubakert 4Ape you charging the Administration as dragging its feet .in the area of
oivil rights and this possibly may be an issue this election yesr?

FORDs It sesms to meny people on the Republican side of the aisle that the
Administration has dragred its feet in the administration of legisletion which they
already have.

Charbers? M¥r, Ford in that comneetion th: Republican Party seems to be goming up with
quite a few congressicnal ¢ andidates in southern states who are segregationista.

Some of them seem to have pretty good prespeets of beinz elected. Is this going to
embarrass ths Hepublisan Farty nationally?

FORDy Let me teke the brond subjeet because I think it is very impertant
for us to disouss here as well ms elsevheres The Republiean Party in thres states in
1964 elected 7 very good members of the House in areas thet had fermerly beem
represented by the ‘emeoratic Party., I em told that those Republican candidates
ren on basie lssues, federal power, expsnsion of the federal govermment in Washin ten,
the areas of fiseal responsibility, they dida't run on the issue of mee relation,
How, it is aprroproate to point out snd it was noted by one
Alabeme delegation from the Republican Farty that twe of the most avowed segregaticnists
in the state of Ala., one of the I think was Sherrif in seme Ala. wanted te rm ss &
Republican and the Republicen party in Ala. turned him dowm, another ons o men
who rot into some diffieulty last year or the year before with the Dept. of Justice
I think 1t was in Birmingham he wanted te on

¢

o ,
party with a rather broad bese and they are getting good eandidstes whe are not rumning
on thelr race issue but are running in these forth gonming elections on broader
issues thet invelve our national ssourity snd on domsstiv problems as a wholes

Chemmers: Congressmen Ford, do you believe in Flying Seuveers and little green men?

FORD: John, 1l I inow is thet a number of people throughout the e-untry
in 1966 and a number of pesple in years gone by have honestly believed that they have
sighted unidentified flying objects. There are emough of these rsported sishtings,
I believe, to justify s full sosle investigation by & eongressionsl comsittee at such
a congressional investigation it would be pomsible for the alr feree or other faderal
agencies to put on the record for the benefit of the publis what they Inow about
these alledzed sightings. 4nd those psople who have believed in sll sineerity, they have
nede these sightings they ought to come down te VWashingten before a congfessicnal
hearing and tsll the pubd what they imow about it and them the publis willhave an
opportunity tes valuate the peaition of the sir foree and other federal agencies and
the public willhave en oppertunity to evaluate the people who contend and alldge they
have sighted these ufos. ‘ean aseure you of this, that the American people are ‘“‘”‘“1
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the Americen people are concorned and somebody owes the American people the
op ortunity to ot a fullinvestigation for the bensfit of the nation as & whole.

Charberse But aren't you zoing te get alot of eye witnesses down here then, litile
old ladies who verhaps have ssugers landing in their back garden and the men come out
end talk to them? W¥e had en eye witness from Tulsa who sald, yes, there was the man
in the ¥wmgikx kheki uniform with the chevrons on his sleeve whooams out. Aren’t you
going to pet all these people down here?

FPORD: I mow John there are a nusber of people who have made some statements
that are ¢ ertainly, border on the ineredible. I've had some telephone ealls in fuet
I got one the other night, about 1:30 or 2 o'clock chen I was sound aslesp this
individuel called me and told me about his or her experience. I'm sure there ars
those that would fall in to the ares of some degree of unreliability but I add, there
are & number of people whose eredibvility I will net challenge until they hewes had an
oprortunity te present their case before s congressional heering. One of the major
neticnwide megazines in the last week had gquite a story and they wade some finding or
they presented some pictures ~ let me assure the publis that this isn't geing to pass
out of existerge and the sooner the Congress grabs the thing and teckels it and gives
the publie the op ortunity to get the faots the better off we'll all be.

mhl:ﬂ Congressmen, why do you beslieve the Air Foree is withholding this infore
mation

FOiD: I've never said t he Air Foree is withholding information. I think the
Air Foree has tended to give the impression that all of these sightings hed no
eredivility at all., Haybe the 4ir Foree is ri ht, I don't really koow. But I think
the way te find out end the way for the American people to pass judgment is Br
responsible fofiiglals and the Dept. of Defense to come up and sive their interpretatior
before the imerican peeples If they do that then he ‘mericen people themselves

-mmpm.wuuworm of those whe have seen the UFOs and those who say
they don't exist.

Eleagers lir, Ford, simce your election last year as Republican lezder of the House,
you have traveled so muchthst some of your members have complained hat maybe you
ought te spend a little more time at home. ¥What are you wp to?

FORD: Fran, le* me set t he record straight. I did travel a great deal in
1865 on behalf of the Republicam Farty but let me add this, I had an 897 attendense
: of the House for all rele calls and I think that's a pretty goud
batting e verage and in 1066 I've been in 16 or 17 states butegein I've had an
attendence record of about 86% and I'1]l mateh that record with almost anybodyhn
the House of Representatives in 1966 or in 1968,

Eleager! The last time I had checked you had made sbout 208 trips to spesk to various
Republican organiszetions, I believ in almost every state in the union., The bst fellow
that travelled that much on behelf of t he Republicans turned out to be southern hinself
as well as the party snd he wound up as a Republicenendidate in 1964 - eould you be

doing something like that?

FORD: Fromk, th,t's the last objective I have in mind because I'm very
happy with my responsibility in the House, I enjoy being a congressmen from the 5th
Congressional Dist. in ¥ichigam, my sele cbjective is %o help us elect 208 Republicen

o




membere to the House of Representatives in 196€ and one way you do it is te go out
throughout the eountry to stimmlate Republican setivities, to get Reppblicans good
attractive young Republicans to run for publie offise and to help rsise money so we can
appropristely and properly fineme goodeandidstes amix in the Republican Farty,

Eleager! Vhat do you think your prespects sre in eleocting those 218 Republicans?

PORD: They heve improved drametieally in the last 80-80dys, the Republican Farty
in honest opinion will eleot between 40 ané 50 Republicans over the number we have
at go present times Now there are others whe think we'll elect §0 or more Republi: ans
in 1966, it may be the case, If the present trend continues, There is 2 prospeet that
we'll do better then 50 but as of the moment with the President's perularity dropping off
and the Demoeratie Party popularity falling off the Republicen Perty aining in the pells
generally I think our prespects are improving slmest daily.

Eleager: Hr, Ford, if you haven't been talking sbout yourself as President at all these
mestin- with Republicens sround the courtry whe have you beentalking about, or who have
you heard other Republicans talk a bout?

FOEDs Frask I have beesn talking about the Republicen Party and the need for the
Republiean Farty to gain congressional e nd semstorisl seats in 1966 and when I'm asked the
question who my favorite is for Republican nomination in 1968 I say thet unless ws make

sirnificant gains to restore some competitive balange in the House of Representatives
and the Senate we will have & hard time findin: e good e=ndidate *88 but if we make t he
kind of gains that will restore this competitive balsmoe in ths Congress then we'llhaveno
diffioulty in finding a Republicsn ¢ endidete for the Fresidnmey in 1968

o .
Brubsker: Congressman Ford while you hecen't expressed any fevorite candidates for 1968
last week after the Republic an goordimting eem ittes met in ¥ashington Barry Gold water
seld if the convention were held today Hichard Nixon would get the nominstion. Do yéu
agres with that?

B

, FORD: 1 think there is a good prospect that this is an ae curete statement as of now,
but certainly there are two other very good ¢ andidates who are well talked about and
well thou ht of suchss my own gowrnor, Coverner George “omney of Michigan and the Cov,
of Penca., Bll Sorsnton. These throe are sertainly the ones that ere discussed most
fro%u’::ﬂy at the present tive. There may be others that will eoms forth after the elestiond
of .

Brubakert Last wesk a Senate sub-comaittee revealed that because of our military
committmants there in Vietnam four U.S, Army divisions hers in the United States were

suffering. Dees it appear that we are committing ourselves too heavily snd thet we are
suffering elsowhere militarily?

FOrDs Well the Republiemm in both the House and the Senate have raised gusstions for
the last year whether the ‘entagon or whether Seo. Nachamre were cutting back the
militaryeapebility of some of our other military components in order to live up to the
comnittments the President Johnson ied made in south Vietnem and now this Semate oommittee
which is both Demoerst and Repiblican tends to confirm whet a number of Republicans alledged
in 1965 and partly in 1966, The-e is ne doubt that under the Presiden't comuittement of
235,000 U.8, military personell to Vietnam thews has to be some drain on our military capaidj
elsevhere end the senate comsittee report confirms thate
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Brubsker: Well then Congressmen Ford, whet would be the answer to that, peossibly
%o increase the draft Yo sctivet: the reserves or the hational guard?

FORDs If the President is going to expand our military committment in Vietnam
undou:-tedly there willhave to be an increase in the militery menpower in the army,
navy and alr ferce. Until we know more about President Johnson's plans in Yietnam
I would hesitate to make any forecmst of vhat our everall military man power needs
might be and if I can't do that, I ean't telll you whether we'll ineresse the draft
or whether wa'll eall upon the reserves.

Hleazert lir, Ford, has the time gome at last vhenwe must fsoe up to the necessity
of admitting Red China to the United Netiona?

FORDs I don't think so Ffenk, The Red Chinese have shown no change from their
belligerent, acressive bterroristic attitude, they are still mainly supporting
agerossion in Vietnem, they are distainful of the United Nations, they are trouble
makers all over the world. Under this, these eircumstances with this attitude, I
don't see how the United Netions eould pessibly admit Red China into that orgenization.
if theywere to chenge heart, if they were to proeve by their setions that they were

pease lo nation, then there migzht be some argument for a change by this country
and by others in the United Nations. But under eurrent circumstances with the

e the terror, the sggression Eed China cortainly doesn't deserve to be a

- tion.
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Moderators: Herb Brubeker

Panelists John Chambers, Washington Bureeu Chief of UPI Audio Network and
Frank Eleazer, UPI Chief Correspondent in the House of Repressentatives.

Brubaker:s This election year, Republicans, poinfing to rising consumer prices and heavy
spending for the war in Vietnam, believe inflation will be a key issue, the minerity

is trying to cut back Administration programs and if it fails it plans to complain to
the people about what it considers reckless Administration fiscal policies. luch of the
attention is focued on the House, where this week the GOP almost suecceeded in killing
appropriations for the Administrations Teacher Corp and Rent Supplement Programs. This
weeks guest on From the Psople is the House of Representative Rerublican leader, Gersld
Ford of Michigan.

Congressman Ford, how do you assess Repubocican chances to cut back some of these
Administration programs?

FORD: 1iell we are always hopeful but this pask week we wsre disappointed
because the Admihistration from the President on down did so much and made such a big
effort to twist arms and brow-bezt Democrats that we got very, very little help from
Democratisc members of the House in trying to mimk eliminate a pmgram +that over a
period of years would cost almost 500 million dollars. The so called rent subsidy
program. We are going to keep trying because as Republicans we feel the best way to
fight inflation is to cut back on non military spending and if we can cut back non
military spending we canavbid war time texes which the President undoubtedly will
recormend to the Congress in order to tackle the proplem of inflatione

Chamberst Congressmen Ford, do you see any excuse for the Administration raising texes
agein this year?

FORD: Of course the White House feels that one way to tackle the problem of the
increase in the cost of living is to have another wartime tax inocreases. I don't see any
wxcuse for it at the present time, if the Congress, with the help of the President,
would make certain reductions the kind of reductions that would relieve the pressure
in the area of inflation. But unfortunately the President tekes the other tack, he
wants to spend as much as he proposed and in order to do that the Fresident apparentiy
fcels that there should be additional taxes to finance these expenditurese

Chambers: Do you believe these suggestions the President made the other day of a 5=7%
tax increase is merely an ineentive for business men to voluntaridy slow domn the economy?
Do you think it's a threat to the business community?
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¢+ - FORD: It certainly has that prospect. But it seems that we ought to try the

effort and make a big effort to reduce expenditures first., I think the White House is
taking the cart before the horse and it would seem to me that these threats of additional
taxes that come from President Johnson could have a very unfortumate reaction because
what it does is to unsettle our economy generally, it tends to upset the plans of
industry and comrunities to underteke projeots and progrems that are aimed at building g
solid economy for the future. I think it is unfortunete also that the President is
calling upon comnunities, business and individuals to cut back on spending and the White
House, under his leadership, is eppanding our non military expenditures to the extend of
about 3 billion 200 million dollars in the next fiseal yamar. This double standard
confused me and I think the White House ought to be condemned for ite

Chembers: Do you think then that the voluntary cooling down of the economy as it's
called et the “hite House makes sense.

FORD: I certainly do not.

Eleazer: lre Ford, is it the intention of the Republicans in the House to eppose spending
on other great society programs during the year as it did this past week on Rent
Subsidies and the Teacher Corps?

FORD: I think we will generally teke that approach Frank. We were certaihly
a little disappointed this past week when we didn't get much cooperation from the
Democrats in the House, very limited effort by the Democrats to cut back non military
spending but this shouldn't prevent Republicans from msking attacks when the opportunity
presents itself to hold the line or defer or todefeat proposals for some of the great
society programs in the months aheads

BEleazer: Well how then do you answer the Democratic charge that Republicans in the House
are trying to load the cost of the war onto the people least able to afford it, the poor?

FORD: I don't think thatls a legitimate charge by the Democratss, hecause if we
spend all that the President wants us to spend and the Usmocrate s in the House apparently
want us to spend f'or non military progrems end projects, we are going to lave wqrse and
worse inflation and eertainly inflation hurts the poor more than anything else. And it
hurts the poor in big cities so our answer to them is, if you really want to help the
people leaet able to pay, we better make a meximum effort to cut back on non military
expense, We'd better do something about inflation right away.

Eleazer: The Fresident pointed out this past week that he himself had made sharp
reductions in the budget and pointed out that he had propesed about almest a billion
dollars in cuts in various progrems which w the Congress apparsently intends to put backe.
One of those cuts was in the aid to impacted school areas., Why was it this weeck that
the Republicans in the House did not support a move to support thet out?

FORD: Well I'm sure you remember Frank that on the floor of the House it was
a Republican, Frank Bow, the senior Republican on the Committee of Aprropriations, who

offered an amendment to support Fresident Johnson's budget to hold the line on the impact
school aid program,

Eleazer: Very few of your members went along with Mre Bow on that.
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.FORD@ I supported that and I think the majority of support in this area came
from our side of the aislee The only ons who spoke against the progrem was a Democrat,
acousing the President of unfairly reducing the expenditures in this areas So I think
Republicans in this particular instence were consistent as I hore we'll be consistent
in the months aheads

Brubaler® Congre-sman Ford, are we in inflation right now?

FORD: There is no doubt about it. Tendays or two weeks ago the bureau of
lebor statistics announced that the wholesale price indem went up 7% in the month of
February and if you analyse that increase it indicates that the wholesale price index
will go up over 6% in a 12 month period. In the last four months it's gone up almost 5%
as I recall and this is unfortumate because over a period of 6 or 7 years the wholesdle
price index had been relatively stable and then this past week the bureau of labor
statisties announced that the consumer price indez® went up «5% for the largest inecrease
since 1951 in the month of February and of course last year under the Johnson-Humphrey
adminkstration the cost of living went up 2% and under their own forecast for the year of
1966 the cost of living will go up at least 3% and undoubte ly more. So we are in in-
Tlation, wartime inflation right now and unless the Administration does something
affirmatively and etfisctively more &han they have done the people least able to get through
the problems ixm of inflation will be hit the worst and I think the President has a major
responsibility right now to do something about inflation. He hasn't done much so far.

Brubaker: Well if the President has a major responsibility and if he doesn't take this
responsibility as you see it and if Republicans fear they won't be able to cut back some
of these programs, why don't you intboeduce them some tex reduction legislation?

FORD: I don't think we should introduce tex reduction legislation ..
Brubaker?! Increase, eXcusSe MEsoss

FORD: The Republicans would prefer and I think rightly so, to reduce non
military e xpense. We can doncentrate our efforts in this area and we could achieve
results in #%his area if we got some cooperation and I underline some from the White Houses
So fer we have gotten little. Let's try the reduction of non military expenditures first
and do it right now. As a matter 6f fact, the President himself with the money that
Congress appropriated last year if he didn't want to spend it wouldn't have to spend it.
He can refuse to spend funds that Congress has appropriated ff he reslly believes that soms
of these programs can be held back, could be defereeds All I see is continuous spsnding
in non military area by the administration, by the President, by the White House and I

think it is unforgivable really thet we aren't getting any cooperation from them in holding
the line in this area.

Chembers: Mre Ford, the President ihas talked about eivil rights at various times, but

Be's been rather slow in getting his message up heres Do you think he sort of put eivil
rights in the back of the bus?

s FORD: Well it looks to me John as tho they must be having some trouble down at
the White House and the Dept.of Justice in putting together a bill to carry out
wh%t we understood was to be the administration program in area of e¢ivil rights. L think
it s appropriate to note that at least a month ege 25 Republicans in the How e of Repre=-
sentatives put together a proposed civil rights bill and it has been introduced, the White
House hasn't done anything about it, the Democratic Control Committee on the Judig%ggx
£ 42X
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has done nothing sbout it, I can't understand what the delay is. I think one of the
‘problems is, however, that after Congress passed the voting rights bill in 1966

and after we had passed the civil rightse ot of 1964 there is considersble concern
that the Depte of Justice has relatively sat on its hands, that there has not been
the kind of administration of those two major laws that the Depte of Justiece should
have done more. lMaybe they have a little guilty conscience, I don't know about the

lack of initiative on the basis of the tools they already haves.

Brubaker: 4&re you charging the Administration as dragging its feet in the area of
eivil rights and this possibly may be an issue this election year?

FORD: It sesms to many people on the Republicen side of the sisle that the
Administration has dregred its feet in the administration of legislation which t hey
already have.

Chembers: Mre Ford in that conneetion the Republican Party seems to be coming up with
quite a few congressicnal ¢ andidates in southern states who are segregationists.

Some of them seem to have pretty good prospects of being eleecteds Is this going ‘o
embarrass the Republicen Party nationally?

FORD: Let me take the broad subjeot because I think it is very important
for us to disouss here as well as elsewhere. The Republican Party in three states in
1964 elected 7 very good members of the House in areas that had formerly been
represented by the Lsmeorgtiec Partys I am told that those Republican candidates
ren on basic issues, federal power, expansion of the federal govermment in Washin-ton,
the areas of fimcal responsibility, they didn't run on the issue of race relation.
Now, it is approproate to point out and it was noted by one of the membe s of the
Alabama delegation from the Republican Party that two of the most avowed segregationists
in the state of Ala., one of the I think was Sherrif in some Ala. wanted to run as a
Republican and the Republican party in Ala, turned him down, another one of the men
who rot into some difficulty last year or the year before with the Depte of Justice
I think it was in Sirmingham he wented “o run on the Republican ticket in #la. and the
Republicen party in Ala. turned him downs The Republican Party in 4la. and the other
southern states in my judgment from what I hear about it is trying to build up the
party with a rather broad base and they are getting pgood candidates who are not running
on their race issue but are running in these forth coming elections on broader
issues that involve our national seourity and on domestiv problems as & wholee

Chamners: Congressman Yord, do you believe in Flying Seucers and Little green men?

FORD: John, all + know is that a number of people throughout the country
in 1966 and a number of people in years gone by have honestly believed that they have
sighted unidentified flying objects. There are enough of these reported sightings,
I believe, to justify a full scale investigation by a congressional committes at such
a congressional investigation it would be possible for the air foree of other federal
agencies to put on the record for the benefit of the public whet they know about
these alledged sightings. And those people who have believed in all sincerity, they have
nmade these sightings they ought to come down to Washington before a congfessional
hearing and tell the public what they know about it and then the public willhave an
opportunity to e valuate the position of the air foree and other federal agencies and
the public willhave an opportunity to evaluate the people who contend and alldge they
have sighted these ufose lcqn assure you of this, that the American people are interestec
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the American people are concerned and somebody owes the American people the
oprortunity to ret a fullinvestigation for the benefit of the nation as a whodes
Cherberse But aren't you going to get alot of eye witnesses down here then, little
0ld ladies who perhaps have sausers landing in their back garden and the men come out
and talk to them? We had an eye witness from lTulsa who said, yes, there was the man
in the kmgiix khaki uniform with the chevrons on his sleeve whocame out. Aren't you
going to get all these people down here?

FORD: I know John there are a number of people who have made some statements
that are c ertainly, border on the ineredible. I've had some telephone calls in fuct
I got one the other night, about 1:30 or 2 o'clock chen I was sound asleep this
individual called me and todld me about his or her experisence. I'm sure there are
those that would fall in to the area of some degree of unreliability but I add, there
are a number of people whose ecredibility I will not challenge until they hawe had an
opportunity to present their case before a congressional hearing. One of the major
nationwide magazines in the last week had quite a story and they made some finding or
they presented some pictures - let me assure the publie that this isn't going to pass
out of existence and the sooner the Congress grabs the thing and tecksls it and gives
the public the opprortunity to get the facts the better off we'll all be.

Brubefer: Congressman, why do you believe the Air Foree is withholding this infor-
metion?

FORD: I've never saidt he Air Foree is withholding information. I think the
Air Forece has tended to give the impression that all of these sightings had no
eredibility at all. liaybe the Air Force is richt, I don't really know. But { think
the way to find out and the way for the American people to pass judgment is for
responsible lofficials and the Depts of Defense to come up and give their interpretation
before the American peoples If they do that then the Americen people themselves
will judgethe credibility of the, of those who have seen the UFOs and those who say
they don't exist.

Bleazer: Mr, Ford, since your election last year as Republican leader of the House,
you have traveled so muchthst some of your members have compleined that maybe you
ought te spend a little more time at home., What are you up to?

FORD: Fran, let me setthe record straight. I did travel a great deal in
1965 on behalf of the Republicen Party but let me add this, I had an 89% attendance
record on the fleor of the House for all role calls and I think that's a pretty goad
batting a verage and in 1966 I've been in 16 or 17 states but ggain I've had an
attendence record of about 86% and 1'1]1 match that record with almost anybodyin
the House of Reprosentatives in 1965 or in 1966,

Eleazer: The last time I had checked you had made about 208 trips to speak to various
Republican organizations, I believ in almost every state in the union. ZThe st fellow
that travelled that much on behalf of t he Republicans turned out to bs southern himself
as Well as the party and he wound up as & Republicaneandidate in 1964 = could you be
doing something like that?

FORD: Frank, th;t's the last objective L have in mind beoause I'm very

happy with my responsmblthy in +the House, I enjoy being a congressmen fr thg\ﬁyh
Congressional Diste in Michigen, my sole objective is to help us slect 2 ﬁepubf@&an

{?ﬁLo
AL

-

o



members to the House of Representatives in 1966 and one way you do it is to go out
throughout the country to stimulate Republican activities, to get Reppblicans goed
attractive young Republicans to run for publie office and to help raise money so we can
appropriately and properly finance goodcandidates amix in the Republican Partye

Eleazer® What do you think your prospects are in electing those 218 Republicans?

FORD: They have improved dramatieally in the last 60-90days, the Republican Party
in my honest opinion will elect between 40 and 50 Republicans over the number we have
at the present time. Now there are others who think we'll elect 50 or more Republic ans
in 1966, it may be the case. If the present trend continues. There is a prospect that
we'll do better than 50 but as of the moment with the President's porularity dropping off
and the Democratic Party popularity falling off the Republican Party gaining in the polls
generally I think our prospeets are improving almost daily.

Eleazer: Mre Ford, if you haven't been talking ebout yourself as President at all these
meetin~ with Republicans around the country who have you beentalking about, or who have
you heard other Republicans talk a bout?

FORD: Frank I have been talking about the Republican Party and the need for the
Republicen Party to gain congressional and senatorial seats in 1966 and when I'm asked the
question who my favorite is for Republicsan nomination in 1968 I say that unless we make

sirnifiocant gains to restore some competitive balance in the House of Representatives
and the Senate we will have & hard time finding a good candidate in '68 but if we make t he
kind of gains that will restore this competitive balence in the Congress then we'llhavsno
diffioculty in finding a Republicanc andidate for the Presidency in 1968.

Brubaker: Congressman Ford while you hacen't expressed any favorite candidates for 1968
last week after the Republic an coordineting com-ittee met in Washington Barry Gold water
seid if the convention were held today Richerd Nixon would get the nomination. Yo you
agres with that?

FORD: I think there is a good prospect that this is an ac ourate statement as of now,
but certainly there are two other very good ¢ andidates who are well talked about amd
wel® thourht of suchas my own governor, Governor George ‘omney of Michigan and the Gove
of Penna., Bikll Soranton. These thrsee are certainly the onesthat are discussed most

frequently at the present time. There may be others that will coms forth after the elections
of 1966,

Brubeker: Last wesk a Senate sub-committee revealedthet because of our military
committmmnts there in Vietnam four U.,5. Army divisions here in the United States were
suffering. Does it appear that we are committing ourselves too heavily and that we are
suffering slsewhere militarily?

FORD: Well the Republimmm in both the House and the Senate have raised questions for
the last year whether the Pentagon or whethe r Seo. Macamara were cutting back the
militaryocapability of soms of our other military components in order to live up to the
comnittments the President Johnson rad made in south Vietnam and now this Senste committee
which is both Demoerat and Republican tends to confirm what a number of Republicans alledged
in 1965 end partly in 1966. There is no doubt that under the Presiden't committement of

235,000 UoSe military personell to Vietnam there has to be some drain on our mi/lita{y capabiilt
elsevhere and the senate committee report confirms thate —; t0RD (\
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Brubaker: Well then Congressman Ford, what would be the answer to that, possibly
to increase the draft to activats the reserves or the hational guard?

FORD: If the President is going to expand our militery committment in Vietnem
undouctedly there willhave to be an inerease in the military menpower in the army,
navy and air foree. Until we know more about President Johnson's plans in Vietnam
I would hesitate to make any forecast of what our overall military man power needs
might be and if I can't do that, I can't telll you whether we'll increase the draft
or whether we'll call upon the reservess

Eleazert lr, Ford, has the time come at last whenwe must face up to the necessity
of admitting Red China to the United Netions?

FORD: I don't think so Ffanks The Red Chinese have shown no change from their
belligerent, agressive terroristic attitude, they are still mainly supporting
agrression in Vietnam, they are distainful of the United Nations, they are trouble
mekers all over the world. Undsr this, these oircumstences with this attituds, I
don't see how the United Nations could possibly admit Red China into that orgehization.
If theywere to change heart, if theywsre to prove by their actions that they were
a peace loving nation, then there might be some argument for a change by this country
and by others in the United Nations. But under current circumstances with the
bellirerensy, the terror, the aggression Red Chinea certainly doesn't deserve to be a
member of the United Nation.
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B RUB AKER: CONGRESSMAN FORD, AS REPUBLICAN LEADER IN THE HOUSE OF

REPRESENTATIVES, DO YOU BELIVE THAT VIETNAM WILL BE THE NUMBER ONE
POLITICAL ISSUE IN THIS ELECTION YEAR?

FORD: IT WOULD APPEAR THAT THE PROBLEMS IN VIETNAM WILL BE MADE THE
MAJOR POLITICAL ISSUE BY THE AMERICAN PEOPLE BETWEEN NOW AND NOVEMBER
8TH. I FEEL THERE IS A GREAT DEAL OF UNCERTAINTY, DISSATISFACTION,
AND THE AMERICAN PEOPLE ARE DEEPLY CONCERNED. AS A RESULT, IT WILL
UNDOUS TEDLY BE THE MAJOR POLITICAL ISSUE ON THE INTERNATIONAL FRONT.
ROGERS : MR.F¥ORD, YOU SAY YOU BELIEVE THE VOTERS WILL MAKE VIETNAM
THE MAJOR ISSUE IN THE UPCOMING ELECTION CAMPAIGN. LET ME ASK YOU,

DO YOU THINK THAT WHETHER THE REPUBLICANS WIN LARGE NUMBERS CF $EATS
OR NOT, WHETHER THIS DEPENDS PRIMARILY UPON THE ISSUE OF VIETNAM?
FORD: NO, I DON!T THINK THE VOTERS DECISIONS ON THE PROS AND CONS,
THE MANAGEMENT OR MISMANAGEMENT, OF THE CONFLICT IN VIETNAM WILL BE
THE DECIDING FACTOR. THERE ARE ENOUGH OTHER ISSUES WARREN,.THAT WILL
CONCERN THE AMERICAN PEOPLEj; THE INCREASE IN THE COST OF LIVING UNDER
THE JOHNSON-HUMPHREY ADMINISTRATION, THE LACK OF CREDIBILITY IN MANY
AREAS, THE NEED ON THE PART OF THE PUBLIC TO RESTORE TWO-PARTY GOV'T
IN AMERICA, THE OTHER AREAS OF MISMANAGEMENT AND LACK OF PROPER ADMIN-
ISTRATION...THESE ARE THINGS THAT WILL ALSO HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

ON THE AMERICAN VOTERS.

ROGERS: LET ME ASK YOU A CRYSTAL BALL QUESTION...WHAT DO YOU THINK IS
GOING TO HAPPEN IN VIETNAM BETWEEN NOW AND THE ELECTION?

FORD: WARREN, I WISH, AS AN AMERICAN, I COULD GIVE YOU AN ANSWER...
AN ANSWER THAT WOULD MEAN THAT THE U.S. WOULD HAVE ACHEIVED AN HONORABLE
PEACE, A PERMANENT SOLUTION, WHICH WOULD PERMIT THE U.S. MILITARY
PERSONNEL TO WITHDRAW, YET LEAVE OUR OVERALL POSITION IN SOUTHEAST ASIA

ONE OF STRENGTH. THIS IS WHAT I HOPE. I BELIEVE THAT OUR AMERICAN POLICY,
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BCOTH MILITARY AND DIPLOMATIC MUST BE AIMED AT THAT OBJECTIVE.
ROGERS: YOU'VE BEEN VERY CRITICAL OF THE MANAGEMENT OF THE WAR. YOU'VE
TALKED ABOUT SHORTAGES, ETC., BLAMED MR. MACNAMARA FOR DOING WHAT YOU
CONSIDER AN INADEQUATE JOB. GIVEN THIS CRITICISM, WHICH YOU®VIOUSLY
BELIEVE, HOd CAN WE HOPE TO ACHEIVE ANY SORT OF SUCCESS TO THE POINT
WHERE WE COULD WITHDRAW FROM VIETNAM?
FORD: EVEN THOUGH I THINK THERE IS CONSIDERABLE EVIDENCE OF WHAT I
HAVE DESCRIBED AS MISMANAGEMENT, SENATOR DIRKSEN HAS DESCRIBED IT
SOMEWHAT DIFFERENTLY, BUT THE SUBSTANCE OF OUR QUESTIONS OR OUR ALLEGAT-
IONS ARE THE SAME. DESPITE THESE MISTAKES IN JUDGEMENT, WHEN YOU
CONSIDER THE FACT THAT SECRETARY MACNAMARA HAS HAD OVER 50 BILLION
DOLLARS A YEAR FOR THE LAST SEVERAL YEARS, AND WHEN YOU CONSIDER THE
FACT .THAT WE HAVE ALL THE OTHER POWNER IN THE ARMY, THE NAVY AND THE
HAIR FORCE, WE'RE BOUND TO BE SUCCESSFUL IF THE PROPER MILITARY MEANS
ARE USED.
ROGERS: SINCE YOU BEGAN YOUR CRITICISM, SECRETARY MACNAMARA HAS COME
BACK AS HE ALWAYS DOES IN A DEBATE, WITH THOUSANDS UPON THOUSANDS OF
STATISTICS., HE TALKS ABOUT BILLIONS OF BULLETS BEING AVAILABLE...
FORD: MOST OF THEM IRREVELANTTO THE G.I. OUT IN THE FIELD.....
ROGERS: NOW ARE YOU STILL FIRMLY CONVINCED TAT HE IS MISMANAGING
THIS WAR AND THE RESULTANT SHORTAGES? HAS HIS ARGUMENT IN ANY WAY
SWAYED YOU FROM YOUR ORIGINAL CRITICISM?
FORD: THE SNOW JOB THAT SECRETARY MACNAMARA GIVES TO THE CONGRESS
AND OTHERS WHEN HE'S QUESTIONED, ....THIS TACTIC ON HIS PART HAS NOT
CONVINCED ME THAT THERE ARE NOT AREAS WHERE A BETTER JOB COULD BE DONE.
THE FINE REPORTER IN SAIGON FOR THE NEW YORK TIMES MADE ALLEGATiONS,OF
MISMANAGEMENT WHEN HE SAID THERE WERE BOMB FUSE SHORTAGES. ’fHE NEW -

THEY WROTE AN EDITORIAL SUPPORTING THEIR REPGRTER AND CONTRADICTED .
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SECRETARY MACNAMARA. THE HOUSE COMMITYTEE ON ARMED SERVICES WHICH IS
A DEMOCRATIC CONTROLLED COMMITTEE, RECENTLY CAME OUT WITH A REPORT,
VERY SEVERELY CRITICIZING SEC. MACNAMARA FOR HIS DECISIONS TO CUT BACK
B-52'S, TO REDUCE B-58'S AND NOT TO MOVE INTO A HIGH PERFORMANCE
STRATEGIC AIR COMMAND AJRCRAFT. I THINK YOU'RE GOING TO FIND AN
ACCUMMULATION OF INSTANCES WHERE THERE HAS BEEN MISMANAGEMENT. LET ME
ADD THIS, THOSE IN THE PRESS LIKE YOURSELF, THE AMERICAN CONGRESS,
THE AMERICAN PEOPLE, HAVE A RESPONSIBILITY TO KEEP THE SPOTLIGHT ON
SECRETARY MACNAMARA AND THE DEFENSE DEPT. FOR ONE SINGLE REASON. WE
HAVE NOW, 240,000 AMERICAN G.I.'S STATIONED IN VIETNAM, ORDERED BY THE
COMMANDER- IN-CHIEF, AND IT'S OUR RESPONSIBILITY, COLLECTIVELY, TO
MAKE SURE THEY GET THE WEAPONS THAT ARE NEEDED ON TIME.
ROGERS: DO YOU THINK THE MISMANAGEMENT OF THE WAR, AS YOU CALL IT,
HAS CAUSED UNNEEDED CASUALTIES AMONG THOSE AMERICANS?
FORD: I WOULD HESITATE TO MAKE THAT ALLEGATION BECAUSE THIS IS A VERY
SERIOUS CHARGE, BUT WHERE THERE ARE SHORTAGES OF NEEDED WEAPONS, I'M
gURE THAT THE MAN IN THE FIELD WHO GOES OUT WITH BOMBS THAT DON'T HAVE
FUSES, HAS MANY, MANY, APPREHENSIVE AS TO THE JOB HE'S ABLE TO DO ON
BEHALF OF OUR COUNTRY.,
BRUBAKER: MR, FORD, HAVE YOU COME UP WITH ANY NEW EXAMPLES OF MIS-
MANAGEMENT?
FORD:+ SINCE MY ORIGINAL CHARGE, THERE HAS BEEN A NUMBER OF OTHERS
WHO HAVE JOINED IN, INCLUDING HOUSE COMMITTEE ON ARMED SERVICES. I
BELIEVE SENATOR STENNIS, ON A MAJOR NETWORK, WHEN ASKED A QUESTION
SAID "THERE IS, AND THERE HAS BEEN, MISMANAGEMENT BY THE DEPT. OF DEFENSEY
I'M CONVINCED THAT AS WE GO DOWN THE ROAD, AND MY MAIL REFLECTS IT WITH
MOTHERS WRITING SAYING THAT THEIR SON DIDN'T HAVE THIS, AND WIVES
WRITING AND SAYING THAT THEIR HUSBANDS DIDN'T HAVE THIS PARTICULAR
WEAPON, OR THIS PART OF A WEAPON, ...THERE IS5 A GROWING ACCUMMULATION

IN AREAS WHERE THERE IS A LEGITIMATE REASON TO CHARGE MISMANAGEMENT.
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I JUST HOPE THEY'RE CORRECTIVE BECAUSE THIS INVOLVES LIVES OF 240,000
AMERICANS WHO PRESIDENT JOHNSON SENT TO VIETNAM LAST YEAR.
BRUBAKER: WHY HASN'T SENATOR DIRKSEN ASKED FOR YOUR INFORMATION ON
THESE MISMANAGEMENT CHARGES? WHY DOES HE CONTINUE TO INSIST THAT HE'LL
RELY ON THE SENATE'S INFORMATION? WHY ISN'T THERE REPUBLICAN UNITY OF
THOUGHT ?
FORD: I CAN ASSURE YOU THAT SENATOR DIRKSEN AND MYSELF HAVE DISCUSSED
THIS MATTER ALONG WITH OTHER REPUBLICAN LEADERS AND IT'S MY FEELING
THAT EVEN THOUGH HE USES DIFFERENT WORDS, AND I WISH I COULD HAVE THE
FLOW OF LANGUAGE THAT HE HAS, THE SUBSTANCE OF OUR ALLEGATIONS AND
QUESTIONS ARE EXACTLY THE SAME. AS HE SAID A WEEK OR SO AGO, AT A
PRESS CONFERENCE, WHERE, 1 SUSPECT, BOTH OF YOU WERE THERE, HE IN
EFFECT, JOINED WIiTH ME, AND I STAYED WITH HIM.
BRUBAKER: WHEN YOU WENT BACK HOME DURING THE EASTER RECESS YOU MUST
DETECTED GROWING UNREST AMONG THE PEOPLE ON VIETNAM POLICIES.
FORD: I THINK THAT'S AN ACCURATE APPRAISAL OF MY OBSERVATIONS IN TALKING
WITH PEOPLE AT HOME ‘DURING THE RECESS . WHEN YOU TALK TO EITHER
DEMQCRATS OR REPUBLICANS, WHGC WERE HOME AT THAT TIME, AND YOU ASK THEM
WHAT THE QUESTIONS WERE THAT THEY WERE ASKED BY THEIR CONSTITUENTS, ALL
OF THEM, OR VIRTUALLY ALL, WERE CONCERNED WITH PROBLEMS OF VIETNAM ,
BRUBAKER: ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THIS ISSUE, SENATOR ROBERT KENNEDY
FEARS GROWING ESCALATION OF THE WAR BECAUSE OF THE INVOLVEMENT OF MIG 21'S
DOG FIGHTS OVER NORTH VIETNAM. DO YOU HAVE ANY EVIDENCE THAT COMMUNIST
CHINA'S AIRCRAFT HAS BEEN INVOLVED IN THESE AIR BATTLES AND DO YOU FEAR
THE POSSIBILITY OF A DIRECT CONFRONTATION BETWEEN THE U.S. AND COMMUNIST
CHINA?
FORD:  THERE APPEARS TO BE EVIDENCE OF COMMUNIST AIRCRAFT. I DON'T KNOW
WHETHER THEY ARE CHINESE BUILT OR SOVIET BUILT. I DON'T KNOW WHETHER

THE PILOTS HAVE BEEN TRAINED IN THE SOVIET UNION OR RED CHINA. THEY ARE
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CERTAINLY AIRCRAFT THAT NORTH VIETNAM COULDN'T BUILD. CERTAINLY THE
PILOTS COULDN'T HAVE BEEN TRAINED IN NORTH VIETNAM. SO THERE IS SOME
INVOLVEMENT FROM EITHER THE SOVIET UNION OR RED G{INA. A VAST MAJORITY
OF GOV'T EXPERTS DO THINK THERE IS NOT A GREA PROBABILITY THAT RED
CHINA WOULD NOT GET INVOLVED IN THIS CONFLICT DIRECTLY. THIS IS WHAT
WE'RE TOLD BY PEOPLE WHO TESTIFY BEFORE THE VARIOUS COMMITTEES.
ROGERS: SINCE THE GULF OF TONKIN INCIDENT A YEAR AND A HALF AGO, THE
RED CHINESE HAVE BUILT FIVE OR SIX NEW AIRFIELDS ON THE PERIMETER OF
NORTHE VIETNAM. THE AIRCRAFT ARE FLYING OUT OF THESE AIRFIELDS FROM
RED CHINA AND I UNDERSTAND THAT THE COMMANDANT CONTROL STRUCTURE,
THE EARLY WARNING SYSTEM, 1S NCW INTEGRATED BETWEEN RED CHINA AND
NORTH VIETNAM. NOW SENATOR KENNEDY ARGUES THAT WHAT HAPPENS IF AIRCRAFT
FLYING OUT OF THESE RED CHINESE BASES SHOULD ATTACK OUR AIRCRAFT FLYING
OVER NORTH VIETNAM, AND UNDER THE DOCTRINE OF HOT PURSUIT, AND WE HAVE SAID
TIME AND AGAIN THERE IS NO SANCTUARY ANY MORE, WHAT HAPPENS IF WE THEN STRIKE
T HOSE AIR BASES AS WE HAVE TO DO IF WE'RE GOING TO FOLLOW THIS HOT PURSUIT
POLICY, THEN THE RED CHINESE COM E BACK AND PERHAPS STRIKE THE TONSANUT (SP)
AIRPORT IN SAIGON? ISN'T THAT AN ESCALATION? IS THERE NO END TO THIS?
WHAT IS YOUR VIEW ON THIS ESCALATION TIT FOR TAT?
FORD: I THINK THERE IS A DISTINCT POSSIBILITY IN THIS AREA THAT YOU'VE
BEEN DESCRIBING THERE COULD BE SOME ADDITIONAL CONFLICT DIRECTLY BETWEEN
THE RED CHINESE AND OURSELVES, PARTICULARLY WHEN SECRETAR' RUSK SAID
SIX OR NINE MONTHS AGO, THERE WOULD BE NO SANCTUARY IF ANOTHER NATION,
AND HE CERTAINLY IMPLIED RED CHINA GOT INTO THIS THING IN A VERY ACTIVE
AND A VERY LARGE WAY, * 3 \
ROGERS: NOW IF THAT'S THE COURSE WE'RE ON, ARE WE GOING TO @é CAUGHT
WILLY-NILLY ON THIS THING AND ROLL DOWN HILL SO TO SPEAK, wﬁﬁk ELSE CAN

T

WE DO....HOW DO WE REVERSE THIS THING?
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FORD: I THINK YOU HAVE TO LOOK AT I FROM THE POINT OF VIEW OF THE INDIV-
IDUAL PILOT OR CREW.THE PRESIDENT, AS COMMANDER IN CHIEF, HAS DECIDED TO
SEND THESE PILOTS TO VIETNAM TO DO A JOB ON OUR BEHALF. WE'VE GIVEN THEM
GOOD WEAPONS, AND THEIR MILITARY LEADERS HAVE DECIDED THAT THEY HAVE
THIS PARTICULAR MISSION OR RESPONSIBILITY. NOW, IF IT'S IMPORTANT FOR
THEIR ONN LIFE PROTECTION, WE HAVE TO GIVE THEM SOME FLEXIBILITY IN MY-
JUDGEMENT .
BRUBAKER: ARE YOU SAYING THIS ISN'T A MATTER TO BE DECIDED HERE IN
WASHINGTON...THE DANGER OF ESCALATING THE WAR?
FORD: I THINK THE OVERALL, YES.  THE PRESIDENT, THE SEC. OF DEFENSE,
AND THE JOINT CHIEFS OF STAFF ASSIGN CERTAIN MISSIONS, THEN THEY HAVE TO
BEAR THE BASIC RESPONSIBILITY OF WHAT THOSE PILOTS HAVE TO DO FOR THE
PROTECTION OF THEIR OWN LIVES.
BRUBAKER:OTHER THAN VIETNAM, WHAT ARE THE OTHER ISSUES AS YOU SEE THEM
CONGRESSMAN FORD?
FORD: ALL OF THE INDLCATORS PROVE BEYOND ANY DOWBT THAT THE INCREASE IN
COST OF LIVING UNDER THE JOHNSON-HUMPHREY ADMINISTRATION WILL BE THE MAJOR
DOMESTIC ISSUE IN 1966.
BRUBAKER: ISN'T THE ADMINISTRATION TAKING ANY STEPS TO PREVENT INFLATION?
IT SAYS SO.
FORD:  PRESIDENT JOHNSON HAS SAID HE'S TAKING SOME STEPS. HE'S REPRIM-
ANDING HOUSEWIVES...HE'S CLOBBERING BUSINESSMEN, AND HE IS HITTING, TO
SOME EXTENT, LABOR LEADERS WHO ARE DEMANDING WAGES ABOVE HIS GUIDELINES,
BUT THE PRESIDENT IS DOING ABSOLUTELY NOTHING TO HIT THE BASIC CAUSE, .
ONE OF THE PRIME CAUSES OF INFLATION, WHICH IS THE EXCESSIVE SPENDING BY
THE FEDERAL GOV'T ON THE NON-MILITARY AREAS. IT SEEMS TO ME THE PRESIDENT'S
CONDEMNATION OF OTHER PEOPLE, AND OTHER SEGMENTS OF OUR POPULATION onLp
BE IN BETTER TASTE IF HE WOULD Qg{sbngfﬂiﬂc:ﬁBQuT THE AREA WHERE HE HA§;

COMPLETE CONTROL = THE E*CESSIVE SPENDING OF THE FEDERAL GOV'T,

1
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_BRUBAKER: MR. FORD, THIS IS ONE POINT THAT SOME DON'T UNDERSTAND...
DESPITE THE REPUBLICANS DEMAND FOR A REDUCTION IN SPENDING EARLY LAST
WEEK WHEN PRESIDENT JOHNSON IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, HAD
RECOMMENDED A CUT IN THE SCHOOL MILK PRGGRAM AND OTHER AGRICULTURAL
PROGRAMS, REPUBLICANS REFUSED TO GO ALONG. WHY?
FORD: THIS IS UNDERSTANDABLE. THE SCHOOL. LUNCH PROGRAM IS FOR THE HEALTH
OF THE POOR PEOPLE IN THE CITIES OF THIS COUNTRY. THE MILK PROGRAM IS
ALSO FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE POOR PEOPLE IN THE LARGER METROPOLITAN  AREAS.
THE LAND GRANT COLLEGE PROGRAM, THE AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH PROGRAM....
THESE WERE PROGRAMS THAT OVER A PERIOD OF MANY YEARS HAVE PROVEN TO BE
BENEFICIAL TO THE COUNTRY AS A WHOLE AND TO THOSE LEAST ABLE TO TAKE CARE
OF THEMSELVES. IT WAS JUST POOR POLITICS ON THE PART OF PRESIDENT JOHNSON
TO CUT THESE ESTABLISHED PROGRAMS THAT HAD DONE A JOB, AND THEN TAKE THAT
MONEY AND THROW IT INTO THESE GREAT SOCIETY PROGRAMS WHICH ARE UNPROVEN,
WHICH HAVE NOT WORKED, WHICH ARE COSTLY AND WHICH IN MANY INSTANCES, ARE
NOT HELPING THE POOR. WE JUST THINK THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES USED ITS
OWN JUDGEMENT, AS IT SHOULD, TO HELP THOSE PROGRAMS THAT HAVE PROVEN
BENEFICIAL RATHER THAN GAMBLE ON SOME OF THESE GREAT SOCIETY PROGRAMS
WHERE THE POOR AND OTHERS HAVE NOT REALLY GOT ANY HELP AND ASSISTANCE; :
ROGERS: TO GO BACK TO AN EARLIER TOPIC, AS ONE OF THE CHIEF CRITICS OF
SEC. MACNAMARA, YOU HAVE ACCUSED HIM OF MISMANAGEMENT AND ONE THING OR
ANOTHER, YET, AT THE SAME TIME, WHEN SOMEBODY ASKED YOU IF YOU THOUGHT HE
OUGHT TO BE GOTTEN RID OF, YOU SAID "NO, YOU SHOULDN'T CHANGE HORSES IN
MID-STREAM. NOW, ISN'T THIS A PRETTY GOOD SLOGAN FOR PRESIDENT JOHNSON
AND THE DEMOCRATS TO USE IN THE UP-COMING ELECTION WITH RESPECT TO ALL
OF CONGRESS?
FORD: I THINK IT'S DIFFERENT WARREN, BE\ CAUSETHE CONGRESS IS NOT IN . THE
DAY-TO- DAY MANAGEMENT OF THE CONFLICT IN VIETNAM, THE CONGRESS IS SUPPOSED

RTO BE INDEPENDENT BODY THAT CHECKS AND BALANCES THE ACTIONS OF THE
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EXECUTIVE BRANCH OF THE GOV'T. THE CONGRESS IS SUPPOSED TO PASS LAWS,

TO INVESTIGATE AND TO KEEP THE PRESIDENT FROM GETTING AND USING TOO

MUCH POWER. THE CONGRESS IN 1965 AND 1966, A DEMOCRATIC CONGRESS, HAS
BEEN PRETTY MUCH A PAWN OR A PUPPET IN THE HANDS OF THE WHITE HOUSE

SO I THINK THE AMERICAN PEOPLE, IF THEY WANT A REAL CHECKREIN BROUGHT
ABOUT THE EXCESSIVE USE OF THE TREMENDOUS USE OF POWER IN THE WHITE HOUSE
THEY HAD BETTER ELECT MORE REPUBLICAN SENATORS TO CONGRESS.

ROGERS; YOU'RE THE LEADER IN THE HOUSE, SENATOR DIRKSEN IS THE LEADER

IN THE SENATE, DESPITE WHAT YOU SAY, WITH ALL DUE RESPECT, I THINK YOU
DON'T AGREE ON VIETNAM, I THINK THAT WHAT WE SEE IN THE REPUYLICAN PARTY
NOW - WHICH IS ASKING THE PEOPLE TO GIVE IT CONTROL OF CONGRESS, THAT WHAT
WE SEE IS THE OLD BUSINESS OF BEING SPLIT DONN THE MIDDLE AND FIGHTING
FOR HARMONY AS NEAR AS I CAN TELL. YOU DON'T HAVE A SINGLE LEADERSHIP

OF LEFT, RIGHT, MIDDLE, IT SEEMS TO ME THERE IS A GREAT DISPARITY AMONG
REPUBLICANS. AS A MINGRITY PARTY, HON ARE YOU GOING TO PULL THIS GREAT
THING TOGETHER, AND GO BEFORE THE PEOPLE AND CONVINCE THEM THAT THEY
SHOULD GIVE YOU CONGRESS?

FORD: FIRST, LET ME SAY THAT WE, SENATOR DIRKSEN AND I, WERE THE PRINCIPAL
SPONSORS OF WHAT WE CALL THE COORDINATING COMMITTE WHICH IS COMPOSED OF
REPUBLICAN GOVERNORS, MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE AND SENATE, CANDIDAFTES FOR
THE PRESIDENCY, AND THIS RERUBLICAN COORDINAYING COMMITTEE HAS DONE A
WONDERFUL JOB OF PULLING THE PARTY TOGETHER, WHERE WE'VE HAD SOME GOOD:
STATEMENTS ON THE CONFLICT ON VIETNAM, ON INFLATION AND RELATED MATTERS.
LET ME TURN THE POINT OVER, THERE IS AMNIMUM OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE
REPUBLICANS IN THE HOUSE AND THE SENATE AND ELSEWHERE. CONTRAST THAT IF
YOU WILL WITH THE DISUNITY, AND THE DISARRAY, AND THE BITTER BACK-BITING
IN THE SENATE AMONG DEMOCRATS. THE DEMOCRATIC PARTY IN THE SENATE IS
TORN ASUNDER WITH DISUNITY AND IT'S IMPORTANT TO POINT OUT THAT THEY

ARE DISUNIFIED ON THE BASIC ISSUE OF HOW TO ACHEIVE THE PEACE AND MAINTAIN
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NATIONAL SECURITY AND I DON'T THINK THE AMERICAN PEOPLE WILL WANT A
MAJORITY PARTY IN THE CONGRESS THAT IS SPLIT ALL OVER THE LOT ON THIS
ISSUE OF PEACE AND NATIONAL SECURITY.
BRUBAKER: SPEAKING OF PEACE AND NATIONAL SECURITY, THERE WERE REPORTS
EARLIER THIS WEEK THAT THE ADMINISTRATION HAS BEEN URGING WEST GERMANY
TO ABANDON EVEN NOMINAL CONTROL OVER NUCLEAR WEAPONS - SAY A MULTI-LATERAL
UCNEAR FORCE. IS THERE ANY SUBSTANCE TO THE REPORT AND CAN THIS KIND OF
THING BE AN ISSUE FOR THE REPUBLICANS?
_FORD: THE WHOLE PROBLEM OF NATO IS A VERY SERIOUS ONE TO THE NATION AND
TO THE WESTERN WORLD. I PERSONALLY DON'T HAVE ANY KNOWLBEDGE AS TO WHETHER
OR NOT THE ADMINISTRATION IS GOING TO TOTALLY BACK OFF OF THE MLF...THEY
CERTAINLY HAVE NOT BEEN VERY ACTIVE IN PROMOTING IT, NOT AS ACTIVE AS THEY
WERE A FEW MONTHS OR A YEAR AGO. I HAVE THE FEELING THAT THE ADMINISTRATION
IS CONFOUNDED BY THE MULTITUDE OF PROBLEMS IN NATO AND THEY REALLY AREN'T
DOING YERY MUCH ABOUT IT, AND TRAGICAUY, THIS IS HURTING NATO AND IT'S
HURTING OUR EFFORT TO MAINTAIN THE KIND OF STRENGTH WE NEED AGAINST
POSSIBLE SOVIET AGGRESSION IN WESTERN EUROPE.
BRRUBAKER: WHAT DIRECTION SHOULD REPUBLICANS TAKE? SHOULD THEY DO MORE
TO ACCOMMODATE DE GAULLE FOR EXAMPLE?
FORD: IT SEEMS TO ME YOU SHOULDN'T POINT A FINGER AT DE GAULLE AND BLAME
HIM FOR EVERYTHING AS SOME PEOPLE APPARENTLY DO. I'M SURE THAT OVER A
PERIOD OF YEARS, REPUBLICAN AND DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS , WE HAVEN'T
DONE AS MUCH AS WE SHOULD TO TRY JO KEEP DE GAULLE WITH US, AND NOW WE
FIND THAT THERE IS A TENDENCY ON THE PART OF THE ADMINISTRATION TO BLAME
ALL THE EVILS. OF NATO ON DE GAULLE. THERE MUST BE SOME WAY THAT WE CAN
FIND A FORMULA TO BRING FRANCE AND DE GAULLE INTO THE NATO OPERAT!ONJ?O
THAT IT'S NOT TORN ASUNDER...$0 THAT WE DON'T HAVE TO SPEND TWé?BILLIdé

DOLLARS MORE TO BUILD THESE ADDITDNAL MILITARY FACILITIES TO GIVE OUR /

\w/’/

FORCES THE  KIND OF OPERATIONAL CAPABILITY THEY NEED.
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_ROGERS: A MOMENT AGO YOU TALKED ABOUT THE DEMOCRATS BEING DISCOMB OB ULATED
AMONG THEMSELVES...HOW DO YOU PLAN TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THIS AND HOW
MANY SEATS DO YOU THINK YOU'LL PICK UP IN THE NOVEMBER ELECTION?
FORD: SENATOR THRUSTON MORTON IS BY FAR A BETTER WITNESS ON HON MANY
SEATS WE'LL #ICK UP . HE ESTIMATES BETWEEN FOUR AND SIX AND I THINK HE
IS THE BEST ONE TO ANSWER WHAT STRATEGY THEY WILL USE IN TRYING TO
ACHEIVE. THIS.
ROGERS:LET ME ASK ;YOU ABOUT THE HOUSE THEN...NORMALLY IN AN OFF YEAR
ELECTION, THE OUT-OF-POWER PARTY PICKS UP ABOUT 37 SEATS..THAT'S ABOUT
AVERAGE. WIL L YOU BE ABLE TO HIT THIS AVERAGE...DO YOU THINK YOU'LL GET
MORE OR LESS?
FORD: WARREN, I THINK WE'LL PICK UP 40 OR MORE HOUSE SEATS FOR THE
REPUBLICANS. SENATOR DIRKSEN SAYS 50 OR MORE. WE DISAGREE IN THIS AREA.
I HOPE THAT HIS ESTIMATE IN THIS CASE IS MORE ACCURATE THAN MINE. I'M

WILLING TO ADMIT THAT THE POSSIBILITY EXISTS THAT WE CAN PICK UP 50 SEATS

THROUGHOUTTHE U.S.
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B RUB AKER: CONGRESSMAN FORD, AS REPUBLICAN LEADER IN THE HOUSE OF

REPRESENTATIVES, DO YOU BELIVE THAT VIETNAM WILL BE THE NUMBER ONE
POLITICAL ISSUE IN THIS ELECTION YEAR?

FORD: IT WOULD APPEAR THAT THE PROBLEMS IN VIETNAM WILL BE MADE THE
MAJOR POLITICAL ISSUE BY THE AMERICAN PEOPLE BETWEEN NOW AND NOVEMBER

o~
8TH. I FEEL THERE IS A GREAT DEAL OF UNCERTAINTId DISSATISFACTION,

—

ARD THE AMERICAN PEOPLE ARE DEEPLY CONCERNED. AS A RESULT, IT WILL

—

UNDOUB TEDLY BE THE MAJOR POLITICAL ISSUE ON THE INTERNATIONAL FRONT.
ROGERS : MR.¥ORD, YOU SAY YOU BELIEVE THE VOTERS WILL MAKE VIETNAM
THE MAJOR ISSUE IN THE UPCOMING ELECTION CAMPAIGN. LET ME ASK YOU,

DO YOU THINK THAT WHETHER THE REPUBLICANS WIN LARGE NUMBERS CF JEATS
OR NOT, WHETHER THIS DEPENDS PRIMARILY UPON THE ISSUE OF VIETNAM?
FORD: NO, I DON!T THINK THE VOTERS DECISIONS ON THE PROS AND CONS, .
THE MANAGEMENT OR MISMANAGEMENT, OF THE CONFLICT IN VIETNAM WILL BE
JHE DECIDING FACTOR. THERE ARE ENOUGH OTHER ISSUES WARREN,ITHAT WILL

CONCERN THE AMERICAN PEOPLEj; THE INCREASE IN THE COST OF LIVING UNDER

THE JOHNSON-HUMPHREY ADMINISTRATION, THE LACK OF CREDIBILITY IN MANY

e

AREAS, THE NEED ON THE PART OF THE PUBLIC TO RESTORE TWO-PARTY GOV'T

IN AMERICA, THE OTHER AREAS OF MISMANAGEMENT AND LACK OF PROPER ADMIN-
;E;E;;;ggjtTTHESE ARE THINGS THAT WILL ALSO HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

ON THE AMERICAN VOTERS.

ROGERS: LET ME ASK YOU A CRYSTAL BALL QUESTION...WHAT DO YOU THINK IS
GOING TO HAPPEN IN VIETNAM BETWEEN NOW AND THE ELECTION?

FORD: WARREN, I WISH, AS AN AMERICAN, I COULD GIVE YOU AN ANSWER...

AN ANSWER THAT WOULD MEAN_THAT THE U.S. WOUID HAVE ACHEIVED AN HONOCRAB LE

PEACE, A PERMANENT SOLUTION, WHICH WOULD PERMIT THE U.,S. MILITARY

PERSONNEL TO WITHDRAW, YET LEAVE OUR OVERALL POSITION IN SOUTHEAST ASIA

ONE OF STRENGTH. THIS IS WHAT I HOPE. I BELIEVE THAT OUR AMERICAN POLICY,
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BOTH MILITARY AND DIPLOMATIC MUST BE AIMED AT THAT OBJECTIVE.

‘ROGERS: YOU'VE BEEN VERY CRITICAL OF THE MANAGEMENT OF THE WAR. YOU'VE

TALKED ABOUT SHORTAGES, ETC., BLAMED MR. MACNAMARA FOR DOING WHAT YOU
CONSIDER AN INADEQUATE JOB. GIVEN THIS CRITICISM, WHICH YOU@VIOUSLY
BELIEVE, HON CAN WE HOPE TO hCW??WE ANY SORT OF SUCCESS YO THE POINT
WHERE WE COULD WITHDRAW FROM VIETNAM?

FORD: EVEN THOUGH I THINK THERE IS CONSIDERABLE EVIDENCE OF WHAT 1
HAVE DESCRIBED AS MISMANAGEMENT, SENATOR DIRKSEN HAS DESCRIBED IT
SOMEWHAT DIFFERENTLY, BUT THE SUBSTANCE OF OUR QUESTIONS OR OUR ALLEGAT-

IONS ARE THE SAME. DESPITE THESE MISTAKES IN JUDGEMENT, WHEN YOU

CONSIDER THE FACT THAT SECRETARY MACNAMARA HAS HAD OVER 50 BILLION

SRS

DOLLARS A YEAR FOR THE LAST SEVERAL YEARS, AND WHEN YOU CONSIDER THE

—

FACT . THAT WE HAVE ALL THE OTHER POWER IN THE ARMY, THE NAVY AND THE

AIR FORCE, WE'RE BOUND TO BE SUCCESSFUL IF THE PROPER MILITARY MEANS

ARE USED.

ROGERS: SINCE YOU BEGAN YOUR CRITICISM, SECRETARY MACNAMARA HAS COME
BACK AS HE ALWAYS DOES IN A DEBATE, WITH THOUSANDS UPON THOUSANDS OF
STATISTICS. HE TALKS ABOUT BILLIONS OF BULLETS BEING AVAILABLE...
FORD: MOST OF THEM IRREVELANTTO THE G.I. OUT IN THE FIELD.....
ROGERS: NOW ARE YOU STILL FIRMLY CONVINCED TAT HE IS MISMANAGING
THIS WAR AND THE RESULTANT SHORTAGES?  HAS HIS ARGUMENT IN ANY WAY
SWAYED YOU FROM YOUR ORIGINAL CRITICISM?

FORD: THE SNOW JOB THAT SECRETARY MACNAMARA GIVES TO THE CONGRESS

AND OTHERS WHEN HE'S QUESTIONED, ....THIS TACTIC ON HIS PART HAS NOT

s

CONVINCED ME THAT THERE ARE NOT AREAS WHERE A BETTER JOB COULD BE DONE.

THE FINE REPORTER IN SAIGON FOR THE NEW - YORK-_TIMES MADE ALLEGATIONS OF
e TN

MISMANAGEMENT WHEN HE SAID THERE WERE BOMB FUSE SHORTAGES.  THE NEW

YORK TIMES WAS APPARENTLY CONVINCED OF THE ACCURACY OF THISfBECAUSE

THEY WROTE AN EDITORIAL SUPPORTING THEIR REPORTER AND CONTRADICTED .
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SECRETARY MACNAMARA. THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON ARMED SERVICES WHICH IS
==

A DEMOCRATIC CONTROLLED COMMITTEE, RECENTLY CAME OUT WITH A REPORT,

VERY SEVERELY CRITICIZING SEC. MACNAMARA FOR HIS DECISIONS TO CUT BACK

¥
.

B-52'S, TO REDUCE B-58'S AND NOT TO MOVE INTO A HIGH PERFORMANCE

STRATEGIC AIR COMMAND AJRCRAFT., I THINK YOU'RE GOING TO FIND AN

—

ACCUMMULATION OF INSTANCES WHERE THERE HAS BEEN MISMANAGEMENT. LET ME

—~—

ADD THIS, THOSE IN THE PRESS LIKE YOURSELF, THE AMERICAN CONGRESS,

THE AMERICAN PEOPLE, HAVE A RESPONSIBILITY TO KEEP THE SPOTLIGHT ON

i

SECRETARY MACNAMARA AND THE DEFENSE DEPT. FOR ONE SINGLE REASON. WE

/O a<’ 2
HAVE NOW , 9 g 000 AMERICAN G.I.'S STATIONED IN VIETNAM, ORDERED BY THE

COMMANDER-IN CHIEF AND IT'S OUR RESPONSIBILITY, COLLECTIVELY, TO
‘\

MAKE SURE THEY GET THE WEAPONS THAT ARE NEEDED ON TIME.

"ROGERST D0 YOU THINK THE MISMANAGEMENT OF THE WAR, AS YOU CALL IT,
HAS CAUSED UNNEEDED CASUALTIES AMONG THOSE AMERICANS?

FORD: I WOULD HESITATE TO MAKE THAT ALLEGATION BECAUSE THIS IS A VERY
SERIOUS CHARGE, BUT WHERE THERE ARE SHORTAGES OF NEEDED WEAPONS, I'M
SURE THAT THE MAN IN THE FIELD WHO GOES OUT WITH BOMBS THAT DON'T HAVE
FUSES, HAS MANY, MANY, APPREHENSIE-AS TO THE JOB HE'S ABLE TO DO ON
BEHALF OF OUR COUNTRY.

BRUBAKER: MR. FORD, HAVE YOU COME UP WITH ANY NEW EXAMPLES OF MIS-
MANAGEMENT?

FORD:+  SINCE MY ORIGINAL CHARGE, THERE HAS BEEN A NUMBER OF OTHERS
WHO HAVE JOINED IN, INCLUDING HOUSE COMMITTEE ON ARMED SERVICES. I
BELIEVE SENATOR STENNIS, ON A MAJOR NETWORK, WHEN ASKED A QUESTION

—

SAID "THERE 1S, AND THERE HAS BEEN, MISMANAGEMENT BY THE DEPT. OF DEFENSEY

I'M CONVINCED THAT AS WE GO DOWN THE ROAD, AND MY MAIL REFLECTS IT WITH

MOTHERS WRITING SAYING THAT THEIR SON DIDN'T HAVE THIS, AND WIVES

WRITING AND SAYING THAT THEIR HUSBANDS DIDN'T HAVE THIS PARTICULAR

WEAPON, OR THIS PART OF A WEAPON, ...THERE IS A GROWING ACCUMMULATION
v 2

IN AREAS WHERE THERE IS A LEGITIMATE REASON -TQ-CHARGE MISMANAGEMENT .
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I JUST HOPE THEY'RE CORRECP@%LKEECAUSE THIS INVOLVEgFLIVES OF 240,000
AMERICANS WHOPRESIDENT JOHNSON SENT TO VIETNAM LAST YEAR.
BRUBAKER: WHY HASN'T SENATOR DIRKSEN ASKED FOR YOUR INFORMATION ON
THESE MISMANAGEMENT CHARGES? WHY DOES HE CONTINUE TO INSIST THAT HE'LL

RELY ON THE SENATE'S INFORMATION? WHY ISN'T THERE REPUBLICAN UNITY OF

<

THOUGHT ?
_THOUGHT?
FORD: I CAN ASSURE YOU THAT SENATOR DIRKSEN AND MYSELF HAVE DISCUSSED

THIS MATTER ALONG WITH OTHER REPUBLICAN LEADERS AND IT'S MY FFELING

THAT EVEN THOUGH HE USES DIFFERENT WORDS, AND T WJISH I COULD HAVE THE

—

FLOW OF LANGUAGE THAT HE HAS, THE SUBSTANCE OF OUR ALLEGATIONS AND

QUESTIONS ARE EXACTLY THE SAME. AS HE SAID A WEEK OR SO AGO, AT A

—_

PRESS CONFERENCE, WHERE, I SUSPECT, BOTH OF- YOU WERE THERE, HE IN
EFFECT, JOINED WITH ME, AND 1 STAYED WITH HIM.

BRUBAKER: WHEN YOU WENT BACK HOME DURING THE EASTER RECESS YOUYMUST
DETECTED GROWING UNREST AMONG THE PEOPLE ON VIETNAM POLICIES.

FORD: I THINK THAT'S AN ACCURATE APPRAISAL OF MY OBSERVATIONS IN TALKING
WITH PEOPLE AT HOME DURING THE RECESS . WHEN YOU TALK TO EITHER
DEMQCRATS OR REPUBLICANS, WHG WERE HOME AT THAT TIME, AND YOU ASK THEM
WHAT THE QUESTIONS WERE THAT THEY WERE ASKED BY THEIR CONSTITUENTS, ALL
OF THEM, OR VIRTUALLY ALL, WERE CONCERNED WITH PROBLEMS OF VIETNAM .,
BRUBAKER: ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THIS ISSUE, SENATOR ROBERT KENNEDY

FEARS GROWING ESCALATION OF THE WAR BECAUSE OF THE INVOLVEMENT OF MIG 21'S
DOG FIGHTS OVER NORTH VIETNAM. DO YOU HAVE ANY EVIDENCE THAT COMMUNIST
CHINA'S AIRCRAFT HAS BEEN INVOLVED IN THESE AIR BATTLES AND DO YOU FEAR
THE POSSIBILITY OF A DIRECT CONFRONTATION BETWEEN THE U.S. AND COMMUNIST
CHINA?

FORD: THERE APPEARS TO BE EVIDENCE OF COMMUNIST AIRCRAFT. I DON'T KNOW
WHETHER THEY ARE CHINESE BUILT OR SOVIET BUILT. I DON'T KNOW WHETHER

THE PILOTS HAVE BEEN TRAINED IN THE SOVIET UNION OR RED CHINA. THEY ARE
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CERTAINLY AIRCRAFT THAT NORTH VIETNAM COULDN'T BUILD. CERTAINLY THE
PILOTS COULDN'T HAVE BEEN TRAINED IN NORTH VIETNAM. SO THERE IS SOME
INVOLVEMENT FROM EITHER THE SOVIET UNION OR RED GHINA. A VAST MAJORITY
OF GOV'T EXPERTS DO THINK THERE IS NOT A GREA#?ROBABILITY THAT RED
CHINA WOULD NOT GET INVOLVED IN THIS CONFLICT DIRECTLY. THIS IS WHAT
WE'RE TOLD BY PEOPLE WHO TESTIFY BEFORE THE VARIOUS COMMITTEES.
ROGERS: SINCE THE GULF OF TONKIN INCIDENT A YEAR AND A HALF AGO, THE
RED CHINESE HAVE BUILT FIVE OR SIX NEW AIRFIELDS ON THE PERIMETER OF
NORTHE VIETNAM. THE AIRCRAFT ARE FLYING OUT OF THESE AIRFIELDS FROM
RED CHINA AND I UNDERSTAND THAT THE COMMANDANT CONTROL STRUCTURE,
THE EARLY WARNING SYSTEM, IS NCW INTEGRATED BETWEEN RED CHINA AND
NORTH VIETNAM. NOW SENATOR KENNEDY ARGUES THAT WHAT HAPPENS IF AIRCRAFT
FLYING OQUT OF THESE RED CHINESE BASES SHOULD ATTACK OUR AIRCRAFT FLYING
OVER NORTH VIETNAM, AND UNDER THE DOCTRINE OF HOT PURSUIT, AND WE HAVE SAID
TIME AND AGAIN THERE IS NO SANCTUARY ANY MORE, WHAT HAPPENS IF WE THEN STRIKE
T HOSE AIR BASES AS WE HAVE 70 DO IF WE'RE GOING TO FOLLOW THIS HOT PURSUIT
POLICY, THEN THE RED CHINESE COM E BACK AND PERHAPS STRIKE THE TONSANUT (SP)
AIRPORT IN SAIGON? ISN'T THAT AN ESCALATION? IS THERE NO END TO THIS?
WHAT IS YOUR VIEW ON THIS ESCALATION TIT FOR TAT?
FORD: I THINK THERE IS A DISTINCT POSSIBILITY IN THIS AREA THAT YOU'VE
BEEN DESCRIBING THERE COULD BE SOME ADDITIONAL CONFLICT DIRECTLY BETWEEN
THE RED CHINESE AND OURSELVES, PARTICULARLY WHEN SECRETAR®* RUSK SAID
SIX OR NINE MONTHS AGO, THERE WOULD BE NO SANCTUARY IF ANOTHER NATION,
AND HE CERTAINLY IMPLIED RED CHINA GOT INTO THIS THING IN A VERY ACTIVE
AND A VERY LARGE WAY,
ROGERS: NOW IF THAT'S THE COURSE WE'RE ON, ARE WE GOING TO BE CAUGHf
WILLY-NILLY ON THIS THING AND ROLL DOWN HILL SO TO SPEAK, WHAT ELSE CAN

WE DO....HOW DO WE REVERSE THIS THING?
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FORD: I THINK YOU HAVE TO LOOK AT ' FROM THE POINT OF VIEW OF THE INDIV-
IDUAL PILOT OR CREW.THE PRESIDENT, AS COMMANDER IN CHIEF, HAS DECIDED TO
SEND THESE PILOTS TO VIETNAM TO DO A JOB ON OUR BEHALF. WE'VE GIVEN THEM
GOOD WEAPONS, AND THEIR MILITARY LEADERS HAVE DECIDED THAT THEY HAVE
THIS PARTICULAR MISSION OR RESPONSIBILITY. NOW, IF IT'S IMPORTANT FOR
THEIR OWN LIFE PROTECTION, WE HAVE TO GIVE THEM SOME FLEXIBILITY IN MY-
JUDGEMENT .
BRUBAKER: ARE YOU SAYING THIS ISN'T A MATTER TO BE DECIDED HERE IN
WASHINGTON...THE DANGER OF ESCALATING THE WAR?
FORD: 1 THINK THE OVERALL, YES. THE PRESIDENT, THE SEC. OF DEFENSE,
AND THE JOINT CHIEFS OF STAFF ASSIGN CERTAIN MISSIONS, THEN THEY HAVE TO
. BEAR THE BASIC RESPONSIBILITY OF WHAT THOSE PILOTS HAVE TO DO FOR THE
PROTECTION OF THEIR ONN LIVES.
BRUBAKER:OTHER THAN VIETNAM, WHAT ARE THE OTHER ISSUES AS YOU SEE THEM
CONGRESSMAN FORD?
FORD: ALL OF THE INDICATORS PROVE BEYOND ANY DOUBT THAT THE INCREASE IN
COST OF LIVING UNDER THE JOHNSON-HUMPHREY ADRMINISTRATION WILL BE THE MAJOR
DOMESTIC ISSUE IN 1966.
BRUBAKER: ISN'T THE ADMINISTRATION TAKING ANY STEPS TO PREVENT INFLATION?
IT SAYS SO.
FORD: PRESIDENT JOHNSON HAS SAID HE'S TAKING SOME STEPS. HE'S REPRIM-
ANDING HOUSEWIVES...HE'S CLOBBERING BUSINESSMEN, AND HE IS HITTING, TO
SOME EXTENT, LABOR LEADERS WHO ARE DEMANDING WAGES ABOVE HIS GUIDELINES,
BUT THE PRESIDENT IS DOING ABSOLUTELY NOTHING TO HIT THE BASIC CAUSE, .
ONE OF THE PRIME CAUSES OF INFLATION, WHICH IS THE EXCESSIVE SPENDING BY
THE FEDERAL GOV'T ON THE NON-MILITARY AREAS. IT SEEMS TO ME THE PRESIDENT'S
CONDEMNATION OF OTHER PEOPLE, AND QTHER SEGMENTS OF OUR POPULATION onLp
BE IN BETTER TASTE IF HE WOULD qg?sbnggh&NG?ABouT THE AREA WHERE HE HA§5

COMPLETE CONTROL =~ THE E*CESSIVE SPENDING OF THE FEDERAL GOV'T.

1
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_BRUBAKER: MR. FORD, THIS IS ONE POINT THAT SOME DON'T UNDERSTAND...
DESPITE THE REPWBILICANS DEMAND FOR A REDUCTION IN SPENDING EARLY LAST
WEEK WHEN PRESIDENT JOHNSON IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, HAD
RECOMMENDED A CUT IN THE SCHOOL MILK PRGGRAM AND OTHER AGRICULTURAL

PROGRAMS, REPUBLICANS REFUSED TO GO ALONG. WHY?

FORD: THIS IS UNDERSTANDABLE. THE SCHOOL. LUNCH PROGRAM ]S FOR THE HEALTH

, TR

OF THE POOR PEOPLE IN THE CITIES OF THIS COUNTRY. THE MILK PROGRAM IS

ALSO FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE POOR PEOPLE IN THE LARGER METROPOLITAN AREAS.

THE LAND GRANT COLLEGE PROGRAM, THE AGRJICULTURAL RESEARCH PROGRAM....

THESE WERE PROGRAMS THAT OVER A PERIOD OF MANY YEARS HAVE PROVEN TO BE

C—

BENEFICIAL TO THE COUNTRY AS A WHOLE AND TO THOSE LEAST ABLE TO TAKE CARE

o

.QE_IEEE§E£X§§4—11~WAS JUST POOR POLITICS ON THE PART OF PRESIDENT JOHNSON

TO CUT THESE ESTABLISHED PROGRAMS THAT HAD DONE A JOB, AND THEN TAKE THAT

I

MONEY AND THROW IT INTO THESE GREAT SOCIETY PROGRAMS WHICH ARE UNPROVEN,

WHICH HAVE NOT WORKE®D, WHICH ARE COSTLY AND WHICH IN MANY INSTANCES, ARE

—

NOT HELPING THE POOR. WE JUST THINK THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES USED ITS

OWN JUDGEMENT, AS IT SHOULD, TO HELP THOSE PROGRAMS THAT HAVE PROVEN

s

BENEFICIAL RATHER THAN GAMBLE ON SOME OF THESE GREAT SOCIETY PROGRAMS

L

WHERE THE POOR AND OTHERS HAVE NOT REALLY GOT ANY HELP AND ASSISTANCE: :

ROGERS: TO GO BACK TO AN EARLIER TOPIC, AS ONE OF THE CHIEF CRITICS OF
SEC. MACNAMARA, YOU HAVE ACCUSED HIM OF MISMANAGEMENT AND ONE THING OR
ANOTHER, YET, AT THE SAME TIME, WHEN SOMEBODY ASKED YOU IF YOU THOUGHT HE
OUGHT TO BE GOTTEN RID OF, YOU SAID '"NO, YOU SHOULDN'T CHANGE HORSES IN
MID-STREAM. NOW, ISN'T THIS A PRETTY GOOD SLOGAN FOR PRESIDENT JOHNSON

AND THE DEMOCRATS TO USE IN THE UP-COMING ELECTION WITH RESPECT TO ALL

OF CONGRESS?

FORD: I THINK IT'S DIFFERENT WARREN, BE\ CAUSETHE CONGRESS IS NOT IN THE
DAY-TO- DAY MANAGEMENT OF THE CONFLICT IN VIETNAM, THE CONGRESS IS SUPPOSED

'TO BE INDEPENDENT BODY THAT CHECKS AND BALANCES THE ACTIONS OF THE
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EXECUTIVE BRANCH OF THE GOV'T. THE CONGRESS IS SUPPOSED TO PASS LAWS,

TO INVESTIGATE AND TO KEEP THE PRESIDENT FROM GETTING AND USING TOO

MUCH POWER. THE CONGRESS IN 1965 AND 1966, A DEMOCRATIC CONGRESS, HAS
BEEN PRETTY MUCH A PAWN OR A PUPPET IN THE HANDS OF THE WHITE HOUSE

SO I THINK THE AMERICAN PEQOPLE, IF THEY WANT A REAL CHECKREIN BROUGHT
ABOUT THE EXCESSIVE USE OF THE TREMENDOUS USE OF POWER IN THE WHITE HOUSE
THEY HAD BETTER ELECT MORE REPUBLICAN SENATORS TO CONGRESS.

ROGERS; YOU'RE THE LEADER IN THE HOUSE, SENATOR DIRKSEN IS THE LEADER

IN THE SENATE, DESPITE WHAT YOU SAY, WITH ALL DUE RESPECT, I THINK YOU
DON'T AGREE ON VIETNAM, I THINK THAT WHAT WE SEE IN THE REPUYLICAN PARTY
NOW , WHICH IS ASKING THE PEOPLE TO GIVE IT CONTROL OF CONGRESS, THAT WHAT
WE SEE IS THE OLD BUSINESS OF BEING SPLIT DOWN THE MIDDLE AND FIGHTING
FOR HARMONY AS NEAR AS I CAN TELL. YOU DON'T HAVE A SINGLE LEADERSHIP

OF LEFT, RIGHT, MIDDLE, IT SEEMS TO ME THERE IS A GREAT DISPARITY AMONG
REPUBLICANS. AS A MINCRITY PARTY, HON ARE YOU GOING TO PULL THIS GREAT
fthG TOGETHER, AND GO BEFORE THE PEOPLE AND CONVINCE THEM THAT THEY
SHOULD GIVE YOU CONGRESS?

FORD: FIRST, LET ME SAY THAT WE, SENATOR DIRKSEN AND I, WERE THE PRINCIPAL

SPONSORS OF WHAT WE CALL THE COORDINATING COMMITTE WHICH IS COMPOSED oF

(\
REPUBLICAN GOVERNORS, MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE AND SENATE, CANDIDAFES FOR
L R = E
THE PRESIDENCY, AND THIS RERUBLICAN COORDINAYING COMMITTEE HAS DONE A

WONDERFUL JOB OF PULLING THE PARTY TOGETHER, WHERE WE'VE HAD SOME GOOD-

STATEMENTS ON THE CONFLICT ON VIETNAM, ON INFLATION AND RELATED MATTERS.

LET ME TURN THE POINT OVER, [EEBE IS AMNIMUM OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN'THE’

REPUBLICANS IN THE HOUSE AND THE SENATE AND ELSEWHERE. CONTRAST THAT IF

YOU WILL WITH THE DISUNITY, AND THE DISARRAY, AND THE BITT?}/&A€K~QITING

IN THE SENATE AMONG DEMOCRATS. THE DEMOCRATIC PARTY IN THEﬁSENATE IS EaLH

—

TORN ASUNDER WITH DISUNITY AND IT'S IMPORTANT TO POINT OUT fHAT THEY
< g
\éRE DISUNIFIED ON THE BASIC ISSUE OF HON TO ACHEIVE THE PEACE AND MAIN
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i NATIONAL SECURITY AND I DON'T THINK THE AMERICAN PEOPLE WILL WANT A

| MAJORITY PARTY IN THE CONGRESS THAT IS SPLIT ALL OVER THE LOT ON THIS

ISSUE OF PEACE AND NATIONAL SECURITY. 2

BRUBAKER: SPEAKING OF PEACE AND NATIONAL SECURITY, THERE WERE REPORTS
EARLIER THIS WEEK THAT THE ADMINISTRATION HAS BEEN URGING WEST GERMANY

TO ABANDON EVEN NOMINAL CONTROL OVER NUCLEAR WEAPONS - SAY A MULTI-LATERAL
UCNEAR FORCE. [S THERE ANY SUBSTANCE TO THE REPORT AND CAN THIS KIND OF
THING BE AN ISSUE FOR THE REPUBLICANS?

_FORD: THE WHOLE PROBLEM OF NATO IS A VERY SERIOUS ONE TO THE NATION AND
TO THE WESTERN WORLD. I PERSONALLY DON'T HAVE ANY KNOWLBEDGE AS TO WHETHER
OR NOT THE ADMINISTRATION IS GOING TO TOTALLY BACK OFF OF THE MLF...THEY
CERTAINLY HAVE NOT BEEN VERY ACTIVE IN PROMOTING IT, NOT AS ACTIVE AS THEY

} WERE A FEW MONTHS OR A YEAR AGO. I HAVE THE FEELING THAT THE ADMINISTRATIQ#

IS CONFOUNDED BY THE MULTITUDE OF PROBLEMS IN NATO AND THEY REALLY AREN'T

DOING VERY MUCH ABOUT IT, AND TRAGICAUY, THIS IS HURTING NATO AND IT'S

—/

HURTING OUR EFFORT TO MAINTAIN THE KIND OF STRENGTH WE NEED AGAINST //

j POSSIBLE SOVIET AGGRESSION IN WESTERN EUROPE.

BRRUBAKER: WHAT DIRECTION SHOULD REPUBLICANS TAKE? SHOULD THEY DO MORE
TO ACCOMMODATE DE GAULLE FOR EXAMPLE?

FORD: IT SEEMS TO ME YOU SHOULDN'T POINT A FINGER AT DE GAULLE AND BLAME

HIM FOR EVERYTHING AS SOME PEOPLE APPARENTLY DO. I'M SURE THAT OVER A

—

PERIOD OF YEARS, REPUBLICAN AND DEMOCRATIC ADMINISTRATIONS , WE HAVEN'T

P

DONE AS MUCH AS WE SHOULD TO TRY JO KEEP DE GAULLE WITH US, AND NOW WE

. FIND THAT THERE IS A TENDENCY ON THE PART OF THF ADMINISTRATION TO BLA

—

ALL THE EVIL5. OF NATO ON DE GAULLE. THERE MUST BE SOME WAY THAT WE_.CAN

N

FIND A FORMULA TO BRING FRANCE AND DE GAULLE INTO THE NATO OPERATION 'S

THAT IT'S NOT TORN ASUNDER...$0 THAT WE DON'T HAVE TO SPEND TWO BILLIO
——

S O ——

DOLLARS MORE TO BUILD THESE ADDITDNAL MILITARY FACILITIES TO GIVE OUR

. >SS

FORCES THE KIND OF OPERATIONAL CAPABILITY THEY NEED.
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_ROGERS: A MOMENT AGO YOU TALKED ABOUT THE DEMOCRATS BEING DISCOMB OB ULATED
AMONG THEMSELVES...HOW DO YOU PLAN TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THIS AND HOW
MANY SEATS DO YOU THINK YOU'LL PICK UP IN THE NOVEMBER ELECTION?
FORD: SENATOR THRUSTON MORTON IS BY FAR A BETTER WITNESS ON HON MANY
SEATS WE'LL #ICK WP . HE ESTIMATES BETWEEN FOUR AND SIX AND I THINK HE
IS THE BEST ONE TO ANSWER WHAT STRATEGY THEY WILL USE IN TRYING TO
ACHEIVE., THIS,
ROGERS:LET ME ASK ;YOU ABOUT THE HOUSE THEN...NORMALLY IN AN OFF YEAR
ELECTION, THE OUT-OF-POWER PARTY PICKS UP ABOUT 37 SEATS..THAT'S ABOUT
AVERAGE. WIL L YOU BE ABLE TO HIT THIS AVERAGE...DO YOU THINK YOU'LL GET
MORE OR LESS?
FORD: WARREN, I THINK WE'LL PICK UP 40 OR MORE HOUSE SEATS FOR THE

o

REPUBLICANS. SENATOR DIRKSEN SAYS 50 OR MORE. WE DISAGREE IN THIS AREA.

4l -~

I HOPE THAT HIS ESTIMATE IN THIS CASE IS MORE ACCURATE THAN MINE. f'M

P—

WILLING TO ADMIT THAT THE POSSIBILITY EXISTS THAT WE CAN PICK UP 50 SEATS

THROUGHOUTTHE U.S.
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CHARLES KURALT: This is a sound of money being
mades An exhaust pipe being bolted to a car moving on an
assembly line in Detroit., Soon a customer will take delivery of
that 1966 model car and pay for it with 1966 model dollars. But,
while the customer!s car is the biggest and best in history, his
dollars are the smallest., Compared with what dollars could buy
in 1946, they're only worth 72 cents, and before the end of this
year they may be worth even less, Americans are facing a hazard
of prosperity. It's called inflation.
ANNOUNCER: From CBS NEWS: "THE 72¢ DOLLAR,"
a speclal broadcast with CBS NEWS Correspondent Charles Kuralt.
TOUR GUIDE: Off to our right, we should see g
car leave the line every 54 seconds, under its own power, giving
us some 66 cars an hour,
KURALT: The number of cars Detroit makes
is a barometer of our times. When auto sales are good, it's
usually a reflection of what'!s going on everywhere else, This
country - like the auto business - has had five years of steady
growth, We're now enjoying the greatest prosperity in our
history. But that prosperity 1s beginning to hurt., For six
years price rises were few and far between, and then about a year
and a half ago prices stopped easing up at a slow and steady rate
and suddenly began to climb faster. Food and medicine,
transportation and housing, all started to cost more., To find
out why, CBS NEWS went to Detroit to talk to a young couple whose
way of life depends on that symbol of the high-horsepower economy,
the automobile,
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Assembly line worker Tim Mikulen
and his wife Connie helped us illustrate the problems of
inflation by telling their story.
TIM MIKULEN: When I first got discharged
from the servicey, I came out - and I was looking for a job, and
couldnft find a job any place, besides menial part-time jobs - I
washed walls, caddied, did odd jobs - nothing you could make a
decent living at. And this went on for about 114 months,
Everybody was out of work. There were tradesmen, skilled
tradesmen, plumbers, electriciansy the ones out of the Big Three:
General Motors, Chrysler's, Ford's, Tried the public utilities.
Tried to get on the Police Department even. And that was sewed
up also.
KURALT: As the nation's economy began
to pick up, things began to look brighter in Detroit, especially
for Tim Mikulen.,
TIM MIKULEN: : The last part of 1961, I went
down the Ford Motor Company and they were hiring everybody. People
started buying cars, and they couldn't get enough people to work
then. There were - had a shortage of manpower. ©So things picked
up pretty well for us.
KURALT: Tim's first job with the Ford
Company was loading cars on railroad trains. Today he'!s on the
assembly line, repairing the interior trim of Mustangs. He's
paid $3.08 an hour. He gets ten hours a week of overtime. But
Connie, Tim's wife, says a lot of that extra money is being used
up by higher prices at the supermarket.
CONNIE MIKULEN: I'd 1like a pound and a half of

pork and a pound and half of veal... No, I want the 89 cent.



That's too expensive - $1.09 a pound, veal cutlets. And what

were they before? They were -

BUTCHER: Eighty - eighty-nine cents a
pound.
CONNIE MIKULEN: Eighty-nine cents a pound. Now

they're up to $1.09 a pound. And you can't cook the cheaper
stuff because it isn't as good. It shrinks anyway. ©So you might
as well get the better one if you - you knowy; want something to
eat,

KURALT: Back home Tim and Connie
discussed what they bought.

CONNIE MIKULEN: There were a few things that
went up, like tomatoes, for instance, went up. Five cost $1.06
cents. And milk went up. And hamburger went up. How much was
it last week?

TIM MIKULEN: Last week, hamburger - ground
chuck was fifty-seven cents a pound. And this week, in just one
week's time, it went up - up to sixty-six cents a pound.

CONNIE MIKULEN: We just buy what we need and our
bill still ends up around $35.00 and $40.00.

KURALT: Higher food prices have
aggravated inflation, A cut-back in meat production a few years
ago and costs went up. Last year's drought came along - and they
went up further. What about the future? Nate Fink, a vice
president of the Great Scot Supermarket chain where Connie shops.
FINK: We're not looking for any
increased costs and we're not buying against the market, because

we feel that prices are definitely on a downward trend.



KURALT: But other prices continue to
rise and they're beginning to have an important effect on peoples!
lives, Tim, for example, dreamed of owning his own home.

TIM MIKULEN: My wife and I - we've been
living on rent now for four years, so we've been saving a dollar
here, a dollar there, and last year we went out pricing homes.

We don't want a new home, we're looking at older homes., ©So then
this year we went out again, looking; we figured we had enough
for a down payment anyway. And prices went up $2,000 on the same
home, in a year's time, So this puts us in a bind again, so we
have to wait longer now, So we can't afford to invest into a
home.

KURALT: Connie has another way of
measuring inflation.

CONNIE MIKULEN: My first child, Eric, was born
November 21 of 1963, and at the time the pregnancy cost w8He My
second son, Mark, was born January 6th, 1965, and he cost $90.
Now, this baby will be born around August 17th, 1966, and it'll
cost $100. Since everything else has gone up, I figured the
doctor had to go up, too.

KURALT: The Director of Detroit's
Hospital Council, D. Eugene Sibery:

SIBERY: The trend in hospital cost to
the patient in the Greater Detroit area, during the last two
years has been an upward one because of the increase in salaries
to hospital employees. And as medical science advances, of
necessity we're going to have to have more personnel and better-
trained personnel to provide these services. And as a result the

cost is going to rise.



KURALT: This month in Detroit, the
National Association of Purchasing Agents held its annual
convention, The Chairman of its Survey Committee, E.F. Andrevs,
is also a vice president of the Allegheny Ludlum Steel
Corporation,

ANDREWS: After the steel strike in 1959
and the '60, '6l recession,and within that whole period of
great price stability, the members reporting prices up were
outnumbered by the members reporting prices unchanged, or the
members reporting prices down. But in late 1964, we crossed
over and those members reporting prices up began to outnumber
those members reporting prices down. And that has consistently,
every month, gone up, up, up. And this is why we came out in
last month's report and said, quote: "Inflation is here."
KURALT: When this happens, some people
get hurt, people like Connie Mikulen's mother, Mary Horeski,
She's been a widow for seven years. She collects 495.30 a month
in Social Security. To keep up, she's taken a job, working
through the night as a janitress in the Ford building.

MRS. HORESKI: As the prices have gonz up, I find
it more difficult to manage on the money that I get. I don't
know, you take $10, it seems like a dollar bill. Not enough. I
cut down on the food because everything is so high, you know. I
never buy butter because I can't afford it. There're just a lot
of other things I can't afford, like the best of meats, you know,
and - I can't afford it,

KURALT: Michigan's Democratic Senator
Philip Hart:
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HART: The Social Security benefits are
up~-graded occasionally, but they always lag behind. And they're
way behind the ratio they were when we first put them on the
books. So it's the older person or anybody on a fixed income
we're most concerned about now, with respect to the evils, the
grim suffering that inflation can cause.
KURALT: Other people get left behind, too.
At Greenfield Village, Henry Ford's Museum of the way things used
to be, a schoolteacher told us the way things are now,
SCHOOLTEACHER: I'm concerned with what this
inflation is doing to the people who are really dedicated and
want to stay in the profession. The income stays fixed but the
prices go up and there doesn't seem to be any way where you can
have a balance between the two, wages and the cost of living.
KURALT: The Detroit Fire Department has
its headquarters upstairs over the fire house, at the corner of
Washington and Larned Streets. The Chief is Glen Thom, who wants
his men to get a 41,000 raise this year.
THOM: We in the fire service are in a
predicament right now, In a time of prosperity we are probably
suffering somewhat of a depression: number one in wages, and
number two in our inability to recruit new employees. I think
this is the first time since World War II that we've been in a
position where we haven't been able to get new people into the
department.
KURALT: Not only is Chief Thom having
trouble getting men, but he's also watched inflation pump up the

price of the new engine he wants.
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THOM: A few years ago, engines cost us
in the neighborhood of about $24,000, Today they'll run up close
to $28,000 or (29,000, One change, of course, is they're adding
Diesel engines to them, which adds about $1,000 or 1,200 to the
cost. But you can see the difference between the $24,000 and a
529,000 in -~ just in the engines.
KURALT: The war in Vietnam., Is this
what's really behind inflation? To some extent it is. The
military build-yps come at a time when business is booming.
Uremployment is at a 12-year low, Wages and profits are the
highest ever - so high, in fact, that we're buying almost as much
as the economy can produce. We're buying more homes, color TV,
and in spite of this week's cutbacks, more new cars than ever
before,
SPEAKER The major impact of the
Vietnamese war on our own operations has been an increase in our
maﬁerial costs,y and a shortage of skilled labor.
KURALT: ; The president of the Ford Motor
Company, Arjay Miller:
MILLIER: In my mind there's no question
but that we at Ford, and industry generally, could operate at a
very high level without the stimulus of military demand. A
reduction of defense spending, on the other hand, in my opinion
at least, would strengthen our present prosperity by reducing
the inflationary pressures present at the present time.
KURALT: And so our demands for bigger
and better things have had to compete with the demands of the war.
The result: supplies are strained, prices have gone up, How long

will that strain last? Secretary of Commerce John T. Connor:
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CONNOR: We hope that after the middle of
this year, we will be able to level off our defense spending and
thus help to slow down total demand. But we must at first
devote as much of our rescurces as is required to meet our
obligations in that areas.
KURALT: The Korean war cost us four
times as much as Vietnam. During one year of it the cost of
living went up nine per cent. The current rise has been three
per cent since last year, but the trend is still upj; that's the
worry. While this war has not yet puffed up the dollar as Korea
did, it is contributing a straw that is bending the back of the
economy., If the war suddenly escalates, taking away more men and
material, we might be left with a lot of money to spend but with
less to buy. The result, an escalation of prices.

Here's another side of
‘inflation as seen by Detroit cab driver Alden Morris, whose own
company recently rgised its fares,
MORRIS: If you have the money, they'll
spend it - and if you spend too much of it, even businesses and
services that don't even have an excuse to raise wages, can't
stand to see all the gravy go by like that without upping the
prices, and getting in on the gravy train.
KURALT: Prices go up when people have
enough money to demand more than can be produced, The cure for
higher prices is to either raise the production or take away the
money., But it's hard to raise production during war and boom
when labor and materials are scarce. ©So, away goes the money.

When it comes to taking money

away, nobody can beat the Federal Government. To fight inflation
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the Federal Government can raise interest rates, raise taxes or
cut down on their own spending. With less cash the customer
postpones that new car. The factory owner doesn't put up the new
plant., Demand goes rolling down the hill and prices come
tumbling after,

Some experts, like William
1cChesney Martin, head of the Federal Reserve Board, are so
concerned about inflation that they favor tax increases immediately.
They don't want the Government to use its last resort, the strict
regulation of prices and wages.

There's another way of fighting
higher prices. It's the jawbone technique in which the President
asks the country to do something about inflation before he has to.
PRESIDENT JOHNSON: This year, we must sacrifice the
luxury of tax reduction. We must hold the expansion of our
civilian Great Sociefy programs below what would have been
possible without Vietnam. We must all exercise wage and price
restraints, in Government, in business and in labor,

KURALT: As the result of the Presidentfs
salesmanship Detroit trimmed its budget. Mayor Jerome Cavanagh:
CAVANAGH: There's about 15-to-20-million
dollars of capital spending which'I had in the budget and took

out after the President's request, even though it was felt by

not just the departments but by the Budget Bureau and by our
office, that these had a sense of urgency to them, and were, if
not essential, close to it. But I did feel that we should respond

to the President's request and at least defer until next year.
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KURALT: Detroit is an exception. Most
of the leading cities in the country have not held back on their
budgets. New York City, for example, raised its budget by more
than half a billion dollars. San Diego is going ahead with a
$27-million sports stadium. Louisville, Kentucky, will put
another million and a half into its new zoo. And, ironically,
many cities are saying the President's own Great Society program
is acting as the focal point around which they're basing their
own spending,

In Detroit, the new president of
the National Association of Purchasing Agents, G. Lloyd Nunnaly,
who also happens to head up the buying for the Commonwealth of
Virginia,

NUNNALY: I don't redly see how that we
can hold this line and continue to give the type of services to
the non-productive, non-tax-paying public without this entire
program continuing to escalate.

KURALT: At the Ford Company, a power
shovel gives the styling center a face lifting. But that shovel
may not be so busy in the future. President Johnson has asked
business for voluntary cutbacks in expansion to take the pressure
off the building and machine industries. Some companies have
complied with the President's request. For example, A.T.&T.
alone will not spend %200 million it had planned for expansion
this year. At the Ford Motor Company reductions are in order too.
Ford president Arjay Miller:

MILLER: In response to the President's

request to cut back capital expenditures, we have come to the
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conclusion that we can reduce our planned expenditures by 10 per
cent. We think we can do this without hurting, to any serious
degree, our 2bility to produce vehicles. We want to continue to
increase our output of vehicles because increased production is
one way to meet the danger of inflation.

KURALT: While many companies will not
spend as much as they planned, they're still going to spend more
than ever before - and that keeps inflation rolling.

And what about Tim Mikulen?
Will he cut back on his spending?
MIKULEN: Well, I think if a man could
afford a color TV or a little nicer car or a nicer piece of
furniture or a better-looking suit, he's working for it, I think
he should be able to go out there and buy it. If I want it and
I think I could afford it, I'd get it,

KURALT: A schoolteacher agrees in
principle,
SCHOOLTEACHER: , Well, I think President Johnson

had a very good point when he pleaded with the housewife tc watch
what she took off the supermarket shelf and to shy away from

the high cost items. But then again we are a country where we
like nice things. ©So I doen't know if you're going to change the
pattern of living in a short time. I - I really don't know
exactly what the answer is.

KURALT: One man who thinks he does know
what the answer is is Michigan Congressman Gerald Ford, who leads
the House Minority. He takes the traditional Republican position
in naming the chief culprit of inflation.
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FORD: We have to go back to the
fundamental fact that the Federal Government is the principal
cause, and you can't blame employees, you can't blame employers,
you can't blame housewives. The finger should be pointed
directly at those who are managing the Federal Government, and
they thus far have not held the line or cut back in non-military
expenditures.
HART: Oh, my good Republican friends
have made inflation an issue, all the time except when they were
responsible for a depression.
KURALT: Michigan Democratic Senator
Philip Hart.
HART: Sure, 1t'll be a political issue;
it always is. I don't think it sells many newspapers, collects
many votes. Maybe it should. But I think that in the kind of
world in which we live and the obscurity of economics, we're
mﬁch more prone to vote a more direct issue. Even though tomatoes
cost more, John's bringing home a whole lot more than he did. So,
let's not rock the boat. Certainly, it'll be an issue. But that
doesn't mean that it will be decisive.
KURALT: The voluntary curb-inflation-
yourself program continues. The chairman of the President's
Council of Economic Advisers, Gardner Ackley, joined the Johnson
campaign when he told the United States Chamber of Commerce that
take-home pay hasn't risen as fast as profits. Then he made a
request.
ACKLEY : Is the price increase you're

considering really necessary? Are there not some prices that in
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the long run competition is going to force down, and that you can
cut now? Are you doing your part to fight inflation?

KURALT: Another recommendation of the
Council of Economic Advisers has been the 3.2 guideline., It's a
suggestion that wages can increase about 3.2 per cent a year
without adding much to the cost of things. To many people that
doesn't seem realistic. Among them is an executive of Tim's
union, the United Auto Workers. Vice President Leonard Woodcock:
WOODCOCK: I don't think the guidelines as
set at 3.2 per cent are realistic. First of all the arithmetic
is wrong. As first set up by the Council of Economic Advisers a

few years ago, it provided for a moving five-year period. And

had that five-year moving period been observed, we would have, today,

3.6 not 3.,2. Secondly, this is a wage and price policy only and
not an income policy., And if we consider General Motors, for
example, the ownefs of the enterprise have over the last five
years obtained 21 per cent additional income through dividends on
a compounded basis annually, and you can't say to one portion of
the enterprise, "You must be restricted to 3.2 for the good of
the nation," when another portion of the enterprise is galloping
along at 21 per cent. So that my estimate is that when we come
to 1967 we will not be satisfied by any stretch of the imagination
by a mechanical application of 3.2 per cent.

MILLER: The figures that I see indicate
that 3.2 per cent is more than adequate.

KURALT: Ford president, Arjay Miller,
MILLER: Generally, the consensus is that
there's something less than three per cent, is the appropriate

figure for the rate of productivity increase in the total economy.
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If you go back over a period of
five years only, the average is, say, 3.6, or something over three
per cent., I think though that any objective person would
recognize that the past five years have not been typical. It's
almost been a period of uninterrupted production increases. And
during the period of production increases you have an increase in
productivity. You've got to go back over cycles when there're
both ups and downs. And if you go through any period of time in
which there's an up-and-down cycle, the rate of productivity

increase is closer to 3.2 per cent and I think below,.

KURALT: And on the same subject, Tim
Mikulen:
MIKULEN: 3.2? Noy I'd be very

dissatisfied with this because it wouldn't be doing nothing for
me. It's just - what - what is it - nine cents an hour or 45.00
a week? This is nothing nowadays. That can't even buy me two good
ssteaks.

If Mr. Reuther signed this type
of contract, then he'd be selling us doyn the river.
KURALT: Most economists feel welre only
a short way over the threshold of this inflationary period. But
that!'s far enough for Congressman Gerald Ford.
FORD: I think the record is clear from
past experiences. When you let inflation go too far, when you let
the cost of living get out of hand - as it is at the present time,
without some remedial action, what you in effect are doing is
planting the seeds of a recession., And it seems to me that the'

Johnson Administration has let it go so far that there may well
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be the seeds being planted for a recession which means, of
course, fewer jobs and more people unemployed.

I'm not in favor of a tax
increase at this point, because I honestly believe we can cut
back non-military expenditures sufficiently to justify not having
one, As long as we make an honest effort on the Republican side
to cut back these areas of Federgl spending, we could, in my
opinion, justify a vote against a second tax increase in 1966,
KURALT: One of the ironies about the
present session of Congress is that it's added close to 3
billion to the President's budget. The Congressmen, like Tim
Mikulen, have traditionally found it difficult to make cuts when
self-interest is at stake., The present attitude of the
Administration toward handling inflation is expressed by Senator
| Hart,

HART: ' The concern is that by our
action, at the level of the Federal Government, we will in a
sense reach up and switch off the light instead of finding a
rheostat or a thermostat or whatever it is that lets you turn
the thing off a little bit, and a little bit, and a little bit.
It would be disastrous to jobs if to prevent an inflation of X
per cent we slashed public spending, increased interest rates,
raised taxes, with the net effect of withdrawing %20 billion or
$40 billion a quarter, This is the kind of brutal punch to the
jaw that could occur if our response to an inflationary danger
is unrealistic, And it would hurt jobs. It would hurt
everybody.
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But, again, I think that while
we're none of us are truly eligible for Ph.Ds in economics,
everybody in and out of government in the 1960's has learned a
lot of lessons. And we will not reverse the whole cycle if we
identify inflation as having reached a point where we must take
action,
KURALT: Last week when the automobile
production lines gently slowed down, Wall Street shuddered. Some
people thought the business boom was going bust. But even with
less production than planned, the auto industry and everything
else continues to set new records., Inflation is continuing on
its way, Tim Mikulen doesn't speculate in the stock market, but
he does worry about a cutback, because that would cost him his
overtime and send him back to a 4O-hour week.
MIKULEN: If I go back to 40 hours, I
tﬁink I'd feel it pretty heavy. I have two boys now. I have
another one on the way, and I've still got a car payment, and
I've got more doctor bills, I - I think I'd feel the decrease
in hours or earnings quite a bit.
KURALT: Negroes, who have done well by
the current boom by and large would be the first to suffer if a
setback came. Detroit City Councilman Nicholas Hood - himself a
Negro - explained why.
HOOD: One thing that has happened in
the past is that the Negro has been the first to be hurt by a
cutback. He would be thrown out of work, and what gains he has
made - he doesn't have enough seniority to really maintain the

jobs So he would be highly disadvantaged by a cutbacke.



17
KURALT: Prices have been going up since
the cave man discovered a demand for improved rocks. The
greatest jumps usually come during or after a war. When they've
gone up slowly and steadily we've been able to live with them,
but rapid increases hurt. They hurt people like Mary Horeski.
They hurt the price of our products overseas. They make the
things we want in life harder to get. Connie Mikulen has her
own inflation lament,
MIKULEN: He leaves the house about three
o'clock in the afternoon to go to work., The other day he came
home, It was 5:30 in the morning. So he comes home; he has a
sandwich, flops in bed. The next thing you know it's time for
me to get the poor guy up for lunch, and wash and shave, and
it's time for him to go to work. He doesn't see the boys., It
makes me feel terrible that he has to do this in order for us to
survive. If prices went down I think a man would have more time
to spend with his family. He wouldn't have to kill himself to
make that dollar to pay for the things that we need, so he has
to sacrifice and what he's sacrificing is his family.
KURALT: And Tim himself feels inflation
is a kind of pervasive nightmare, inhabited by strange creatures.
MIKULEN: The way things look I don't know
what's going to happen. Everything's going up higher and higher
and higher, and you wonder when the heck it'!'s going to stop. It's
just a thing that's an octopus or some kind of monster. You
can't get away from it., It's just - it's on you. It's after you
day after day, month after month, year after year, but I myself -
I just sit back and dig in my pockets. That's all.
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KURALT: If Tim Mikulen feels he's being
chased by the inflation monster, at least he's not running alone.
Recently President Johnson brought his Labor-Management Advisory
Committee tc the White House to suggest ways of fighting
inflation. He asked them, "If you were President, what would you
do?" The committee is thinking about that. Its members can
suggest waiting to see what happens or an immediate tax boost,
They can suggest that labor trim its wage demands or that
business hold down its profits. They can plead for a cutback in
Federal spending, or even higher interest rates on loans. They
can recommend one or all or a combinagtion of those things. And
then the President has to decidey for on his decision will depend
whether or not Tim and Connie Mikulen's inflation monster is
slain in this the Year of the 72¢ Dollar.

' This is Charles Kuralt.
ANNOUNCER: : "The 72¢ Dollar" was written and
produced by Joel Heller and researched by Maurice Berk.

Executive producer, Joe Dembo, This was a special presentation

of CBS NEWS,
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PLEASE CREDIT ANY QUOTES OR EXCERSTS FROM THIS ABC RADIO AND
TELEVISION PROGRAM TO "ABC'S ISSUES AND ANSWERS."

1 6SUES AND ANSWERS

SUNDAY, JUNE 192, 1966

GUEST: Congressman Gerald R, Ford (R. Mich)
House Minority Leader

INTERVIEWED BY: Bill Lawrence, ABC Correspondent

and
Wally Bruner, ABC Correspondent

MR.LAWRENCE: Congressman Ford, now that vou have labeled
the war in Vietnam "President Johnson's war," does this mean
that the basic bipartisan support of that conflict has ended?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I think to set the record

i

straight if I might, I'd like to read what I said, one

sentencs=.

I said, "It is an undeclared war and in that sense it is
President Johnson's war."

In that context I think it is accurate to label it as I
did. The President is Commander-in-~Chief. He has committed
285,000 U. s. military personnel to South Vietnam. lle

determines the strategy and the tactics and so forth.

On the other hand, I think in all honesty the House and
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even more imgortantly in conflict because of its serious
consequences is a war involving the whole United States.

Now, I don't think that the conflict in Vietnam is qéing to be
a political issue unless we don't find some solution quickly.

MR. BRUNER: In labeling this as President Johnson's
war, was this your own personal observation, or was this a
decision reached perhaps through consultation with other
Pepublican leadgrs?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: In this case, I prepared the state-
ment myself and I think it was accurate in the context that
I have tried to describe it.

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, does Senator Dirksen agree with
you, for example? Is there any conflict in the leadership of
the two houses here among the Pepublicans?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don't think there¢ is any conflict
in the overall position of the Republican Party as far as the
conflict in Vietnam is concerned.

Senator Dirksen and I have repeatedly said that the
United States should stand forthrightly and steadfastly against
Communist aggression in South Vietnam, in Southeast Asia,
Berlin or any place else.

On the other hand, we in the Minority party in the Legis-

lative Branch should not try to run the war. We shoglﬂh‘ff;

pick the weapons or determine the strategy. This ig the
\

responsibility of the Commander-in-~Chief, President 36&5593.
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But, as long as he takes a firm stand against Communist
aggression and terror, the Republicans will stand with him.

MR. BRUNER: Well, what else would vou have him dec that
he isn't doing now?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: The PRepublicans, last December, in
their Coordinating Committee meeting, Wally, where we have
representatives from the House and the Senate and the Governorsg
and the former candidates for the presidency, we said that the
Republican Party was against an expanded large-scale ground
war on the Mainland of China.

We are fearful that the added commitment of about
15,000 U. S. military personnel each month by the President
is getting us into that position.

We, on the other hand, believe there are some steps that
can be taken, such as the closing of the Port of Haiphong
by any Sna of three or four different means or methods. We
think t'ere ought to be a2 greater contpibution by some of
our allies and if they won't heb us, the least they ought to
do is sEop helping the enemy. We don't feel it is our respon-
sibility to pick the target, determine the strategy or the
tactics.

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, Congressman, you said just a moment
ago -- I am sure you misspoke yourself, but let's get the
record straight -- you were against an expanded ground war

on the Mainland of China. I think you meant the Mainland of
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Asia, though you are against the war with Asia too.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I meant in the broad sense, Bill,
we are against a large-scale ground war on the Mainland of
Asia. That is the more correct way to put it.

We certainly would include the Mainland of China within
that definition.

MR. LAWRENCE: Do you see any danger that we are escalat-
ing into that kind of a conflict?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, I think you can go back to
about 12 to 18 months ago when we had in South Vietnam
approximately 20,000 U. S. military personnel. We now have
287,000 U. S. troops in South Vietnam and we have other air
and sea forces around the perbhery of South Vietnam.

It does appear,when you look at the numbers, that we are
approximating a large scale war in Southeast Asia and if the
trend continues to the figure some people are discussing,
400,000 or more, then I think we are engaged in a real big
conflict. Bigger, for example, numerically speaking, than we
had in Korea some ten or twelve years ago.

MR. LAWRENCE: Do you now see Vietnam in its present
condition a limited war expanding into a meaningful issue
in the 1966 congresional election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think it could be although atﬁ;he
moment it is wvery hard, Bill, to determine preci ‘

If this strateqy that the President is foll
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to indicate that we could be involved in a prolonged war,
I think the American people will take some action at the polls
next November, particularly if they think there is another
method that would bring the war to a conclusion more quickly,
such as, I think, more effective utilization of air and sea
power.

The American peoéle will not stand for a long, drawn-out,
large-scale military conflict.

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, you think we want to get

in and get out. You think this is the philosophy of the

" American people one way or the other.

MR, FORD: Yes, Wally. My mail reflects it. I think
the various polls and surveys show that the American
people do want to be successful in South Vietnam. They
understand the consegquences if we withdrew, but they are
getting more and more dissatisfied with the fact that we seem
to be making a bigger and bigger effort but we are not getting
the kind of success that will bring about negotiations and a
settlement, and the American people are on the breaking point
I really believe, of"either get in there and prevai;, achieve
your objectives, or get out.”

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, how do you translate this into a
vote in November? Do those who want to expand the war and
hit harder, do they vote Republican or do they vote Demoératic?

. REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, this is difficult tc analyze.
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I wish I had the answer. I suspect that those who supported
President Johnson in 1964 when he in effect said, "We aran't
going to expand the war," they are probably very disillusioned
with the President's promise and his performance and thay may
stay away from the polls.

On the other hand, those people who were Republicans
and who voted for the President may return to the Republican
fold and say, "Well, we made a bad choice. Let's try the
Republicans again."”

I think this is probably what will happen. All of the
polls show the President's personal popularity is
plummeting downward, the support for the Democratic party is
being eroded away.

I think this will redound very greatly to the Republican
Party in November.

MR. LAWRENCE: Do you see a parallel between '66 and '68,
say, with 1952, when the Korean War was very unpopular, when
the Republicans called it "Truman's War?" Are you looking
for ==

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I would go back ta 1950. I
think right now we are more comparable to 1950 when the
Republicans made significant gains. There was no presidential
contest involved.

It seems to me that we are in a very similar situation

and the Republicans will be the beneficiaries in this off-
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presidential year. If the President isn't more succassful,
doesn't achieve more results by 1968, then I think we will
be in a comparable year to 1952,

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, where do the pecple go
who want to withdraw from Vietnam?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, I don't think there are very
many voters in this country who do want to withdraw because
most Americans appreciate that withdrawal would be a significan
defeat for the United States and would, for a good many years,
put us in a position of a paper tiger.

The United States has a great stake in maintaining free-
dom and maintaining our own national security in Scuth Vietnam
and it is a minority group, thank goodness, that says "Let's
pick up our chips, withdraw, go back to Pearl Harbor."

And so I think in this regard they won't have much of an
impact on the elections in 1966.

* & *®

MR. LAWRENCE: As the Republican leader of the House, what]
de you think of your party's chances in the '66 election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I am convinced we are going
to make very significant Republican gains from the court
houses to the Congress, including the state houses, ir 1966.

It is my honest judgment, based on traveling in 25 states in

/”"\:é *\;‘-; N
1966, and 40 some states in 1965, that we will pickeup Eﬁ;f
(= -
least 40 net gain in the House and could go fift AOr MOresy
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probably five to seven extra Senate seats, anywheres from four
to six more Governors. This is the year of the elephant, as
we take a loock at the public opinion polls, and our own sur-
veys.

MR. LAWRENCE: With the year of the elephant and even with
fifty seats you would still have a Democratic Congress.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes, but, Bill, there would be a
little different ballgame, I might say. I think that some of
these extensive spending programs, so-called CGreat Society
programs that the President has been ramming through the
Congress in the last 18 months, would run into some more search
ing interrogation, some opposition that would end up with a
better program rather than just open-ended authorization with
unlimited spending.

MR. BRUNER: How do you evaluate Ronald Reagan's wvictory
in California? He is a so-called Conservative Republican.

Does this mean the Republican Party perhaps is moving back to
the Goldwater right-wing philosophy, a little farther away
from center, or how do you look at it?

REPTESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, anybody who got all the votes
that Ponald Reagan got in that primarv got them from a wide
spectrum of Republican voters., He qot a tremendous vote and
this was not just‘a right-wing element in the Republican
Party. It was a substantial vote by a great, great number

of Republicans.
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I think he conducted, from my observations, a very
skillful campaign. He brought people in to work those who
had been divided in the past, and he certainly got the kind
of support that a candidate needs to win against Governor
Brown who, incidentally, himself, had a pretty rough ball-
game in his own primary against Mayor Yorty.

MR. BRUNER: Was it a personal victory or Republican
victory for Reagan?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Based on what I understand he
espoused, the programs that he put forth, it was a Republican
victory. He didn't go off in one part of the political
spectrum as far as the Republican Party was concerned. He
talked about common sense, broad solutions to the problems of

the State of California, and,as a consequence, he got broad

support.
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MR. LAWRENCE: Well, if Mr. Reagan can beat Governor
Brown in November, do you see him as a Presidential
hopeful in '68?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, cerxtainly he would be
among those who would be considered, Bill. As you look at
the starters, so to speak at this stage of the ballgame, I
think you have got former Vice President Nixon, my own Governof
George Romney, the possibility of Mayor John Lindsay of New
York, and if Reagan wins he certainly ought to be considered
and maybe some others as we move down the path here.

MR, BRUNER: Who is your personal preference, Congressmanp

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, I am so busy trying to find
Republican candidates for the House and help them get
elected I haven't given it much thought. I will wait for the
convention in 1968.

MR. BRUNER: I noticed as you ticked off the possibilities
you mentioned Mr. Nixon first. Many people feel that you are
closer to him politically, both domestic and foreign. Is
that a fair observation?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I have a great admiration for Dick
Nixon. He is a close personal friend and I thought he did a
great job as Vice President. I think he would have been a
fine President if he had been elected. But I am not picking

any Republican candidate in 1966 because unless we

gains in the House races and in the Senate races
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we will have a hard time finding a good Republican candidate
in 1968, But if we can make the kind of gains that I am
sure we will make November 8, we will have a whole bevy of
first class candidates and the convention will do a good

job in selecting them.

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, it is said that you might
be quite receptive to the Vice Presidential ncmination
yourself. Is this an accurate statement?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, let me make a very firm
comment in that regard. I am not seeking, nor do I intend to
seek any elective office involving the Executive Branch of
the government. I am a candidate for reelection to the House
of Representatives, I would consider it the highest possible
honor to continue the job that I have or something on the
majority side, come after the November elections, so let's
eliminate once and for all any comments about me being a
candidate for any elective office in the Executive Branch
of the government.

MR. LAWRENCE: Once and for all, you now decline the
Vice Presidency even if it is offered to you in ‘68,
right?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think so, Bill.

MR, LAWRENCE., Is the Republican thinking a?ou'tssv now
based on the widely held assumption that President féhnson

will seek another term?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well certainly President Johnson
would want another term if he comes out of the Vietnam
war successfully, if he keeps the economy at the level that
he thinks it should be.

I see no reason why he shouldn't seek the Presidency
in 1968 but I am just as confident that a Republican candidate
could give him a good battle, as I see the picture now. And
it is not a political campaign that the Republicans should jusj
say we shouldn't engage in. We ought to get a good
candidate, we will have good issues, and I think we will have
a chance to win.

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, one of his aides told me the other
day he wouldn't bet a nickel either way on whether he would
run.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, Bill, they are better
informed than I am. I could only --

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, would it change your thinking a lot

though, if you were running against another man?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don't think so. We should
nominate our candidate based on what our delegates think
is the best man, and we shouldn't worxy about whether
Presidenf Johnson is going to seek reelection or whether it

will be Vice President Humphrey or Bobby Kennedy. That:-

XD N .
= N ({;»
would be an interesting conflict in the Democrat'g;convengion.
\ o= =
A\

\ \‘ (‘Ik
I think we'd better make our own choice and let theé Democgrats
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make their determination.

MR. BRUNER: Do you see it clear and positively,
though, that Mr. Johnson will seek another term? In your own
mind, and personally?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I see no evidence to the contrary.
Most Presidents like to seek reelection, and I don‘t think
President Johnson is any different in that regard from his
predecessors.

MR. LAWRENCE: Congressman, to come back to the '66
campaign in which we are now engaged, what are the main
domestic issues on which you hope to profit politically?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: The principal domestic issue,
Bill, is the failure of the Johnson-Humphrey Administration
to control the increases in the cost of living. The cost
of living went up two percent last year in 1965. In the
first four months of 1966 the cost of living went up 1.4 per-
cent, and if you analyze that for 1966 it will mean a price
increase of approximately four percent.

Now the President condemns labor and management for in-
creasing prices, or seeking wage increases. He tells
housewives they should buy cheaper, or buy less. But the
President doesn't do very much about controlling or cutting
back non-military expenditures, and this is where the problem
is and this is where he could do the most good, and I would

hope that he would tackle this problem before he condemns
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others.

Now the second important issue, I think, is that the
Anmerican people are concerned about a lack of a two-party
system in this country. They are concerned that the Executive
Branch is getting too powerful and that the Legislative
Branch with the overwhelming Democratic majorities,
simply does what the President tells them to do.

Now we have a tradition in this country of real compe-
tition in the House and the Senate between the two
major parties, We don't have that now, with the Democrats
having two to one majorities. The American people are fearful
that we are losing one of the basic cornerstones or
ingredients in our system by the Democrats having such a
wide superiority numerically speaking.

I think also another issue is the lack of credibility
of the Johnson-Humphrey Administration. We have got a file
of a great many pages where there have been many comments or
releases by the Johnson-Humphrey Administration which shows
they have told half the truth or failed to disclose all
of the facts, and then of course out in the Middlewest the
farmers are furious with the Johnson-Humphrey-Freeman
Administration, and for good reasons.

MR. BRUNER: Well, that is enough to start with now,
Congressman, for some questions on them.

On inflation do you favor a tax increase this year?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don't, unless the President
can show that the costs of the war in Vietnam are getting out
of hand. In other words, if the President comes up with
a supplemental for the Army, Navy, Air Force and Marines
of a very, very substantial amount, I think the Republicans
would have to take a look at it to see whether we could afford
to have that kind of added deficit particularly when
we haven't been able to cut back on non-military expenditures.

MR. BRUNER: of course you have charged, though -- you
know, that the Vietnam budget has been hidden and that
we haven't been told the true cost of the Vietnam war. If
this is the case, won't we need increased taxes?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, there is no doubt that -
they have failed to disclose the true cost of the war in Vietn?m.
Last year the Presidetn sent up a hudget for the Defense
Department and before the end of the year the Congress had
to add at his regquest almost $15 billion in extra funds to
finance the military.

Now this year the President sent up a budget for the
Defense Department, includingvthe costs of Vietnam, and
already they are running short of money for this fiscal year
with the increasing prospects of the next fiscal year.

All people who are knowledgeable in this area, the Members
of the Committee on Appropriations in the House ané{;ﬁffh?\

-

Senate, are sure that the President's budget undefﬁﬁnded ;ﬂ
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our military needs in Vietnam and elsewhere, and we can expect
anywhere from a five to six billion dollar supplement. Now
I don't think this is being honest with the American people.
I think that the President or the Secretary of Defense or
his fiscal people in the Pentagon should have known, should
have been able to forecast what the costs were going to be and
in all honesty should have told the American people what this
conflict in dollars and possible taxes would mean.
MR. LAWRENCE: Do you think as a practical matter if
the President decided he wanted a tax increast at this late
date he could get it from this Congress?
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: If the President relates the
absolute need for additional funds for the war in Vietnam
to a tax increase, his prospects are good because most
American; under no circumstances would want to deprive the
Defense Department of needed funds. But on the other hand
the President's chances of getting such a tax increase would
be improved if he would take some action to cut back non-

military expenditures.
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MR. LAWRENCE: Congressman Ford, what is the Republican
Party doing to try to attract the new Negro voter in the
south where the Negro has been pretty well kicked around
by the local Democratic Party?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, it is interesting, Bill,.

You know some of these ultra-racists in the Democratic
Party who caused all the trouble down in Alabama, for example,
in 1964 and '65, several of themcame to the Republican Party
this year and said they wanted to run as Republicans, and
the Republican organization in Alabama said, "No, we are
building a Republican Party in Alabama on a different basis
and we don't want you in our party as a candidate for the
Republicans."

I think this is the best evidence of what we are trying
to do in’ Albaama and elsewhere. We want a Republican Party
not built on the traditional Democratic basis, but on a new
basgsis in the South.

MR, BRUNER: Well, Congressman, how do you stand on the
Civil Rights Bill, the one that is in Congress now,
concerning the section that would prohibit discrimination in
sales and rentals -=- yvery briefly?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think the Republicans generally
will vote against the so-called Title IV as it stands. I
think this goes far too far at the present time.

MR. BRUNER: Thank you very much, Congressman Ford, for
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(Next week: Robert F. Kennedy (Dem. - New York).)
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PLEASE CREDIT ANY QUOTES OR EXCE S FROM THIS ABC RADIO ALD
TELEVISION PROGRAM TO "ARBC SSUES AND ANSWERS.,"

I SSUES AND ANSWERS

SUNDAY, JUNE 19, 1966

GUEST: Congressman Gerald R, Ford (R. Mich}
House Minority Leader

INTERVIEWED BY: Bill Lawrence, ABC Correspondent

and
Wally Bruner, ABC Correspondent

MR.LAWRENCE: Congressman Ford, now that you have labeled
the war in Vietnam "President Johnson's war," does this mean
that the basic bipartisan support of that conflict has ended?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I think to set the record
stra?ght if I might, i’d like to read what I said, one
sentenc=.

I said, "It is an undeclared war and in that sense it is
Pfesident Johnson's war."

In that context I think it is accurate to label it as I
did. The President is Commander-in-Chief. He has committed
285,000 U. S. military personnel to South Vietnam. Ille
determines the strategy and the tactics and so forth.

On the other hand, I think in all honesty the House and

the Senate,the Democrats and Republicans, do have a serious
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aven more imgortantly in conflict because of its serious
consequences is a war involving the whole United States.

Now, I don't think that the conflict in Vietnam is going to be
a political issue unless we don't find some soluticon quickly.

MR. BRUNER: In labeling this as President Johnson's
war, was this your own personal observation, or was this a
decision reached perhaps through consultation with other
Republican leadgrs?

REPRESENTATIVE FORRP: In this case, I prepared the state-
ment myself and I think it was accurate in the context that
I have tried to describe it.

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, does Senator Dirksen agree with
you, for example? Is there any conflict in the leadership of
the two houses here among the Republicans?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don't think there is any conflict
in the overall position of the Republican Party as far as the
conflict in Vietnam is concerned.

Senator Dirksen and I have repeatedly said that the
United States should stand forthrightly and steadfastly against
Communist aggression in South Vietnam, in Southeast Asia,
Berlin or any place else.

On the other hand, we in the Minority party in the Legis-
lative Branch should not try to run the war. We shouldn't
pick the weapons or determine the strategy. This is the

responsibility of the Commander-in-Chief, President Johnson.
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But, as long as he takes a firm stand against Communist
aggression and terror, the Republicans will stand with him.

MR. BRUNER: Well, what else would vou have him do that
he isn't doing now?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: The Republicans, last December, in
their Coordinating Committee meeting, Wally, where we have
representatives from the House and the Senate and the Governors
and the former candidates for the presidency, we said that the
Republican Party was against an expanded large-scale ground
war on the Mainland of China.

We are fearful that the added commitment of about
15,000 U. S§. military personnel each month by the President
is getting us into that position.

We, on the other hand, believe there are some steps that
can be taken, such as the closing of the Port of Haiphong
by any oa2 of three or four different means or methods. We
think t'ere ought to be a greater contpibution by some of
our allies and if they won't heb us, the least they ought to
do is stop helping the enemy. We don't feel it is our respon-
sibility to pick the tarqget, determine the strategy or the
tactics.

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, Congressman, you said just a moment
ago -- I am sure you misspoke yourself, but let's get the
record straight -- you were against an expanded ground war.

on the Mainland of China. I think you meant the Mainland of
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Asia, though you are against the war with Asia too.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I meant in the broad sense, Bill,
we are against a large-scale ground war on the Mainland of
Asia. That is the more correct way to put it.

We certainly would include the Mainland of China within
that definition.

MR. LAWRENCE: D¢ you see any danger that we are escalat-
ing into that kind of a conflict?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, I thnk you can go back to
about 12 to 18 months ago when we had in South Vietnam
approximately 20,000 U, S. military personnel. We now have
287,000 U, S§. troops in South Vietnam and we have other air
and sea forces around the perphery of South Vietnam.

It does appear,when you look at the numbers, that we are
approximating a large scale war in Southeast Asia and if the
trend continues to the figure some people are discussing,
400,000 or more, then I think we are engaged in a real big
conflict. Bigger, for example, numerically speaking, than we
had in Korea some ten or twelve years ago.

MR, LAWRENCE: Dc you now see Vietnam in its present
condition a limited war expanding into a meaningful issue
in the 1966 congressional election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think it could be although at the
moment it is very hard, Bill, to determine precis¢ly.

ol
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to indicate that we could be involved in a prolonged war,
I think the American people will take some action at the polls
next November, particularly if they think there is another
method that would bring the war to alconclusion more quickly,
such as, I think, more effective utilization of air and sea
power.

The American people will not stand for a long, drawn-out,
large-scale military conflict.

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, you think we want to get

in and get out. You think this is the philosophy of the

" american people one way or the other.

MR. FORD: Yes, Wally. My mail reflects it. I think
the various polls and surveys show that the American
people do want to be successful in South Vietnam. They
understand the consequences if we withdrew, but they are
getting more and more dissatisfied with the fact that we seem
to be making a bigger and bigger effort but we are not getting
the kind of success that will bring about negotiations and a
settlement, and the American people are on the breaking point
I really believe, of"either get in there and prevai}, achieve
your objectives, or get out."

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, how do you translate this into a
vote in November? Do those who want to expand the war and
hit harder, do they véte Republican or do they vote Democratic?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, this is difficult to analyze,
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I wish I had the answer. I suspect that those who suprorted

President Johnson in 1964 when he in effect said, "We aran't

going to expand the war," they are probably very disillusioned

with the President's promise and his performance and thay may
stay away from the polls,

On the other hand, those people who were Republicens
and who voted for the President may return to the Republican
fold and say, "Well, we made a bad choice. ILet's try the
Republicans again."

I think this is probably what will happen. All of the
pells show the President's personal popularity is
plummeting downward, the support for the Democrztic party is
being ecoded away.

I think this will redound very greatly to the Republican
Party in November.

MR. LAWRENCE: Do you see a parallel between ‘66 and '68,
say, with 1952, when the Korean War was very unpopular, when
the Republicans called it "Truman's War?" Are you locking
for ==

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I would go back to 1950. I
think right now we are more comparable to 1950 when the
Republicans made significant gains. There was no presidential
contest involved.

It seems to me that we are in a very similar situation

and the Republicans will be the beneficiaries in this off-
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presidential year. If the President isn't more successful,
doesn‘'t achieve more results by 1968, then I think we will
be in a comparable year to 1952,

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, where do the pecple go
who want to withdraw from Vietnam?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, I don't think there are very
many voters in this country who do want to withdraw because
most Americans appreciate that withdrawal would be a significan
defeat for the United States and would, for a good many years,
put us in a position of a paper tiger.

The United States has a great stake in maintaining free-
dom and maintaining our own national security in South Vietnanm
and it is a minority group, thank goodness, that says "lLet's
pick up our chips, withdraw, go back to Pearl Harbor."

And so I think in this regard they won't have much of an
impact on the elections in 1966.

' ® ®* *®

MR. LAWRENCE: As the Republican leader of the House, what
do you think of your party's chances in the '66 election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I am convinced we are going
to make very significant Republican gains from the court
houses to the Congress, including the state houses, ir 1966.

It is my honest judgment, based on traveling in 25 states

)

1966, and 40 some states in 1965, that we will pick up ai'

least 40 net gain in the House and could go fifty or m
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probably five to seven extra Senate seats, anywheres from four
to six more Governors. This is the year of the elephant, as
we take a lock at the public opinion polls, and our own sur-
veys.

MR. LAWRENCE: With the year of the elephant and even with
fifty seats you would still have a Democratic Congress.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Yes, but, Bill, there would be a
little different ballgame, I might say. I think that some of
these extensive spending programs, so-called Great Society
programs that the President has been ramming through the
Congress in the last 18 months, would run into sSome more search
ing interrogation, some opposition that would end up with a
better program rather than just open-ended authorization with
unlimited spending.

MR. BRUNER: How do you evaluate Ronald Reagan's victory
in Caliernia? He is a so-called Conservative Republican.

Does this mean the Republican Party perhaps is moving back to
the Goldwater right-wing philosophy, a little farther away
ffom center, or how do you look at it?

REPTESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, anybody who got all the votes
that Ronald Reagan got in that primary got them from a wide
spectrum of Republican voters. He qot a tremendous vote and
this was not just‘a right-wing element in the Republican
Party. It was a substantial vote by a great, great number

of Republicans.
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I think he conducted, from my observations, a very
skillful campaign. He brought people in to work those who
had been divided in the past, and he certainly got the kind
of support that a candidate needs to win against Governor
Brown who, incidentally, himself, had a pretty rough ball-
game in his own primary against Mayor Yorty.

MR. BRUNER: Was it a personal victory or Republican
victory for Reagan?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Based on what I understand he
espéused, the programs that he put forth, it was a Republican
victory. He didn't go off in one part of the political
spectrum as far as the Republican Party was concerned. He
talked about common sense, broad solutiong to the problemg of
the State of California, and,as a consequence, he got broad

support.
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MR. LAWRENCE: Well, if Mr. Reagan can beat Governor
Brown in November, do you see him as a Presidential
hopeful in '68?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, certainly he would be
among those who would be considered, Bill. As you look at
the starters, so to speak at this stage of the ballgame, I
think you have got former Vice President Nixon, my own Governof
George Romney, the possibility of Mayor John Lindsay of New
York, and if Reagan wins he certainly ought to be considered
and maybe some others as we move down the path here.

MR. BRUNER: Who is your personal preference, Congressmanp

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, I am so busy trying to find
Republican candidates for the House and help them get
elected I haven't given it much thought. I will wait for the
convention in 1968,

MR. BRUNER: I noticed as you ticked off the possibilities
you mentioned Mr. Nixon first. Many people feel that you are
closer to him politically, both domestic and foreign. 1Is
that a fair observation?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I have a great admiration for Dick
Nixon. He is a close personal friend and I thought he did a
great job as Vice President. I think he would have been a
fine President if he had been elected. But I am not picking
any Republican candidate in 1966 because unless we make‘some

gains in the House races and in the Senate races in l&Sb
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we will have a hard time finding a good Republican candidate
in 1968. But if we can make the kind of gains that I am
sure we will make November 8, we will have a whole bevy of
first class candidates and the convention will do a good

job in selecting them.

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, it is said that you might
be guite receptive to the Vice fresidential nomination
yourself. Is this an accurate statement?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, let me make a very firm
comment in that regard. I am not seeking, nor do I intend to
seek any elective office involving the Executive Branch of
the government. I am a candidate for reelection to the House
of Representatives. I would consider it the highest possible
honor to continue the job that I have or something on the
majority 'side, come after the November elections, sc let's
eliminate once and for all any comments about me being a
candidate for any elective office in the Executive Branch
of the government.

MR. LAWRENCE: Once and for all, you now decline the
Vice Presidency even if it is offered to you in '68,
right?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think so, Bill.

MR, LAWRENCE. Is the Republican thinking "/”“’63 now
based on the widely held assumption that President Johnson

will seek another term?
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“ though, if you were running against another man?

will be Vice President Humphrey or Bobby Kennedy. That

would be an interesting conflict in the Democratic convention.

12

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well certainly President Johnson
would want another term if he comes out of the Vietnam
war successfully, if he keeps the economy at the level that
he thinks it should be.

I see no reason why he shouldn't seek the Presidency
in 1568 but I am just as confident that a Republican candidate
could give him a good battle, as I see the picture now. And
it is not a political campaign that the Republicans should just
say we shouldn't engage in. We ought to get a good
candidate, we will have good issues, and I think we will have
a chance to win,

MR. LAWRENCE: Well, one of his aides told me the other
day he wouldn't bet a nickel either way on whether he would
run.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, Bill, they are better
informed than I am. I could only --

MR, LAWRENCE: Well, would it change your thinking a lot

REPRESENTATIVE FCRD: I don't think so. We should
nominate our candidate based on what our delegates think
is the best man, and we shouldn’t worry about whether

President Johnson is going to seek reelection or whether it

I think we'd better make our own choice and let the Democrats
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make their determination.

MR, BRUNER: Do you see it clear and positively,
though, that Mr. Johnson will seek another term? In your own
mind, and personally?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I see no evidence to the contrary.
Most Presidents like to seek reelection, and I don't think
President Johnson is any different in that regard from his
predecessors.

MR. LAWRENCE: Congressman, to come back to the '66
campaign in which we are now engaged, what are the main
domestic issues on which you hope to profit politically?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: The principal domestic issue,
Bill, is the failure of the Johnson-Humphrey Administration
to contFol the increases in the cost of living. The cost
of living went up two percent last year in 1965. In the
first four months of 1966 the cost of living went up 1.4 per-
cent, and if you analyze that for 1966 it will mean a price
ihcrease of approximately four percent.

Now the President condemns labor and management for in-
creasing prices, or seeking wage increases. He tells
housewives they should buy cheaper, or buy less. But the
President doesn't do very much about controlling or cutting

back non-military expenditures, and this is where the problem

”

is and this is where he could do the most good, and I would

hope that he would tackle this problem before he conéémns
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others.

Now the second important issue, I think, is that the
American people are concerned about a lack of a two-party
system in this country. They are concerned that the Executive
Branch is getting too powerful and that the Legislative
Branch with the overwhelming Democratic majorities,
simply does what the President tells them to do.

Now we have a tradition in this country of real compe-
tition in the House and the Senate between the two
major parties, We don't have that now, with the Democrats
having two to one majorities. The American people are fearful
that we are losing one of the basic cornerstones or
ingredients in our system by the Democrats having such a
wide superiority numerically speaking.

I think also another issue is the lack of credibility
of the Johnson-Humphrey Administration. We have got a file
of a great many pages where there have been many comments or
releases by the Johnson-Humphrey Administration which shows
they have told half the truth or failed to disclose all
of the facts, and then of course out in the Middlewest the
farmers are furious with the Johnson-Humphrey-Freeman
Administration, and for good reasons.

MR. BRUNER: Well, that is enough to start with now,
Congressman, for some questions on them.

On inflation do you favor a tax increase this year?
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I don't, unless the President
can show that the costs of the war in Vietnam are getting out
of hand. In other words, if the President comes up with
a supplemental for the Army, Navy, Air Force and Marines
of a very, very substantial amount, I think the Republicans
would have to take a look at it to see whether we could afford
to have that kind of added deficit particularly when
we haven't been able to cut back on non-military expenditures.
MR. BRUNER: of course you have charged, though -~ you
know, that the Vietnam budget has been hidden and that
we haven't been told the true cost of the Vietnam war. If
this is the case, won't we need increased taxes?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Wally, there is no doubt that

they have failed to disclose the true cost of the war in Vietnam.

Last year the Presidetn sent up a budget for the Defense
Depart&ent and before the end of the year the Congress had
to add at his request almost $15 billion in extra funds to
finance the military.

Now this year the President sent up a budget for the
Defense Department, including the costs of Vietnam, and
already they are running short of money for this fiscal year
with the increasing prospects of the next fiscal year.

All people who are knowledgeable in this area, the Membersg

A FORDN
of the Committee on Appropriations in the House and/in the

Senate, are sure that the President's budget under ﬁpded 5?
2
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our military needs in Vietnam and elsewhere, and we can expect
anywhere from a five tc six billion dollar supplement. Now
I don't think this is being honest with the American people.
I think that the President or the Secretary of Defense or
his fiscal people in the Pentagon should have known, should
have been able to forecast what the costs were going to be and
in all honesty should have told the American people what this
conflict in dollars and possible taxes would mean.
MR. LAWRENCE: Do you think as a practical matter if
the President decided he wanted a tax increast at this late
date he could get it from this Congress?
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: If the President relates the
absolute need for additional funds for the war in Vietnam
to a tax increase, his prospects are good because most
Americané under no circumstances would want to deprive the
Defense Department of needed funds. But on the other hand
the President’'s chances of getting such a tax increase would
be improved if he would take some action to cut back non-

military expenditures.
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MR. LAWRENCE: Congressman Ford, what is the Republican
Party doing to try to attract the new Negro voter in the
south where the Negro has been pretty well kicked around
by the local Democratic Party?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, it is interesting, Bill.

You know some of these ultra-racists in the Democratic
Party who caused all the trouble dbwn in Alabama, for example,
in 1964 and '65, several of themcame to the Republican Party
this year and said they wanted to run as Republicans, and
the Republican organization in Alabama said, "No, we are
building a Republican Party in Alabama on a different basis
and we don't want you in our party as a candidate for the
Republicans."

I think this is the best evidence of what we are trying
to do in Albaama and elsewhere. We want a Republican Party
not built on the traditional Democratic basis, but on a new
basis in the South.

MR. BRUNER: Well, Congressman, how do you stand on the
Civil Rights Bill, the one that is in Congress now,
concerning the section that would prohibit discrimination in
sales and rentals -- very briefly?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think the Republicans generally

will vote against the so~-called Title IV as it stands

think this goes far too far at the present time.
=
MR. BRUNER: Thank you wvery much, Congressman F00
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being with us on ISSUES AND ANSWERS.
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(Next week: Robert F. Kennedy (Dem, - New York).)
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WASHINGTON 6, D. C.

August 15, 1966

The Honorable Gerald R, Ford
Room H230, Capitol Building
Washington, D, C,

Dear Congressman Ford:

By now you probably have been briefed on our request for
your support of the promotion of the Metropolitan Opera Touring
Company. The matter was discussed with your Press Secretary,
Paul Mildrich, last Friday by our staff assistant, Wes McPheron,

We would be most delighted if you will find the time today to parti-
cipate in a brief interview with Miss Rise Stevens, star of the Metro-
politan Opera, in the House Recording Studio, Room 160 of the Cannon
Building at the time set aside for the interview by Mr, Mildrich,

Mr, Mildrich has reserved fifteen minutes for filming you
and Miss Stevens in the House Recording Studio on Monday, August
15, from 12:30-12:45. b

Enclosed is a proposed outline for the interview which calls
attention to the pending visit of the National Company to Grand Rapids
on October 14-21, .

As you know, the Center is a sponsor of the Metropolitan
Opera, This sponsorship is consistent with the efforts of the Center,
which was established by Congress, to demonstrate its links to com-
munities throughout the United States. Our company is involved as
the public relations consultants for the Kennedy Center.

We suggest that during the interview, you bring out, as
indicated in the outline, your support for the Center and similar cul-
tural projects. Miss Stevens will respond in a similar vein,

The interview will be filmed in 16mm black and white film
for use on a local television station in Grand Rapids prior to the
appearance of the Touring Company there, It will last approximately
three minutes, We will service the film to the station.

Other Congressmen who are scheduled to participate in inter-

views with Miss Stevens in regard to the appearance of the Touring
Company in their district are:

Los ANGELES NEw YORK PARIS



Congressman Ford
August 15, 1966
Page 2

Rep. Rodney M, Love, Ohio
Rep., William L. Springer, Ill,
Rep. Robert W, Kastenmeier, Wisc,
Rep. Robert E, Jones, Alabama
Rep., Wilbur D, Mills, Ark,
Rep. John C., Kunkel, Pa,

Rep. E. Ross Adair, Pa,

Rep. Thaddeus J. Dulski, N,*Y,"
Rep. William S, Moorehead, Pa,
Rep. Albert W, Watson, S,  C.
Rep. David E, Satterfield, Va.

On the Senate side we hope to arrange interviews between Miss
Stevens and the following:

Senator Stuart Symington, Mo.
Senator Richard B, Russell, Ga.
Senator Birch Bayh, Ind.
Senator Vance Hartke, Ind,
Senator Albert Gore, Tenn,
Senator Robert Griffin, Mich,

In addition to the proposed outline for the interview, we have
enclosed the itinerary of the Metropolitan Opera National Touring Company,
a resume of the Company's background, and material on the John F. Kennedy
Center for the Performing Arts,

Sincerely,

V4 ot

A g feerT
{ Jack Raymond
Vice President

JR/mem

Enclosures (4)
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PROPOSED OUTLINE FOR
TELEVISION INTERVIEW WITH RISE STEVENS

From Washington, D. C., we bring you

who is talking with Miss Rise Stevens, world-famous star of the
Metropolitan Opera and co-manager of the Metropolitan Opera

National Touring Company.

Miss Stevens, I want to tell you that we're delighted that the

Metropolitan Opera National Bewedag Company will be visiting

e st

during its nation-wide tour,

Thank you, . We're looking

forward with pleasure and enthusiasm to our visit to
on

I understand that this tour is being sponsored by the John F.

Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts.

That's right, , and the Friends of

the John F. Kennedy Center, a voluntary organization whose purpose
it is to emphasize the national status of the Center which is now under
construction in Washington, A Center which will give the Capitol its
first national forum for the performing arts....music, the ballet,

opera, the musical theater, drama and poetry.

One of the reasons I've supported the Center, Miss Stevens, is
because of its bi-partisan nature. It was authorized by the Congress
during the Eisenhower Administration and has had the support of every
President since then, It was originally called the National Cultural
Center, but following the death of President Kennedy, it was given its

present name,

i
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Yes, there are no political lines in the performing arts,
We consider the Center's potential audience the same as our

National Opera Company....our national population of 186 million

people,

How many cities are included on this tour of the Metropolitan

Opera National Touring Company ?

Sixteen cities in fifteen states., And =~ to remind - we'll be

in ' on

What will you be performing in 2

. (Add

identification and comment on any local artist appearing with the

Company.)

I believe our time is up now, Miss Stevens, so let me close
by wishing you and the Metropolitan Opera National Touring Company
as much success on the rest of your tour as I know you will experience

in i

Thank you, . I know we'll enjoy our

visit to




THE FRIENDS OF THE KENNEDY CENTER

To: Congressional Committee of the Metropolitan Opera National Company

The repertory for the 1966-67 season of the Metropolitan Opera National
Company will be Puccini's '"La Boheme', Verdi's '"La Traviata', Mozart's
"Marriage of Figaro" and Benjamin Britten's '"Rape of Lucretia."

The following lists those cities and states to be visited by the
Opera Company through November, 1966.

STATE

Alabama

Arkansas
Connecticut

Georgia

Illinois

Indiana

Maryland

Michigan

Missouri
New Jersey

New York

Ohio

Pennsylvania

" Rhode Island
Tennessee
Vermont
Virginia

Wisconsin

CITY

Florence
Huntsville *

Little Rock
Stratford

Columbus
Augusta

Champaign

Fort Wayne
Indianapolis (Opening)

College Park

Detroit
Grand Rapids

St. Louis
Newark
Buffalo
Brooklyn
Rochester
Utica
Dayton
Cleveéland

Columbus

Pittsburgh
Lebanon

Providence
Chattanooga
Burlington
Richmond

Madison

DATE

Oct. 31
Nov. 1

Oct. 29-30
Nov. 12

Nov. 2
Nov. 3

Oct. 4-6

Oct. 17-19
Sept. 15-24

Nov. 9

Oct. 10-15
Oct. 19-21

Oct. 7-8
Nov., 25-27
Sept. 26-28
Nov. 10
Nov. 14-15
Nov. 28
Oct, 3

Nov, 16-19
Oct. 25-28

Sept. 29

Nov. 22-23
Nov. 4-5
Nov. 30
Nov. 7-8

Oct. 22=23



CROWING NATIO

NAL OPERA

FOUR OFFICIALS OF THE METROPOLITAN DISCUSS THE SPADEWORK OF ITS NATIONAL COMPANY

THE ENTERPRISE
by Anthony A. Bliss

In the coming months the public will hear a great deal
about preparations for the new touring division of the
Metropolitan Opera—the National Company, a reper-
tory opera company whose establishment was announced
by President Kennedy last year at the White House. Part
of its significance lies in the premise that it will absorb
some of the superb talent emerging across the country.
Made up almost exclusively of American singers on the
threshold of the world’s international opera houses, the
new company will present opera in sixty-odd communi-
ties throughout the nation. For many in its audiences,
this will be their first experience of operatic theater.

The Metropolitan, with its millions of friends all over
North America, is a national institution, and as such it
looks far beyond its image as “the old lady of Thirty-
ninth Street” to wider horizons. Its own renewal in the
forthcoming move to Lincoln Center is but one of many
avenues of growth. Another is the National Company, with
its obligation to nurture native talent and to contribute to
the vitality and growth of opera throughout the country,

It is no secret that over seven hundred Americans are
While we can he

cinaina in Furanean anera hancec

National Company is dedicated to organizing or enlarging
permanent support of the performing arts in each com-
munity it visits. In other words, long after the perform-
ances of the National Company are local music history,
the community will benefit from increased members and
patronage of the group we will have organized to assist
local leadership in the performing arts fields.

Eventually, to ease the burden of cost for these local
organizations, the National Company will be able to offer
them its sets and costumes on loan. Other services related
to many of the aspects and problems of opera produc-
tion will be provided by the Metropolitan. What we will
then be realizing through the National Company is a long-
desired dream of the Metropolitan: that moment when
the National Company itself has no further purpose and
can be disbanded, because the growth of strong and
healthy opera seasons interlocking in all regions of the
country will have made it unnecessary.

THE ENSEVMBLE
by Rudolf Bing

Within the straining walls of the Metropolitan Opera

House in its last years, plans and projects for the much
Nat the

Aicornicead avmancian nraaram are under wavw

(Reprinted from OPERA NEWS, Nov. 14, 1964.)
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Kennedy Center:

By Wolf Von Eckardt

NLY $600,000 MUST still be
raised by June 30 hefore an act
of Congress, establishing the John F.
Kennedy Center for the Performing
2 Arts as “the sole na-
tional memorial”’ to
the late President in
the National Capital,
will become legally
effective.
It is unthinkable
that this last require-
bl g g§ment will not be met

: & somehow.

“Von Eckardt The ground for
architect Edward Durrell Stone’s im-
posing marble and gold structure
along the Potomac was already sym-
bolically broken by President John-
son last fall. Working drawings are
nearing completion. Bids will be
taken this summer. The steam
shovels should start digging this
October. And no one doubts any
longer that by spring 1969 at the
latest, one of John F. Kennedy’s fond-
est dreams will be realized.

As now conceived, this dream of
providing our Capital with a national
opera house, a theater, concert hall
and cinema-studio worthy of Amer-
ica’s cultural aspirations began to
take shape seven years ago.

There were enormous problems of
financing in a country that still looks
askance at Government support of

Musical
Vistas
Exciting

By Paul Hume

the arts. And there was much heated
controversy about the location of the
Center’s one, all-encompassing build-
ing.

As designed by Stone, who was
retained under the Eisenhower Ad-
ministration, the Center, with its
parking garages and all its necessary
amenities, will cost $46.5 million. The
Treasury has advanced a deferred
loan of $15.5 million for the substruc-
ture. Congress has appropriated $15.5
in Federal -funds provided the re-
m\aining $15.5 are raised privately by
June 30.

Private contributions keep coming
in. Only last week the Italian govern-
ment deposited $1.1 million as earn-
est money on its generous gift of
marble for the building. Operating
funds, along with the Center’s pro-
gram and content, however, should
continue to keep its chairman, Roger
L. Stevens, hustling for quite some
time.

HE DESIGN of the building, all
of 690 feet long, 360 feet wide
and just a foot lower than the Lin-
coln Memorial, remains essentially
unchanged since 'its model delighted
Mr. and Mrs..Kennedy at its unveil-
ing in September, 1962, at Newport,
R.I. Only the romantic idea of a con-
vertible roofgarden for concerts and
performances had to yield to the
reality of airplane noise.
Their ambition is to work out
sound insolation, accoustics, interior

circulation, lobbies and work, stor-
age and rehearsal spaces so that this
Center for the Performing Arts will
perform to perfection for the artists
and audience alike.

With one exception, this effort at
intensive, functional design has not
yielded any sensational innovations
in theater architecture. The audi-
toriums and backstage arrangements
for the 2200-seat opera, the 1114-seat
theater and the 2744-seat concert hall
are, if you like, conventional.

Rather than experiment, Stone is
seeking to make the true and tried
both as efficient and pleasant as
modern architecture and engineering
can make it.

The exception is the cinema-studio
which will serve not only as a small
motion picture theater, seating 510,
but also for intimate performances
of all kinds. Part of the steep seating
platform can mechanically rotate
to create an arena stage in the cen-
ter. It’s enchantingly ingenious.

One great advantage, not only to
people in wheelchairs, is the ground
level entrance through huge, 60 foot
high halls that lead to the grand
lobby with its river view that runs
the full two-block length of the build-
ing and serves all three main audi-
toriums. For once we should have
ample space during intermission.
Tickets will be sold in the spacious
entrance hallways. Elevators carry
you up to the galleries and a profu-

I
|
|
|
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sion of spaces that afford ample room
for all kinds of exhibits and day-
time uses. The restaurants and bar
are on the roof with its terrace and
splendid view.

Right at the entrance will be a

| visitors’ lounge and orientation room
| for visitors. Though the main arteries
| of audience traffic — from the en-
trance halls or the underground ga-
rage to the auditoriums—are spa-
|cious and clear, we'll need that orien-
|tation through the building’s com-
| lexity.

| S TO THE SITE, all concerned

had to accept the fact that, in
the end, the Center must go where
Congress had put its substantial con-
tribution — about 18 acres of park-
land at the foot of E Street, opposite
Roosevelt Island. President Kennedy
had said so all along.

This location puts the Center some-
what remote from the city. It is visu-
ally, if not physically isolated by a
messy spaghetti of freeways that, as
presently designed, will be difficult
to cross on foot.

Nor is this disadvantage sufficiently
offset by a spacious, park-like set-
ting. The Watergate project is woe-
fully crowding in. The southernmost,
massive, sausage-like building of this
wiggly complex encroaches to within
300 feet upon what is to be a national
shrine. The dignity of the John F.
Kennedy Center demands more land,
air and greenery around it.

The approach needs nothing more
than the goodwill and some of the
ample money of the Highway Depart-
ment. Its rebuilt E Street Expressway
now runs straight on axis towards the
middle of the Center’s front plaza.
But when it comes to the sunken
freeway it hesitates timidly and then
fizzles out into wormy ramps running
every which way. The highway
designers have here repeated the
disastrous mistake which has ruined
the potentially dignified continuation
of Constitution Avenue across Theo-
dore Roosevelt Bridge.

Nothing but the expense prevents
the E Street Expressway from
proudly crossing the freeway on a
bridge that is suitably adorned and
would thus give the Center a digni-
fied approach for both people and
cars. The ramps for the cars that
want to enter the freeway could
easily be tucked under this bridge.

Visually, symbolically and physi-
cally such an approach would at
once link the Center to the city, par-
ticularly since the now lost E Street
will eventually have to be run under
the White House grounds to connect
it with the other E Street downtown
which the Pennsylvania Avenue Com-
mission hopes to turn into a main
traffic artery.

The Watergate complex, a design
for which the Italian architect Luigi
Moretti must have had a Riviera play-
ground but not our city in mind.

Cultural Blueprint

consists of five buildings to house
fabulous luxury apartments, a hotel,
offices, stores, swimming pools and
a restaurant. It is owned by a com-
bined United States and Italian in-
vestment.

The last building of the complex
which would crowd the Center and
tower over it by 28 feet does not yet
have a building permit, though the
rest of the complex is under con-
struction.

RECONSIDERATION of our

non-planning of this entire
stretch of the Potomac is in order,
particularly since the President
wants to make the river a model of
beauty.

And while we are at it, we might

really make the Potomac walk-
way, furnished with pleasant light-
posts and benches, a great experi-
ence. It could be cut under Memorial
Bridge. The terrace of the Center
should be cantilevered all the way
over Potomac Parkway right to the
edge of the water. The Planning
Commission has objected to this and
insisted that the terrace cover only
half the drive to leave the walkway
open. But it might be great fun to
walk for a stretch through an arcade
and enjoy the delight of framed out-
looks.
. The Center deserves to be a com-
plete and decisive part of our river-
and cityscape and its presence should
be felt on a nice Sunday stroll.

Dance
May Gain
The Most

Bv Jean Battev




Auvgust 4, 19656

Mrs. William S. Moorhead
Congressional Chafirman
Friends of the Xennedy Center
1701 Pepnsvlvania Avenue, N,W.
Washington, D.C, 20566

Dear Mrs. Moorhead:
Thank you for your letter of July 30th, inviting me to

tape a five-minute television interview with Rise Stevens
for use in Grand Rapids when the Metropolitan Opera Natiomnal

- Company will be performing in Grand Rapids on QOctober 19th.

I appraciate your givine me this opportunity and will be glad
to have my staff set up a mutually convenient time for the
taping wvhen a member of your organization calls.

Thank you again and warmest personal regards.

Sincerely,

Gerald R. Ford, M, C.

GR?:1




FRIENDS OF THE KENNEDY CENTER

1701 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE N-W « WASHINGTON-D-C- 20566

TELEPHONE 382-1933

July 30, 1966

Dear Mr. Ford:

The Metropolitan Opera National Company will be performing
in your area on October 19.

The tour is being co-sponsored, as it was last year, by the
John F. Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts and the Metropolitan
Opera Association.

In order to focus public interest, Rise Stevens, well-known
opera singer and co-manager of the touring company, has agreed to tape
five minute television interviews with those Members of Congress whose
areas are to be visited this fall. The company's itinerary is
here enclosed.

Miss Stevens and the Friends of the Kennedy Center very much

23g;tEE;f;ZS;_;Ell_2Ea;EE2Es§2sQ_in_naes4ng—wtth—hee—;a.xhe_nnuﬁg_gz_
enate Television studio near the latter part of August. tape

wou en be at your disposal to use gpzig&gﬁgggggﬁ_i&n
WWLMM ; about ten days or so before the company will perform.

One of the Friends of the Kennedy Center will call you shortly
to schedule the interview and to answer any questions you may have.
Meanwhile should you wish to call for more information, Miss Ellen

Coolidge at the Kennedy Center (382-1937), or Miss Kay Martin, in my
husband's office (225-2301) will be glad to help.

I hope that you will join Miss Stevens in assisting this fine
enterprise of young American artists.

With very best wishes,
Sincerely,

o Moeeled

William S. Moorhead
Congressional Chairman
Friends of the Kennedy

Center

John F. Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts — Washington, D. C. \ :
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PLEASE CREDIT ANY QUOTES OR EXCERPTS FROM THIS ABC RADIO AND
TELEVISION PROGRAM TO "ABC'S ISSUES AND ANSWERS."

I SSUES AND ANGSWETRS

SUNDAY, OCTOBER 20, 19656

GUEST: Congressman Gerald Ford (R., Mich.)
House Minority Leader

INTERVIEWED BY: Bob Clark and
Bill Downs, ARC News Correspondents

MR, CLARK: Mr. Ford, nice to have you with us. We
might as well begin with all those headlines the President
has been making in Asia. Do you think the Manila Conference
and the President's travels have brought us any closer to peace
in Vietnam?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bob, I would like to answer that
this way: Thé American people hopedthat President Johnson
would qo to Manila and come back with a permanent and
honorable peace. That has not been achieved. The American
people hopéthat the Manila Conference would result in a
hiqher deqgree of solidarity between the United States and our
five allies., That has not been achievedzk As a matter of fact,
there seems to be some undercurrent of dispute between
Premier Ky and our own U. S. position involving Viet Cong

participation in the ultimate qovernment that wilﬁ K 4
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the world who would join us in this fight. That has not
materialized. The American people hopeJthat our prestige
in Southeast Asia would be improved. This apparently has not
been a result, when you hear and see the riots that took
place during the President's trip.

May I add I think our prestige worldwide is suffering
some too. I recently saw some fiaqures by Senator Morton that
indicate eight out of ten FEuropeans feel that our prestige
is lower today than it was under Kennedy and Eisenhower.

So, when you add it all up, I realy don't feel that the
lanila Conference has made the American people feel better
than before it happened.

MR, CLARK: The biqg news out of Manila was the offer
to withdraw all American and allied troops from South Vietnam
if North Vietnam does the same. What do you think of that?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think we ought to know a little
bit more about that offer, the specifics of it. As you know,
there was some apparent contradiction between what our Am-
bassador to the U.N. offered a few weeks ago, Ambassador
Goldberqg, when he made a rather similar proposal at the U.N.
There was that statement and then there was the statement
made October 12th by the Secretary of State that was almost
the same thing, and then the President's, or the Manila Con-
ference's statement made by the six nations. All of the@ﬁﬁ?

\

seemed to be somewhat -- or to a deqgree, I should sagﬁ a littik
oy J
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contradictory and not entirely consistent.

MR. DOWNS: Congressman, would you favor withdrawal of

| the United States if we can get a peaceful and just settlement?

| Do you think we should keep troops out there or should we

|
i
‘ withdraw?
! REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill,
|

it is aood to say that we
should withdraw, but the terms upon which we withdraw, that's

the real question.

MR. DOWHNS: Well, what terms would you set?

PEPRESTMTP?TIVE FORD: If we were to withdraw, I would

'insist that the North Vietnamese take their regulars out of

The Viet Cong would have to be deactivated

| South Vietnam.
|
|

|and there would have to be certain assurances that the Viet

|Cong would not lurk in the background and then move in and

take over acain.

It seems to me that if we withdrew without these firm

—

e

would suffer a delaved defeat and certainlv this would not be

justified after all of the sacrifices that have been made by

the Americans, both in Vietnam and elsewhere.

™R, DOWNS: Doesn't the communique say in effect -- at

least imnlv it, if it does not spell it out -- "We are not qoing
to pull out our troops until they have a secure and independent
fovernment in Saigon that can operate?

PEPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, the communique, J4ill, was a
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little indefinite in this regard. It didn't redly point out
the basic terms by which we would make this withdrawal. It
didn't have any provisions in it that would insure the com-
pliance by the North Vietnam forces and by the Viet Cong.
This is where I think the American peopie have to know more

before they can say they are for the proposal that was made in

Manila.
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MR. CLARK: You say the Viet Cong would have to be
deactivated, Now as a practical matter, how can you accompliskh
this without the presence of American troops?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, this is an excellent question,
Bob. I have grave doubts that the South Vietnamese forces
are capable at the present time of handling the situation
by themselves. The South Vietnamese forces have had a large
desertion rate, They don't have the cadre of officers that
are needed to really do a job. I am not at all positive that
the Viet Cong can be properly and adequately handled by the
South Vietnamese forces. And if we just pulled out and
in effect left South Vietnam and moved our troops in
considerable numbers, for example to Thailand, which
may be a possibility, it would only move the battlefront
from South Vietnam to Thailand.

MR, DOWNS: As a pacific power you don't really
think we should pull out of Southeast Asia altogether, do
you?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I certainly do not., I have always
felt that the United States has an obligation and a respon-
sibility to steadfastly and effectively meet the challenge
of Communist aggression, Communist terror and Communist
subversion in South Vietnam and all of Southeast QSia._rfhis
is to our benefit and to the benefit of the free &qrid;' é&

1= -
I am not one who wants us to retreat to Pearl HarbokX as some
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Democrats unfortunately have said or implied. I believe
for our own security as well as the security of the free
world, we have an obligation to stay there and to prevail
over communism,

MR, DOWNS: I think this is the Administration's policy,
tco. So therefore you are in agreement with that.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I am in agreement, Bill, with their
basic¢ aim and objective, I would put it. I do have questions
in other areas, but I am in agreement with the President's
determination to stay and to prevail over Communist aggression
in Southeast Asia.

MR. DOWNS: Isn't that where the Republicans, though, are
in trouble in trying to make the Vietnam war a political issue
in this election?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, Senator Dirksen and I have
repeatedly said that we don’t believe the Republicans should ma
Vietnam and the war and the crisis there a political issue.
We have tried to be responsible in this regard. We have
given more help to President Johnson in this area than most
of the Democrats -- in the Senate, particularly. I think
it is unfortunate that the President hasn't been able to get
more support from his own Democrats in the United States
Senate during this crisis.

MR. CLARK: There have been some proposals for an Asian

peace conference which would include the Communists as a
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, leaders as well as the Asian leaders themselves who are on

followup to Manila. Would you like to see such a conference?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bob, as you know the Republicans --
Charlie Percy in Illinois, and others -- have been strong
for what we call aﬁ all~-Asian peace conference. We felt
that this would be a big step in the right direction to bring
about peace in that area of the world and';f that was held, I

wov’Z think in time you would have to bring in some of the enenjy

our side.

MR. CLARK: Just who would you bring in, would you include
the Viet Cong, for instance, or Red China?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think all of the participants,
all of the combatants eventually, on the other side, would
have to sit down with the Asian leaders themselves who are on
our side. I have a lot of faith in President Marcos and the
other Asian leaders who are on our side. They have a firm
position. They are very staunch in their opposition to Commun -
ist aggression and terror. I think they could hancdle Ho Chi
Minh, and any of the other opposition forces who would be
at such peace table.

MR. CLARK: How about the Soviet Union who have been
supplying missile support to North Vietnam, would you have

them at the conference table too?
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‘during the time the President was in Manila is that the Americs

. people are still concerned about those basic issues: high

American peoplie have been interested -~ and properly so --

-in what has taken place in Manila, but I think they have kept

talking about.
whGANh
MR, DOWNS: Congressman Ford, two weeks ago whah the
President left for the Far East a number of you Republican ’

leaders on the Hill feared that he would so dominate the

news and the headlines that you wouldn’t have a falr shake on =

this campaign for the November eiections, ‘Dd-yéu feel that
he nas dominated the headiines and what is the politicail

impact of the Manila conference?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, we were apprehensive that thig

conference would doninate the news and that the President
would divert public attphtjpn from the basic issues that are
disturbing'the American people. But my general impression

from traveling in about ten states in the last two weeks

prices, high interest rates, a disregard for the law, The

their eye on the ball, so to speak, on the basic issues betweer

Republicans and Democrats and I don't believe any last-minute
political oratory by the President, when he comes back and
makes ;his.whirlwind tour around the éduntry, will change
very many votes, 0 R AN

MR, DOWNS: You expect a political blitz then/whgn he comé

n

S -
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REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, all indications are the
President is going to visit a number of states and try to
convince some of our voters that things are good. I think
they realize problems are here and they haven't been solved
and the President’'s last minute political oratory won't change
very many votes.

MR. CLARK: You have been campaigning furiously around the
country for the past several months. You have raised the
suspicion in some quarters that you are working for something
more than just the election of Republican candidates, that
you are running for Vice President or maybe even Presideiit
in 1968,

Would it be fair to call you the Bobby Kennedy of the
Republican Party?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bob, in the first place there
isn't much resemblance between us and secondly our views are
very different. I have absolutely nc political ambition for an
other office than to be reelected to my present seat in the
Congress and to continue to help the Republicans in the
House and I hope to be the Republican leader in the House in
the next two years.

MR. CLARK: But you would agree that you are not

<

&
yourself any harm for anything that might transpirefdn the'ﬁ

o~ >
=

future with all these contacts and good friends you‘a;e making

y
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among Republican Party people around the country?
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Well, there is no doubt that
when I go from one district to another that I -- or at
least I hope I make good friends and get to know people
better, but this is for the purpose, really, of stimulating
our candidates in these districts and getting their friends
and their helpers to get out and elect us a responsible
Congress in the next session. What happens after that,

why of course is beyond my own control.
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MR. DOIMS: IMavbe we could call you the Richard WNixon
of Capitol Nill. Yould that be more likc it?

REPRESIENTATIVE FORD: T'lell, my desire, as I said a minute
acgo, 3ill, is not to cone to any district for the purpose of
helping mv own causce on a national level.

MR, DNWNS: VYou mentioned the ceconomic issues and vou
were one of the Republican Congres-men or Republican leaders
who advised the ladies who are now on the nicket lines in the
supermarkets, instead to picket the tthite ilouse or the -- I
think vou call it the "inflationary 89th Conqgress."

That did Mrs. Tord have to savy about that?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: 'lell, Bill, we discussed that this
mornina and I think she agreces with me that the cause of in-
flation today is not the farmer; it is not the businessman;
it is not the working man who is trying to get higher wanes.
The cause of inflation in this country today is the excessive
spending, the non-essential, non-militarv spending out cof the
T"ederal treasury.

I was surnriscd. Che lknows a areat deal about this asnect
and if she is typical of the housewives throuahout the country
== and I think she is -~ I an very, very happy because in my
judement this administration has bheen trvinag te Aivert nublic
opinion from the cause of inflation, which is federal spendinm,
to the husinessman and to the farmer and to the supermarket

onerator and the like.




10

i

12

i3

14

15

16

i7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12

I think my friend, Esther Petersen, when she went out to
Denver to help some of these housewives was,to some extent
anyhow, trying to divert attention from the cause and she, and
these housewives, werc only showing their ppposition to the
symptoms.

The housewives, I have qreat sympathy for them. I
understand their frustration, but they could do a better job
in the remaining days before the election to come down and
picket the White llouse and the majority members of the Conqress
who added to the President's budqet and who are equally
responsible for the high prices at the present time.

MR. DOWNS: There have been, thouqgh, siqgns that the
Conqress itself saw something qoinag wronq in the supermarkets
because you -- I don't know how you voted cn this; how did.you
vote on the Truth in Packaqinq Bill, for example?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I voted for it, Bill.

MR. DOWNS: You voted for it. So, something has been
aoing on in the market that the housewife doesn't like. Now,
you were telling them, "Don't blame the supermarket, but blame
the President of the United States." DBut the supermarket is
there, the President isn't there. Do you thin it is wronq
for these neople to protest?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Bill, I think the housewives who
are picketing supermarkets are aiminag their ire not at the

nroducts thev qet, but the prices they have to pay.,
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and the prices they have to pay, the highest prices in a qgood
many years, if not all-time hiqhs, the cause of that is not
the businessman who sells the product; it is not the farmer
who produces the commodities --

MR. DOWNS: It is not the trading stamps; it is
not the contest; it is not the "We will agive you a free trip
to Europe;" vou don't think that has anything to do with it?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think those are promotion gim-~
micks thag;ggg?éywell be left aside in this crisis of high
prices, but the Administration has sought by one means or
another in the last several weeks to divert public attention
from the cause. They have been treating the symptoms. The
Federal Trade Cormmission, for example, has belatedly jumped
intce the .fray and they are now at this last ditch moment before
the election going around trying to find out whether these
promotion proposals and these gimmicks are bad or good, or
whether they are inflationary or otherwise.

This Administration is doing everything it possibly can
to get public attention away from the real cause of inflation,
which is the federal spending that can be cut back and should
be deferred.

It is clever. It is good politics, but it isn't good
economics.

S RORDN

MR. CLARK: Did Mrs. Ford tell you when she cqﬁﬁlainsfa

| = > |
about hiqh prices that there should be a tax increase to check

~ y
. o
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inflation?

REPRESENTATIVE FPORD: We naven't goane thac far, Bob,
but speaking generally, most Americans, from my travels
around, to some extent expect President Johnson tc come back
from Manila and before January 10th, when Congress reconvenes,
let the cat out of the bag that we will have tc have a third
tax increase within 14 months.

The President, I am sure, fully realizes that ttere ig a
backlog, a big backloqg of unfunded problems ir the Defense
Department as liong as he didn't come back from Manila with
peace, and if he reveals the extent of this need and the
necessity in the Pentagon, as he should, for increased
expenditures for the Army, Navy, Air Force and Marines, I am
positive that he will wrap up his tax increase in a tax bhill

.

tor the prosecution of the war in Vietnam.

MR. DOWNS: One thing on the boycoitt before we leave that.
Do you think it is going to hurt you or help you, these women
nicketing?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I believe it will help us pecause,
despite the diversionary tactics of the Administration, eight
out of ten Americans know, according, I think, to the Gallup
or Harris poll, that inflation is caused by excessive non-
essential, non-military spending.

MR. CLARK: With the continuing threat of inflation

and with the almost total failure of Renublicans in this
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last Conaress to make any substantial cuts in Great Society
proqgrams, would you now agrec with most cconomists that a
tax increase is needed now?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I haven't vet seen encugh evidence,
Bob, to convince me that a tax increase is inevitable, and,
furthermore, the Republicans in the 'louse of Renresentatives
durinag thislast session made repcated efforts to cut back on
non-military, non-essential spending. On five appropriation
bills we offered a five per cent cut in spending, which, if
it had heen supported by the Democrats, we could have saved
$5,600 million. If those savings had been made, we could have
dampened the fires of inflation right now, and we could have
possibly avoided the need and necessity for a tax increase.

MR. CLARK: How many Pepublican seats are you qoing to
have to pick up in this next Conaress hefore you can make any
substantial dent in Creat Society spending?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: We have to get, Bob, a minimum of
thirty lHouse Republicans to replace those Democrats that ao
alonag almost exclusively with the President's proqrams.

I was amazed --

MR. DOWNS: Is this your prediction? Thirty?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: No, Bill, I think we will get 40 or

more. From my travels around the country, it looks

more encouraging every day.

s %
=
Z, S
MR, DOWNS: Well, that June 19th -- I hate to pUll th¥s on
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you == on this same proqgram yvou predicted 40 to 50 llouse seats.

Now, are you downaqrading? Ilas somethinaq happened that has
made you become more conservative?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: DBill, I have used a phrase more
recently that I think qives us a little flexibility. I have
said 40 or more, but I must say and say it very emphatically
that right now I am convinced I could put more emphasis on the
"more” which takes me up to the 50 figure that I used a few
months ago on this program,

MR. CLARK: President Johnson seems to be trying to paint
Republicans into a corner by recalling, quoting statistics
that since the turn of the century, since 1900, the averadaqe
gain by the out-of-power party in off-year elections has
been 41 votes. Therefore, if you accept President Johnson's
theme, if the Republicans pick up any less than 40 votes, it
is a vietory for theDemocrats. Would you aqree with Mr.
Johnson?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I think the President is using
statistics to cover up a defeat that I believe he will suffer
on November 8th when we do make those kinds of gains. Dick
Nixon a few days ago had made a study,which is a very interest-
ing one, which shows in the first off-year election after a
President is elected, going back to Roosevelt to Truman to
Eisenhower, the net gain of theparty out of power is about

ten, so if we, as Republicans, pick up 49 or more in this
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election November 8th rather than the ten which is the
traditional fiqure in this situation, Republicans will have
given a biqg boost and the American people will have rejected
the Johnson-Humphrey inflation Democrat Congress, a real
beating.

MR, CLARK: The Republican leader in the Senate, Lverett
Dirksen, is still predicting a gain of 75 secats in the louse.
I take it you feel he is a little optimistic.

MR. DOWNS: You are not taking any bets on that?
REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I like to agree with Senator
Dirksen and we do agree practically all the time, but on this

one I will qgo along with his fiqure, but I think in all
honesty the one that I have quoted is the more likely one.
% ® W & *

MR. DOWNS: Congressman Ford, I think we aqgree that this
question of black power, the so-called white backlash, is a
real imponderable in the upcoming election.

llow do you assess it?

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: First, all the Republican leaders
I know of have deplored and reqretted that a limited number
of neqgro leaders have used this as a phrase and have sought to
exploit the situation. I don't think that the American people

are at all sympathetic; in fact, I think they are VQ.YEﬁEKR
: o\

Q
opposed to it. I have the feeling that in this el&ction th
[+

American people individually will make their decis?
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or not the white backlash is a factor or not.

No one, Bill, can forecast right now whether this will
or will not be a substantial factor on November E&th.

MR. CLARK: 1In some of your recent campaign speeches yocu
seem to be implying rather strongly that tne Administration is
responsible for race riots in the big cities. Do you believe
that?

REFRESENTATIVE FORD: I have never said that. I have
pointed out that under this Administration crime has gone up
about 46 per cent while our population has gone up c¢nly eight
per cent. I have pointed out that the Republicans in the louse
on several occasions have tried to get amendments ocffered on
various bills that would give better tools to the Admiristra-
tion to soive these problems and unfortunately on one or more

occasions the Administration has opposed these either indirectly

T~

or direqtly, such legisliation.
MR, CLARK: I am sorry but our time is up. Thank you very
much for being our guest on ISSUES AND ARSWERS.
* ® % * % %
(Next week: Richard M. Nixon, former Vice President of thé

United States and a leader of the Republican Party.)
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"ON THE RECORD"

An interview with the Honorable Gerald R. Ford,

Minority Leader of the House of Representatives

Tuesday, November 22, 1966, at 11:00 a.m.

Q. The Republican Conference will meet shortly,

will it?

MR. FORD: It will meet on January 9.

Q. Do you expect to be re-elected as Minority
Leader?

MR. FORD: I hope that the whole leadership group
which served in the 89th Congress will be re-elected.

Q. There has been some guestion about whether Les
Arends wants to continue on as Whip. Have you discussed that
with him?

MR. FORD: I haven't discussed it with him. I just

~ assumed that he wanted to continue as Whip. I have talked

to Les and he never mentioned it. I told him, as I told
everybody else in the leadership, that I strongly hope that
all of them would be candidates and would be re-elected.

Q. What are the Republicans going to do in

House this year that they didn't do last year, now tH 4

have added strength? f%;\_l/f;
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MR. FORD: Well, I think the overall approach we
will take is that we are going to insist that the legislative
process be re-established in the House of Representatives.

I am sure all of you knew that we felt that in the last
Congress the legislative process as we have known it in the
past just didn't operate. The ratios were so great that to
a substantial degree on the big issues, when the Administra-
tion wanted something, the House didn't operate in a typical
legislative way.

We are going to insist that the committbes operate
in a proper way. There is going to be better consideration
of measures in the committees. We hope that the House, itself,
well again function as a legislative body.

Q. Jerry, do you favor,in line with what you just
mentioned, eliminating the 2l-day rule?

MR. FORD: We haven't made any decision on that.
The leadership is going to get together in the next month.

Q. What is your personal feeling on it?

MR. FORD: Well, I don't believe in saying what I
feel as an individual until I have worked out what I think the
leadership as a whole should feel. There are some in the
leadership who have expressed themselves that we ought to
fight the 21-day rule and return to what it was, -Sevéral of
the leadership have suggested that we go back and take the

"Pair Play" amendments that followed the '62 election, take
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some of the ideas we had at the time following the '64 election
and incorporate those in some of the rules changes.

Then one of the members of the leadership has sug-
gested that we take the 21-day rule and fight to take from it
the discretion of the Speaker =-- as you know,now the Speaker
has the discretion to recognize the Chairman of the particular
committee -- and make it mandatory that he recognize not only
the Chairman but the Ranking Minority Member. This would
insure that also the Ranking Minority Member can force the
legislation on the Floor after the 21 days has expired.

What I am trying to say is that we have some alterna-
tives that we are going to explore. We will get together some-
time in the next month and try to pick our course of action.

Q. Have you had any indication that Carl Albert,
who is the Democratic Majority Leader, will insist on rein-
stating the 2l1-day rule in the new Congress?

MR. FORD: I haven't talked to Carl about it.

Q. If they don't move,it won't be there, will it?

MR, FORD: ©Oh, yes, the House has to adopt its rules
the day the session begins. So the new Congress has full
floxiﬁility on what it wants to approve.

Q. Do you expect to have to fight to achieve this
return of the legislative process, or do you think that it will
be a foregone conclusion?

MR. FORD: We have 47 more members. ©On its face,
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that would insure that both in committee and on the Floor
there will be a re-establishment of this legislative process.

Q. Will you get more members on the committees?

MR. FORD: Well, in 1965, following '64, the Democrat
leadership said that we had 32.-some per cent and they had
67.-some per cent. It was virtually 68 to 32, so let us use
those figures. Based on the elections of two weeks ago, it is
43 to 57. They said on all committees two years ago that it
ought to be 32-68. We couldn't do much about it. We feel
that if there was a mandate in '64, there is a mandate in '66,
and we oughg to get the same consideration.

Q. Do you think that you will?

MR. FORD: We are sure going to fight for it.

I think we have good reasons to fight for it, because there
was a very substantial change in public sentiment as re-
flectad in the gains we made. If the concept of carrying out
the will of the people in '64 was sound in '65, it sure is
sound in '67.

Q. Could you expect to get some support from
Southern Democratic committee chairmen on this matter of
getting a greater number of Republicans on the committees?

MR. FORD: Well, this brings up the whole issue of

the Republican-Southern Democrat coalition. My feeling two

years ago, and my feeling today, is that the Republi

D
Q

A - )
ought to make their own decisions on policy matters,|just 3
W, *
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like I think we ought to make our own decision on the committee
ratio. We want Republican representation on committees.

On issues we will make up our own mind or we will
make our own deﬁerﬁ1ﬁ$ﬁions on what policies should be.
We will get whatever help or whatever support we can get from
any Democrats.

On the ratios on committees, if we can get any
Democratic help in the breakdown of committee ratios, we will
sure be glad to have it,

Q. As a practical matter, you will be getting suppor

e

more from Southern Democrats than anyone else, won't you?

MR. FORD: This is what they have to decide. But
I want to repeat and reiterate, the Republican policy decision
will be made by Republicans. We will welcome help from Northern)
Southern, Liberal, or Conservative Democrats.

Q. Is this a bargaining situation now, where you
are saying, in effect, the signals are out to the Southern
Democrats, that if they expect to get any Republican help,
they had better provide votes for increased Republican committep
holdings?

MR, FORD: No, I wouldn't put it that way. We have
187 Republicans. We will make ocur decisiors in the leadorship.
and otherwise with those numbers in mind. We certainly ex-
pect some Democratic help on a number of issues. Whether or

not they will help us on committee ratios or not, I couldn't
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tell you.

Q. The Democrat help you expect, that is Southern
Democrats?

MR. FORD: Not necessarily. We had some help on some
issues last year from Northern Democrats.

Q. What would you do in exchange? How could you
help the Southern Democrats if they came along to help the
Republicans or lend support to the Republicans?

MR. FORD: I don't think that I want to be in the
position of making any deals with any Democrats, none whatso-
ever. This was a Republican mandate, in my judgment, on
November 8. Ifam sure that you know we fielded more Republican
candidates against more Democrats across the board than we
ever did before. We received more results nation-wide with
the exception of three states. We didn't do well in New York,
wea didn;t do well in the State of Washington, and we lost one
seat in the State of Maine. Other than that, we made good
Republican progress acorss the board.

So what we have to concentrate on is making this
a Republican policy. Even though we don't have the majority,
we have to make certain that the public understands that our
decisions come from within the Republican Party, so we can
build in '68 to have Republican candidates against every
Democrat.

Q. South as well as North?
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MR, FORD: Nation-wide.

Q. Isn’t it more likely, though, that the Republi-
cans and the Southern Democrats will in fact be lined up on
a majority of issues?

MR. FORD: That is up to them. After we make our
decision, Paul, that is their decision and not ours.

Q. Les Arends was quoted thg other day as saying
that Republicans and Conservative Democrats will control the
next Congress. Would you agree with that?

MR.FORD: I don't know. ﬁb hope to maximize our
unanimity, Qnd I think that we have made considerable progress
in that as a result of the '66 elections. I am not saying

that we will get unanimous Republican votes on every issue.

That just doesn't happen. But we will get a higher degree

of unity among Republicans in the next two years than we did
in the last two. If the Democrats want to support us, that is
for them to decide. We aren‘t going to make any deals with
them.

Q. But in shaping your policy, won't you be taking
into consideration, if you do this or that, you will pick up
25 or 30 votes from the Conservative Democrats and thereby
carry the day on the Floor, whereas ctherwise you'might go
down swinging?

MR, FORD: Well, their unanimity has beengfﬁt from

perfect, too, on the Administration side, althougﬁﬂin the
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last Congress there was always the pressure of the White House,
which I assume will be true in the next two years.

Q. Do you think it will be greater?

MR. FORD: It will have to ba greater if they want
to win. They have 47 less votes to start with than they had
before.

Q. Do you foresee a real battle in the House this
year over legislation?

MR. FORD: I hope so,Paul.

Q. Are you going to have your own positions on war
and poverty? Are you going to have an alternative of some
sort to the war on poverty?

MR. FORD: Well, as you know, Quie and Goodell
had their proposal this year, which we offered as a motion to
recommit, and we offered amendments as the bill was considered.
It was a disappointing exercise or result, because we didn't
have enough votes. But I would assume that we would have the
same approach on that program in the next two years as we
had in the last two.

Q. Are you going to have a full range of alternative
programs, in effect a Republican "State of the Union" message?

MR. FORD: We are anticipating another State of the
Union message. We think it was successful last year. We have
some of our staff people working on ideas for it at the

present time.
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Q. Would you have a Viet Nam position in it?

MR. FORD: Well, asyou know, last year Senator
Dirksen took the foreign policy side, and I took the domestic
side. I would hope that we could have some suggestions in
this area in our State of the Union Message, as I know we will
have some on the domestic side.

Q. Are you going to do it that way again?

MR, FORD: I haven't talked to him about that detail
yet.

Q. Will you ask for free television time for this?

MR. FORD: We certainly expect to make the same
request, and we haope we get a little more time and a little
better time.

Q. How do you feel about the President's request
to Eisenhower to tour Asia and other parts of the world?

MR. FORD: Well, if Gensral Eisenhower's health
permits it, I think he wuld be a fine goodwill emissary, as
far as the United Statesis concerned. I think he and his
doctors have to make up their minds as to whether he is
phyﬁically able to do so.

Q. Would that steal some of the Republican thundex
on Viet Nam, if Eisenhower does go out there?

MR. FORD: I wouldn't think so. I think Ike would
go as an emissary for all of us ~- Democrats, Republicans,

and otherwise. I think his worldwide stature today is highex
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than it was at almost any time except right after World War II.

Q. Wouldn't it be taken as evidence of bi-partisan
support for the Administration's Viet Nam policy?

MR. PORD: Well, I think I am right, that the Repub-~
licans have given pretty strong bi-partisan support to the
Administration on Viet Nam in the last two years. In fact,
we have given a lot more support to the President in this area
than some of his Democratic Senators particularly have in the
last two years.

As a matter of fact, we have given him far more
support on the overall policy in Viet Nam in the House. 'You
didn't see any Republicans voting one day for an appropriation
and then within twelve hours signing a petition, as I think
seventy-some Democrats did, saying, "Well, maybe we shouldn't
have v;tod that way. We have a different position.”

Q. Do you think Viet Nam ought to be a bi-pqrtisan
issue?

MR. FORD: I think the overall objective of meeting
the Communist aggression, and Communist terror, and Communist
subversion in Viet Nam should be a bi~partisan aim. This
doosﬁ‘t‘maan tngp we have to sit siléntly, or we can't raise
some gquestions and can't make some broad suggestions. But on
the overall objective I believe the Republicans will stand
with the Administrat;on as long as itkeeps that ovoralll

objective as our national goal.
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Q. You are saying you would feel free to criticize
the methods the Administration uses to réach that objective?

MR. FORD. Not in a nit-picking way, no. But I use
as an example here the coordinating committee, the statement
of December of 1965, which made some broad suggestions.

I think that they were valid then,.and I think that they are
valid now.

Q. Do you think the Republicans will have a more
distinct Viet Nam policy than they have had in the past?

MR. PORD: ' I think it is too early to tell, Paul,
at this point. What we hope fo do, and this is in broad out-
line, is this: I would hope that our loadnrship can sit
down with some experts in several fields, in the field of
economics to ses what they tell us the prospocts are for the
economy in the next twulva months, with perhaps some military
pecple who can givo us a better perspective on thp problems
in that area, and some experts in some of the other fields
that will inevitably be considered in legislation up here.

4 Until we have had that opportunity, I think it is
premature for us to be definitive on, we will say, Viet Nam.

Q. Yesterday the Administration indlicated in the
United Nations that it was in favor of the Italian proposal
to study the possibility of admitting Red China into the
United Nations, the two~China policy. Where will the

Republican leadership stand on that?
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MR. FORD: This was a little surprising to me,.because
from everything I have ever heard the Secretary of State and
others say heretofore, they were opposed to the admission of
Red China into the United Nationz. My own overall feeling
in this regard is that until Red China proves by some per-
formance that they should qualify, I don't think that they
should be admitted.

Q. I have one other guestion on Viet Nam.

You mentioned there was an agreement with the Adminis
tration on the goals in Viet Nam. I wonder what do the

Republicans gsee as the goal? 1Is it a victory, a negotiated

- peace, or if we do get a negotiated peace, are you then

going to criticize Johnson for selling out cheaply, or what
do you want? A
MR, FORD: If you take the various words that have

been used by the Administration, sometimes they talk about
victory, and Hubert has been the one principally who used
that term, but several others have used it. Others talk
about a negotiated séttlement. They have used a wide variety
of phraseology in defining their own goals. I think it would
be helpful if they would be more definitive themselves. But
I would refer here to what the coordinating committee said
in Decamber of last year, when the words they used were,

"We do not seek unconditional surrender of North Viet Nam.

We seek unconditional security for South Viet Nam."
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Those are the exact words that were used as an over-
all objective.

Q. Can that be engotiated?

MR, FORD: I think it can be negotiated.

Q. Let me ask you about the national poiitical
situation. Do you feel that the emergence of some very popular
Republican Govérnors is taking away or moving the leadership
of the party n;ﬁionally from Washington to some of these
Governors? \

MR. FORD: I would hope that the Republican victories
in the Senate races and the Gubernatorial races and the House
races and also in the legislative races would prove that the
Republican coordinating committee was a very, very sound
vehicle for the enunciation of Republican philosophy and
Republican policy statements, and that the leadership of the
party as a whole would stay in the coordinating committee.

Q. Hasn't the coordinating committee been pxetty
well dominated by the Capitol Hill Republicans?

MR. FORD: Paul, if you had been there, and seen
some of the arguments -- and I use "arguments” in the right
sense -- you would have seen that all elements of the party
had a major part in the drafting of the statements we have
set forth. I guess numerically you could say the eleven
House-Senate leadership was the biggest segment. Thero/arg

five Governors and five ex-candidates for the Presidqﬁéy,'w‘g
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and some from the National Committee, and one from the legis-
lative group. But it didn't always work out that the House
and Senate people were unanimous. There were bona fide
differences of opiuion that were ra?olved without any one
segment of the party, the Governors, or the Capitol Hill
people, or others, taking ironclad positions.

Q. Do you think the coordinating committee will
be able to continue its role in the next two years as well
as you think it has in the last two?

MR. FORD: I think it should do better. In the
first place, it is a going conéern, Jerry, and secondly it
proved its worth in the last two years. We didn't have a
number of spokesmen going off in one direction or another.

We had once every three months a meeting of the group, and
this brought in all elemanté of the party. My impression was
that it was a major factor in our party unity. It certainly
kept the party from going off in ten different directions.

Q. Do you think the coordinating committee will
be in position in a major way to determine the Republican
platform for 1968 or the election of candidates in 1968?

MR. FORD: Well, certainly the policy statements
which will be periocdically issued by the coordinating committee
ought to be working papers for the platform committee.

It is not the function, however, of the coordinating com-

mittee to pick the candidate for the Presidency. This, I think,
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would be an overstepping of the charter of the coordinating
committee.

Q. Do you think the party will nominate a moderate
or liberal rather than a conservative in 1968?

MR. FORD: Well, we get into a problem of definition
here. I think we will nominate a good, strong, progressive
Republican candidate in 1968.

Q. Would you agree with Rockefeller and Romney
that,as guoted in the Times today, the party is moving away
from conservatism?

MR. FORD: I haven't read the New York Times today,
and so I don't know. I read the New York Times yesterday.

They seemed to be talking a little differently from one another

Q. They washed that out.

MR. FORD: There was a semantic difference.

,Q. Do you think there is going to be a conservative
moderate fight in 1968 as there was in 1964?

MR, FORD: I think the '68 convention, and I really
hope this, will be a rather open convention, where the dele-
gates who come there will not be so tied down to one candidate
or ancther that they can't exercise some judgment at the con-

vention.

Q. Well, some of them will be tiéd down.

MR. FORD: There will be some. I think it will'be

a much more open convention in '68 than it was in '64, where

g2
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there will be a freer exerxrcise of delegate discretion at the
convention than there was in 1964.

Q. Are you saying that these various candidates
should not try to get a leg up now? Are you telling them
to hold off for a while?

MR. FORD: Obviocusly we are going to have some
Presidential primary contests, and I think that this is good.
Of course, those delegates will be tied to the candidate
that prevails. But there are a lot of delegates who come from
states where there isn't a favorite son, where there is not a
Presidential primary, where the delegates can be selected
on the basis of their past Republican effort, their interest
in picking the candidate who can win, who can carry the party
banner.

I would hope we would have a lot of delegates in
this cat;gory who don't come to the conventtion totally and
irrevocably committed to any one candidate,so they can ex-~
press their own viewpoint and use their own discretion at a
national convention.

Q. Do you believe that a candidate will come from
the ranks of the party's Governors?

MR. FORD: We have some pretty good potential candi-
dates there.

Q. As a practical matter, do you think tgg?fégigéx

16 A

is where you are going to get your Presidential nomiﬁge from?

\\/ 4
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MR. FORD: Well, all I can say is we have several
firstclass Governors who have done an excellent job, and
dertainly on the basis of their record they are really in the
foregrqnt, and would make good candidates.

| Q. Do you think it will be an officeholder?

VHR. FORD: I would think so.

Q. An officeholder, did you say?

That leaves out Nixon, doesn’'t it?

MR. FORD: Let me put it this way: I would not rule
out any psrson who has contributed significantly to the
Regmblican cause over the past years.

Q. When you were talking about these delegates
going to the convention uncommitted, one of the things you
mentioned was the past Republican record. Were you talking
about the record of supporting past Presidential nominees?

MR. FORD: No, their record as a Republican, as an
officeholder. In other words, in order to sell a candidate
in the political arena, you have to have a record to pr;sent.

Q. Do you think Romney'‘'s failure or lack of support
for-Goldwater in 'lehas hurt him or will hurt him?

MR. FORD: Well,it bothers a number of the most
devoted Goldwater peopleQ

Q. Does it bother you?

MRB. FORD: No, because I understand his reasons for

what he did in 1964. As you know, I nominated him at the
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convention, and I hoped he would do as I did in '64. I sup-
ported Goldwater after the convention. But he had some special
reasons in our State for not doing so. He never opposed
Goldwq;er. He just didn't take a position, as I recall.

He didn't take a stand one way or another. He was running
for Governor on_his record. The State of Michigan in '64

was a tough state for a Republican running statewide. He was
the- only one who was elected, outside of Bill Milliken, and
they ran as a team, Governor and Lieutenant Governor. It was
one vote, really. He had some special problems.

When you consider the fact that Johnson won Michigan
by about 800,000, it was a tough state for a Republican to
win.

Q. So you think Romney was completely justified in
doing what he did in '647?

MR. FORD: I can understand it.

Q. But you aremt saying he was justified in doing
it?

MR. FORD: I thought he might have taken a little
different position, but I don't condemn him for the position
that he took. He had a real tough decision to make. It was
his best judgment that what he was doing was the right
thing. I don't question anybody under those very hard cir-
cumstances. The fact that he won was darned importangdfqifyhg

-

[a @
State of Michigan, as proven by what happened on November 8

)

e




it
12
13
14
i5
16
17

18

19

of this year. If he h;d not won in 1964, the Republican
Party in Michigan would be a shambles today. |

~ To take the other side of the coin, I don't know
whether you were out in Michigan during the last campaign,
hu£ no Republican that I ever knew who was running state-
wide has ever done more than George Romney did in '66 for the
total Republican effort. Thank goodness he won in '64 so
he could be the key to the Republican succeas'in '66.

Q. Do you think that what he did in this election

has cleansed his recoxd?

MR. FORD: Well, he certainly has prcved beyond any

doubt that he can help Republicans from the Congress down to

any other office in the State.

Q. Do you agree with those who say that he is the
front-runnex?

MR. FORD: I don't like to claim credit for the use
of that word, but I think I was the one who first said that
he was the front-~runner at the present time.

Q. Are you going to work in his behalf for the
nomination?

MR. FORD: Let me put it this way: First, as I
said earlier as you all know, I nominated him at the con~-
vention in '64, and I think that he was and has been the best
Governor that I have ever known in the State of Michiqa#.

I think his record will show that he has probably been as good
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if not the best Governor in the history of the State. But for
mne to do the best job here in this position, I don't think
that I should at this stage be campaigning for any Presidential
candidate. What we need is to get 187 Republicans in the House
to work together.

Assuming that I will be the Leader in the next two
vears, for me to be for one candidaté and against others,
I think could undermine our Republican effort in the House.
Certainiy not all 187 would be for the candidate I necessarily
was for at this stage. So for me to do the best job in this
position, I have to stay clear at the present time of any
endorsement of any candidate.

Q. When would be the time?

, MR. FORD: PFirst I have to be a delegate. It would
probably be after I get to be a delegate.

Q. To the convention, you mean, in '68?

MR. FORD: VYes, sir,

Q. Specifically what are you going to do to give the
Republicans in Congress a forward program rather than a
negative one?

Aren't you going to be in a position of being the
opposiiion“to the Administration proposals? What are fou going
to db?

MR. FORD: Well, I think that we will follow’§§g?game

e
pattern that we followed in the last two years. Whére the -
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Administration makes a recommendation, if there is a problem,
we will have our Republican alternative. We did that in

the voting rights issue, and we did that in medicare, and we

did it on four or five other proposals, including the poverty

program.

and until we have consulted as a group, I don't think that we
should lay out specifically what our program is going to be.
Q. Is it possible that there might be such a
battle that there may be a stalemate and not much atall would

be accomplished?

MR, FORD: I would hope not. I don't think that
I the country can afford a two-year period of stalemate and

drift. I think we have to keep moving. I Qould hope that the
i
Republicans in the House can make a constructive contribution.

Q. Jerry, along that line, I have one gquestion.
If you were able to keep all or most of your 187 Republicans
‘unified on any given issue, how many votes do yé; gﬁink that
you would need from the other side to put together a

H majority on the Floor?

MR. FORD: Wbli, yoﬁ usually need 215, depending
upon absentees. 4I£ you get 205 to 215 votes, you usually win.
Q. You are talking about 20 to 25 votes then,
or 20 to 30 votes?

MR. FORD: Yes.

Until we have had some of these additional conferencag,
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Q. Are you going to try to knock out suchGreat
Society programs as rent supplements and the demonstration
cities and teacher coxps, and a couple of those other con-
troversial bills?

MR, FORD: Well, I don't want £o be in the position
this morning of identifying one program or another. But I
can assure you we are going to tighten up on the expenditures.
We are going to tighten up on the guidelines in legislation.

A number of the laws now on the statute books just give a

blank check tothe Administration. Probably the best

- authority on that is what Mike Mansfield said a year ago,

and what he repeated not more than a couple of waekS-ago,

He agrees that the legislation we passed in the last two
years was full of locopholes and rough corners, and was passed:
without any estimate of current or ultimate cost.

,I think the Congress has a big responsibility in the
next two years to take a look at what has been done and to
tighten up both as to expenditures and as to guidelines for
the Executive Branch of the Government.

If we do that, plus what new problems are on the
horizon, with what new proposals we can come up with to solve
those problems, I think the Congress can do a good job.

Q. One of the questions iz whether we ought to have

a tax increase. “FORSN
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MR. FORD: Have you seen my speech of yesterday up
in New York before the United States Savings and Loan Associa-~
tion?

Paul can give you a copy of it. Early in the
morning, Dr. Heller. spcke and advocated one. I raised serious
questions as to whether or not that was the right thing to
do .on the basis that the economy might well need some stimula-
tion rather than some depressant in 1967. Probably what I
said in that speech would be the best for you to use.

Q. If you had a tax increase, but the Democrats
were willing to go for a tax-sharing preoposition along the
line that Congressman Laird outlined the oter day, would
that change your position then? ,

Mﬁ. FORD: I don't think that the two are necessarily
compatible. What the Administration asks for, and for example
what Dr. Heller was proposing, was a percentage increase in
personal and corporate tax. He said it was on a temporary

basis. Tax-sharing is not raising revenue. It is taking

more revenue away from the Federal Government. So I don't

think that the two are compatible. There are different approachés

to different problems.

Q. I was thinking of a bargaining position, if the
Adnministration were to say they would like to raise taxes,
and at the same time will inaugurate a policy of sharing more

of our revenue with the States and presenting it as a package.
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MR, FORD: Quite frankly, I haven't considered that
as a package deal. Even if that were possible, it doasn't
cbviate the problem of whether or not we ought to increase
taxes, period. There are a number of responsible tax authori-
ties and economists who really question whether a tax increase
in the light of the economic conditions today would be the
right thing to do.

8o to go for a tax incresase that was the wrong thing
to do, and to tie in a tax-sharing, in itself might be the
wrong approach.

Q. In anticipation of ‘68, are you going to give the
Governors an important voice in determining what will be
Republican policy on the Hill?

MR, FORD: Through thé coordinating committee,
surely.

Q. Will they be able to influence House Republican
positions on spaecific legisktion?

MR, FORD: We would welcome their recommendations.

Q. I was thinking of something like open housing.
Most of the R.publicah Governors who are considered Presidential
timber are open-housing advocates. Bqt the party position
on the Hill last year was opposed to tho‘Administrgfion 5111.

MR. FORD: I can't speak for Senator Ditksc;; who
took certainly the most adamamant position against openihoq;4ng

Q. Just taking that one issue, do you anticipato
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that open housing will come upagain this year and what will
the Houe Republican position be?

MR. FORD: I would say based on the record in '66
there would be no particular chahée in it. I haven't seen any
new -legal authorities that would probably change Senator
Dirksen's view on whether or not it was constitutional. |
I haven't seen any briefs or any court decisions that would
change his mind.

I would hope that the rest of the Civil Rights-Bill
of 1966, including the Cramer Amendment, would be approved.
I would doubt that Title IV would get favorable approval
in 1967 or 1968.

But the rest of the bill, as we said repeatedly
on the Plooxr of the House, and particularly the Cramer Amend-
ment, I think was good legislation.

Q. ’You are talking about the bill with Mathias'
amendment?

- MR. FORD: I am talking about eliminating Title IV,
which was the Mathias Amendment.

Q. Let me get into one other area.

Do you think that there is any need for it or do
you think that the investigation of the Kennedy assassination
should be re-opened?

MR. FORD: Well, let me phrase it this way: ';VQQV‘

seen no new evidence produced by any of the critics., There is

N p
\"ﬂ\,,,, -
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nothing £rom any source that Iknow of, evidence-wise, that is
different than what it was before the Commission. On that
basis, if that assumption is true, and I think it is, I still
believe that the decisions, recommendations and conclusions
of the Warren Commission were sound..

Q. Governor Connally apparently in the last week,
after lloking at some pictures taken by Mr. Zapruder, is
inelined to believe that he was not hit by the same bullet
that struck President Kennedy, which was one of'the findings
of the Warren Commission.

MR. FORD: Governor Connally so testified before
the Commission. This is not a new viewpoint he has. He did
80 testify. The Comiission examined with great care the
Zapruder film. It was gone into in great detail. The Com_
mission, if you will read it very carefully, did not cate-
gorically say that the firat shot that hit Kennedy was also
the shot that hit Connally. I think the words or phrases are -
that it is persuasive that the first shot that hit Kennedy
also hit Connally, but we did not categorically say that we
took a unanimous view on the one-shot theory.

Q. Did the Commission consider the implications
of a second shot, one not fired at Kennedy, but a second
shot hitting Connally and not the same bﬁllat that atrpggﬁu
Kennedy? A

MR. FORD: We considered that as a possibility. y
\\w/’/
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Q. Did you reject the idea that that necessarily

meant a second assassin or accomplice for Oswald?

MR. FORD: We were very categorical in ocur conclusion#.

We said Lee Harvey Oswald was the assassin, but we also said,
and this language was carefully drafted, that the Commission
has found no evidence of a conspiracy, foreign or domestic.
Then we went down through the various guestions that involved
a conspiracy.

Q. Was that a unanimous feeling within the Com-
mission?

MR. FORD: Yes.

Q. Do you think the Commission examined all of the
evidence that has been turned up to this date?

MR. PORD: Not up to this date. We were discharged
in September of 1964, and our responsibilities ended.

Q. Do you think there has been new evidence?

MR. FORD: We examined all of the evidence that we
could assemble prior to the issuance of the report.

Q. Do you think there might be a need to review any
evidence that has been turned up since that date, perhaps not
by the Commission, but by another body of equal stature or
comparable stature?

MR. FORD: If there is new evidence, I would have
no objection to a responasible authority or group examining

that evidence.
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Q. Do you think that this rash of books and specu-
lation is plowing over cld ground mostly? There is no new

evidence, is there?

MR. FORD: DNone of the books that I have read, or the

reviews of various books that I have read, has shown any new
evidence. Certainly the Zapruder film is not new evidence.
That was very basic and very important evidence before the
Commission. And Governor Connally's views are not new. He
testified to that effect at the time of his appearance
before the Commission.

Q. Did the members see the autopsy films and the
autopsy report?

MR. FORD: No, I did not. In all honesty, I think
that this is the most unsound criticism of the Commission.
You are all iayman, éﬁd I am a layman. Supposing they brought
in all of the x-rays, and all of the photographs right here,
and said, “"Now you examine them." Would you feel gqualified
to pass judgment on what they meant?

Wasn't it more sensible to bring up the people that
conducted the autopsy, Commander Hume who was the doctor and
the other two people who performed it, and get them under
sworn testimony to tell their impressims and to diagram what
it meant? Isn't that a lot more sensible than to turn over
a pile of x-ray films and other technical data to a grouéf

of laymen?
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I think that this is the most unsound criticism of
any that have been made.

Q. Do you think this speculative stuff could
reach a point where enough doubts are raised that the Warren
Commission report could be undermined and would require a new
investigation, or do you think this is going to die out?

MR. FORD: Well, they are still writing books and
articles about Lincoln's assassination. That was one hundred
years ago.

Q. Have you seen or heard anything that shakes your
confidence in the conclusions of the Warr;n Commission report?

MR. FORD: None.

Did any of you read Merriman Smith's article?

Q. Yes; in the Saturday Evening Post?

MR. FORD: Yes. That was pretty strong, and a
pretty good defense. I would assume all of you agree he is
a very responsible man, and he was there, and he cgfgginly
has no axe to grind.

Q. Thatis in line with what Paul said, if it might
not be in the public interest, because perhaps now we are at
the zenith of this rash of criticism or question-raising
or maybe it #ill grow bigger. I wonder whether it wouldn't
be in the public interest to sit down and have 8°m§9?9¥F99
point by point through every one of these questiqgg:that%§re

raised and answer them. ff\\rx/jj
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MR. FORD: I don't think we are the ones to decide
that. After all, we wers given a job te do, and we did the
very best we could on the job,and I don't think that we
should get into the controversy.

MR, NILTICH: What you are suggesting is that some

other group take the same evidenca that the Warren Commission

studied and go over all of that and say whether or not they
think the Warren Commission was right.

Q. That is not what I am suggesting at all. I am
suggesting that some grodp take all of the criticism and all
of the questions that have been raised since the Warren Com-
mission report, and lock through them and see specifically
what they are offering, and investigate those thigns, and
then attempt to see if it is possible to respond to them, and
see if gerhaps some new issue is being raised that haﬂn‘t
bgen recognized before.

{Discussion off the record.)

Q. Let me ask you one more political question:

What do you think the past election meant to the
Republican Party, and how much of an increased chance to win
the Presidency do you think you have from it?

MR, FORD: Well, when you add up all of the gains
that wexre made from the state legislatures to the governor-
ships and to the Congress, it has really tovitallzndLQA&.party

across the board. It makes it certain that the quubliogns
o
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are going to have a strong Presidential-Vice Presidential
ticket in '68. I said, as some of you may remember, that if
we don't make gains in '66, we will have a hard time finding
good candidates; but if we make'gains in '66, we will have
plenty of good candidates. I think that there is evidence
there that we have a number of alternatives.

Q. Did it move you in any particular direction?

MR. FORD: I would say it was a middle-of-the-road
Republican victory, when you add u; all of the variations in
the formula.

Q. Does it point to the election of a piddle-of—
the-road candidate as well in 19682

MR. FORD: I would think so, yes. It makes it more

possible, let me put it that way.

{The interview was concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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CHAI'BERS:2What 18 your prime terget for the 90th Congress?

FORD: T belleve the major difference betreen the £9th and 90th Congress is the House of Reprassine
tatives will be re-esteblished ss & legislative bedy. It will be indépendant of the pressures and
dordnation of the TWhite House, We'll be considering legislative proposals in the House, and in
commid tee and on the floor in whot has been the tredifionsl way legislation is handled, I'm
convinced we wkll do a far better job., Ve will probably tighten wp some of the legislaetion, We will
certeinly reduce expe:ﬂiturea. Ve'!ll paerhaps do some things legislatively that we'rnt dqna and
probebly should have been done in the 89th Congecs, But 1% will be primarily o more constmuctive
Congress than it was two years ago,

SRUNNERzHow are you goinz %o get a1l this dons without e mejority?

FORD:We ave naturally hopeful thet we'll get some help from discern’ g democrets who will believe
in the Republican program that we will determine incar Republican policy committee, In the past
m«‘vé’ gotten help from both Northerm and Southern Democrats, liberal democrats and conservetive
democrats, We hope and truct ther: will be a continhation of some help end assistrnee from |
deomocrate in 1987 and 1968,

BRUNNER: How does the membe-ship line up by nmbers then?

FORDz A1l T can @ay is we have 187 Republicans, There 18 no cealtion, No automatie coalition. We
bheve tQ depend on getting help from Democratc on the soundness of our poliey and the persuesivenss:

of our swrguments, I think we willes=I gertainly lope so, Rl
P R0
r: )

FORDz I would egres that the £9%h Congress talked about reduciing espenditurese — very .7

ELEAZER3THE"E ARE YOU GOTNG TO RETUCE EXPENDITUTES?

offective in achieveing it and the fallure of the democratie majority to make the reductions
resulied in infletion and ss a result I thin“ the American people repudiated the Democratic Party
on this issue as well as many others, Now in the 90th Congress I think we are going to be aiits 4o



2w

male zoma reductions in expenditufes because the Republicens will continue vwhat they tried to do
in the last two yeors and wo've got more troops to do it with, Bub Lot me teke a specifie
exemple, T hepoen to think, for examle, that the $100 million that is availsble for the so calle
heautificetionewat the very leask, covld be substentially rdduced if not terminated dur‘ng the
erisis thet we have, I Feel that some of the expendibures for the War on Poverty oan be redused.,.
SLEAZIR: Are'nt all those things really just peamvés whén we are talking sbout $140 billion
federal budget? :
TORD: I don't thirk $100 million for beautification is peanuts, That's a lof of tax money firom
o lot of good people and in my judgement these are simply illustrations of arsas whern we dan
male veductions. And if we do 1% dowm the line, across the board, they add up pretty grickly and
I';m convineced we can make reductions of -t lsast $5 billion if the House and the Senrte puts its

mind to it
ELEATER: Five billion dollars below' whateewhad we're snending in the current yesr?
FORDe In some of those programs yos,
CHAIBTES: Not the {140 billion the President is thinking about Congress for.
FORD: Of oourse there’'s been just so much sgpeculation arovnd Washington ac to Just ﬁhat the
President's budget is going to be, Until we actuslly see vhet he is sending up to Congress we
sen't bed to categoricel as to 'tln topx figu-e and vhot ve are going %o reduece it, This is one of
the problens we facs. This oduministration has vsed more budget girmickry--has kept the American
people in more fiscol darkness than any other sdministretion in the history of the U,S,
CIAVBERSs Do you mean this budget is going to be a gimmick? :
FORD: Wo, I did'nt spy that. 411 T'a saying is that this administration a yerr sgo tried to foc;fi.
the paon’e a8 to the fact that they were geing to havd a $1,aoo,oood3§:i:n. Now in the Budget
document itself, which was a phony dotument, they tried to cover wp the actual and honest fiscal
pichéme, They included in revemue the sale of certain assests. They took $1,800,000 in gutting
the silver conten® ofthe coins, They did other things which were in actusl practice deceptive as
far as the overall nicture is conderned, And now, gll of & sudden, in stead of a $1.8 billion
deficit that the Presidenipromised a ye » ago, we now find thet the estimrtes are there will be

o defileit of anywhore from $6 to $10 billion at the end of the fisecal year,



o
CHIUBERS: And so they ave going to have to raise revemues and presumsbly this yeerr?
FORDs Thisis a decision thePresident s in the process of makiﬁg right now. I don't know whether '
ne is going to propose a tax ircrsase or not. :
BRUIERsDe you thirk the Démocrabs are going to contimne to spend more money or are'nt they going
e be trying to weduce ke budged &oof
FORDe I will hope the Democrcis vho w- o reselocted in the House will have gotien the message
from the voters in November. The voters certainly in my opinion vobed to have a congress thot was
more pesponsible fiscal and T think the Demowrets who were re-slected go the messege, In addition
the Republicens who were elected and those whoe were elected defeating Democrats will cedfieinly de
vhat they can.bo reduce experdituvres,
ELEAZFRsWould’nt it be equally dishonest for the President %o hold ovt to the Ameriesn people
that expenditures are goinz to be cut by this Congreas?
FORDz That I%e really said is the’ +e should heve end the country deservese=~t{ruth in budgeting.
Ve dié'né have truth in budgeting inthe budget that was submitted td the Americen peop’e in Jun,
of 1966,
RLEAZERS "Im't it 2 fact that spending rices everyyecre-it goes up no matter whother the Republica
are in or theDemocrat@e--1t goss vp.
FOrDsThe rise 'n ependitumpes in the last two years under the discredﬁed g9th Congress has heen
grocher than any other, It's rimost unbelisvable thet we are going to heve a budget of $140 billio
according o some go-called axperts, And particuarily when we see thet not allof that increase
copes from the conflict in Vietnam. As a matber of fact, according %o the §trtistioa we have becn
cble Yo ind there haes beehr a very substantial rise in non-militery experdiftupss=wglmost equai--
not guite=~but almost equel to the rise in the expenditvres for the military,
CHA'BESs Do you see any hope ;bhat the ver @ ight decolerate and won't cost ac mdh?
FORD: T thirk all Americens sre very hepeful thet the confliet in Vie tham will slow down rud
thet 1t will Yerminete ani thet we cen have an homoveble emd permenent peace in Viotnem, ~
CHABARSE Bub ~he® eme the cold prohabiilties? 4,
FORDE Tt does'nt look encouraging at this particulsr moment, But ac long as we keep p)aa_ggga; oh
the commmist aggrecsors in South Vietnam ond as long as we are making progress both militerily



el
aod in owr pacifierfion program=-I think the prospects improve for a settlement in Vietnam,

BRUNNER3How will the Republicans be eble to tmmn reducing expenditures eround to vheir political

desires in 1968 when they don't have a majority %o point to?

FORDs I'm confident that the Americen preple will know which politicel party %ook the lead-—wwhich

npolitical party had the grester mmhs‘r of votes in makirg these ewpenditure reductions, The

Americon peonle are very reapénsible groupe=thoy sre better informed than most politicians give

them evedit for and T iibk , come 1968 they will know which political party wes responsible and

vhich wes nob,

ERUNI'ER2How can you have you and Romeny, from the same state lseding the Republiern ticket?

FORDs The best ensver to that is under no circumstances am I interested in bsing a candidete Pfor

aither the viece-presidency or the presidency, I elimincte that problem by my own action and this

of course leasves it clear to Gov, Romnhey %o by our fovorite son snd a potential Republican

cendidrte for the Presidenty.

CHA™BSs Do you forsee an anti-mipsile missile gep coning wp?

TORD: Tt dooe apnear that the United States has not tahin the necessary initiative to go into

production en the anki ballistic mia ile missle. Thie program has been unﬁ T resesych and deveioom

shage for eight yeors or mores-uy best recollection is thet we have spent elose to $2 billion on

the pdseorch and devicprent of the anti-ballistic missile, I feel thet t'e econgmess in the last

session wes right in adding money %c the wmilitery budget for the pugpose of -etting into the

production of anm snti ballistic missile miscile systom. I W1d hope that President Johnson and

lir, licWem:re that wes made ovailabsl by the Congress for this project.

ELEFZERsHave you seen evidence thet Russla is deploying its vercion of an anti millile migsile?

FOrDe There h;s been evidence for some time that the Soviet Union was deploying an anti bellistic

missizsle system around the cily of lloscow, e hrve very geod intellegence which showe thet %o

o degree they have been constru ting instel’ations of this sort of a weapons systme, It secns to

me that we are bzhind the Soviet Union in this particular project and once you get behind in =
project ofthis megnitude itis almort impossible to cateh up;

FLEEZTRs I~ this miscile is purely defensives--why do we worry about 1t?

FORD: Ths ansver is very simple. If you have an aﬂtiwmissilg missile system, 1% means that your

- country is not im g5 grect s denger as it would he from o migsile sttack, Beecause you have the
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potential to destrey the initiel attack ow part of it thrt gilght come from an enemyr. Now if you

don't have eny défensive system, you are totally ot the mercy of the aggressor. .
EFRAEHsAre the Republicans prepared to support the $35 billion, lMeNamer- says it will cost to
build end depleoy this enti missile system?

FORDeTh & figume of $30 to $35 billion that Secretary HcNemara talks about is not an expenditurs

thet iz going %o teke place 2ll in ona year, It's ¢ 8ix or sevsa ysar program so thit costc would

be spread ouh over the p‘?riod of %ime of mixm or seven years. Republicans, é; it is proven necessar:

for an anti-nisgile, nlsdlle system will support the program.

ELEEZERs How aboubt the fell ovt shelters lfr, HMeNemora srys we'lve got tohave to go along with i%
if it 4= goiﬁg %o be effective,

FORD: My experience on the Apiropriations com:ibtee subcommittes on defense a propriationsswI have |
not ‘sen percuaded yet that o fall out shelter program is ablsoutely necescary, It certai-ly
doos™nt hove the seme pricrity the antl missile missile system haa;

FLEZZIRsDoh't the explosions of our own muclesyr enti-missile , missiles, Bhowwr down on us end
ceallout on us.

FORDs Tell, fwom the Information that I have gottew=eprimarily fromthe news medla, I understand
thet the new Nike-X gyctem %t they lave developed with the improved boostor and the other
techinierl improvemonts—=that our wespon-the defensive weaspon=-ceon get into the air fafiber—-rwill
inte cept faster and willtrovel more rapidly and interecept the enemy further eway from the U.S,
so th't the fallout problem is not the same %today as it hes been in the past,

CHAVBTRSs Wovld you say the Russlan lead has reached the proportion thet we now heve an smbie
missile, miscile gep? I am not certdin because I have not at the present time had the full
benfit of the most rec-nt intellegence information from the Pentagon. But the e cabiainly is
growing ovidence that we are behind in the installetion of sn ambi~bsliistic missile, missile
syetem, This covld bedome & seriouvs military chitéds 1f we deloy too giveh longer,

ELEAZIR: At a rocent me-~tingof Ren, gov, you comnitted the Rep. members of the House to change
in thaloclal sscurity system under which you seid benefits wovld be tied to the coat of g.;vi\ngo
T assuma You moant that whém the cost of ldving goes up the pensione go up without ehy Mticn?y
Congndss? ‘\33 <
TOPDs Thot wes the Republican proposal that wes mede during the 89th Congress—ess I re\céIb/ﬁ
almozt 100 membors on the Republican side introduced e bill thot wold provide an eutometie



Spedel Security benefit increase and when the cost of living rose,

FCTDs éo you also propose thet the payments go down when the cost of living gos8 dowhewit does
thot scme tim-e?

#RD: Tell we have'nt experienced thet problem under this administration —ith itc inflationsxy
policles=ebut there is » bottom so to spealk, & lower limit plaeed on it, so thri this- is a problem
would not he adversiy folt by ke beneficiaries. '

SLEAZTRS T wonder if Republicens wll® be prepaved to suproré a prrposal that payroll texes go up
subonatieslly elorg with the benefitsfe-without any cction 'b;.'kcongr.ﬂss‘

"RDsThe Republicen proposel for ineres:én in Sceial Sedurity wrs mede in the 8%thCongrese in
1965 413 not eall for am increcse in the payrell taxe

ATEAZER: How are you going to finrnee it thsm?

P TDeThy sctueriessthe statisticlans {rom the Social Security Administration had information
whichthowed that an € per cent inereace in bomefit e~across the boerd could be finaneced —ithout
any sdditional payroll tax,

CHABERSST wender if you think the Werren Commigsion shonld hear the tape Jacqueline Kennedy made
for tho Manchester boekm-will 1t be reveRling in any way?

B’f‘m)z The Warrven émisaion did intervopate Mrs. John P, Kemnedy, The ecommission in my judgement
got all of the necessary infoz;mation from lra, Kennedly as to the problem thet was our responsibilif
The Tarren commissiorhad the responsiblity of finding out who assassinrted the lete John T, |
Fannedy and M, Nemrody could not, in my opinion on the problem of who fired the sh ot or shots
thet resulted in the death of the late J-in F, Kenneéy,

CEAIBTRS: T ecrteinly will read it , if end when 1t is published but at the moment we've got =
few obher problems hers in the Congress thet are prdtty imporbant,

BRUN ERs Are the Repubiicans goins 4o inltiate any propxans under the Republican banher thie yoar?
70RDaThe Republicen progrem is »dght now in the process of being formulated, Letme give you 2

few idess that 7 think will be in what we will try to do, The Reprblicans heve taken the ball and
neve started to rum with vhat we call federsl fax sharing, This was a pr-posel theh was initlfated
in 19581t was pushed by Dr. Heller ~-i% is now a Republican proposale-it is the answer té the
problens of the big cities—=the problems of the big stetescwhere they have fairly well e#hauﬁe&
their revenuo poteniials | 3
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PRUNIER: Tell isn't thet simply federal oid without federal control?
FORDsI%'s federal aid with = affddome minimum of federcl cambtrol, One of theproblems you heave with
e tred’tional grant ineid program is thet there 98 so much federal control that you don't weally
aolve the problems, And we think that with federsl temgsharing o federal tex eredits we can give
o %he local Bammnites-to the respective stetea share of the federal inoom taxes and locel
neorle who have imaginedion, ingermuity and sbility cen solve these problems more of ectively
rather then being hematrung by federel erntrols, |

CHAI'BERSsHow do you feel Johnson 13 doing, That effect is the rqsignat.ion of 3111 Boyers and
the wmepudiatilon of the Demscratiec governors haviigs-what effect is this having or ths men and on
hig policies?
FORD3The American people have showa by veficueg surveys and po’le that they ars loosing econfidence
in ths Jolmscn-Bumphrey administ—ticn, The President's popularity, according to these polls has
plumsted. The election certeinly was a Republicen vickery, I thirk because of owr good wecord bud
it aleo reflected an edverse public resction to the Johnson edministration. Ths Demoeratic
SOTSITONS are now ealling for some changes ag far a8 the Johnson sdministration is concerned, Thera
is some simwug. conflichid asmong the demoerats almost in every state ir the union, The Democrotic
porty is the disunified partysslt is tern asunder by the fallure of its polidies end the conilicts
among 448 pecple. I think the Democrats ave iIn for a very had time for the next two years.
PRUN'ERS Do you hi-k President Johnson 1s a sure be® to seek re-slection in 19687
FORDs Only President Johnson ¢sn make that determination, I personglly feel thatif the Presiddnt
iz in good health, he beb@Bohe®d will seek ro«election.
BLEATER: Could be have wen if he héd been running this year? _
FORD: T don't think he sould have won becenmse the Republicans got 4 million more votes, nationwide
then the Demoergbe and if the Presidont had becer running this yeer-wwith his personal populsrify
at a very low fi wre~-I doubt he couldhave been re~elected,
CIANTB RSs Whet do you think hes hsppened to Iyndon Johnson De you think this concep® of p\ogaonal
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pover and consensus that centered in him has failed? 7S S
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FORDsI%'s very difficult %o analyze, Could be due to a loas of pepularity of the Pre 3‘,9111; anl‘bhe
denecratic par'by.
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CHABmMSsYs the party torn asunfler because Lyndon Johnson hac pleysd e strong porsonal role or is

it because he has'nmt,

FORDS Well, T hi k part of their problem 4s tho failu s of thelr policios both domes'ically and
internationally, In additlon the Democratic perty st the pressnt time is o0l@ and oreskys It doesing
respond to the particulay projlems at home and abwroed as well as it should, 01d time political
nachines wvhen they stert te fall spart disintergrate very quickly, I think the demccrats are in
this stoge ot ths praesent time, .

CUHAI'BIRS: Do you think i% proves Iyndon Johnson is not ths super politician we all said he waé?
FORD: The American people, fortunately, heve tha mpww:;ity periodieally %o apnrove or disapprouva
decisions previoulsy made and the Amerie'n people on Nov. 8, in my opinion, repudiated the policica
and the leadership of the Democratic perty on Nov. 8. |

ELEAZER$Do you think Congresemer Adem Powell will be seated -~hen Congress convenes.

FORD3There eertainly is growing evidencethet Mr. Po-cll has more and more problems than peopls
cntieipated, He's got both eriminal anc civil contempt proceedings aga’nst h'm in New Yorky &'e+o
is evidence thet the eomnittee vhere he hon beon chairmen ha: been handling its finences rather
1oosly.hon all this evidence comes to the House on Jan, 10, there is a distinct possiblity

M. Powell will not be seated, ’

BRUNUER2 Do you favor him being seated? :

FORD2 X'm going to waldt and sse what the evidence is on Jan, 10,





